
Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Board of Trustees Regular Meeting

Wednesday - November 7, 2018

2:00 PM

MHSC Classrooms 1, 2 & 3



B. Our Mission and Vision  Taylor Jones

A. Pledge of Allegiance  Richard
Mathey

I. Call to Order  Richard
Mathey

Minutes for October 3 2018.docx - Page 6
 

  

II. Minutes For Approval Richard
Mathey

A. Approval of Privileges   

1. Emergency Medicine Delineation of Privileges   

2. Occupational Medicine Delineation of Privileges   

3. Podiatric Surgical Delineation of Privileges   

4. Certified Nurse Midwife Delineation of Privileges   

5. RN First Assist Delineation of Privileges   

Emergency Medicine Privileges.pdf - Page 16
 

  

Occupational Medicine Privileges.doc - Page 19
 

  

Podiatry Privileges.doc - Page 24
 

  

CNM Delineation of Privileges.docx - Page 27
 

  

B. Approval of Credentialing Criteria   

1. Providers   

V. Credentials
Confidential information available for review in the Board Portal.

For Approval Richard
Mathey

1. 2018-2021 Strategic Plan - Page 41
 

  

A. For Board Approval   

2. Corporate Compliance Plan - Page 42
 

  

VII. Old Business  Richard
Mathey

Mission Vision Values Strategies March 2018.pdf - Page 5
 

  

Minutes for October 17 2018 Special Joint Meeting with Foundation.docx
- Page 13
 

  

III. Community Communication  Richard
Mathey

IV. Executive Session (W.S. 16-4-405(a)(iii), (a)(ix), (a)(x))  Richard
Mathey

RN First Assist Delineation of Privileges.docx - Page 37
 

  

VI. Medical Staff Report
No report included in the meeting packet.

 Dr. David
Dansie,
Medical Staff
President

Meeting Book - Wednesday - November 7, 2018 Board of Trustees Regular Meeting

Board Meeting Agenda

Page 2 of 305



a. Comments   

Mr. Kelsey's Finance Position Paper - Page 48   

1. Mr. Kelsey's Finance Position Paper   

B. For Board Discussion/Action   

1. Drug and Alcohol Policy for Staff   

2. Drug and Alcohol Policy for Employed and Credentialed
Physicians

  

3. Policy or Plan RE Inspections for Weapons
Line thru this item. Will not be presented.

  

4. Employee Corrective Action Policy
Line thru this item. Will not be presented.

  

C. Outstanding - Not Ready for Board Consideration (Placed on
the agenda as a reminder of uncompleted business)

  

Richard Mathey Finance Position Paper Comments
October 2018.pdf - Page 54
 

  

1. Board Procedure: Board Agenda Draft   

2. Board Procedure: E-mail Communication Draft   

Board Procedure Agenda.docx - Page 58
 

  

A. (From the Governance Committee) For Review Barbara
Sowada

B. (From the Human Resources Committee) For Approval  

Board Procedure email communication.docx - Page 59
 

  

VIII. New Business  Richard
Mathey

Quality Committee Summary Report- Dashboard October
2018.docx - Page 60
 

  

A. Quality Committee  Barbara
Sowada

B. Human Resources Committee  Ed Tardoni

Capital Expenditure Requests October 29 2018.pdf - Page
79
 

  

Capital Request FY 19_14.pdf - Page 80   

1. Capital Expenditure Requests For Approval Marty Kelsey

C. Finance and Audit Committee  Marty Kelsey

10 17 18 Quality Minutes.doc - Page 62
 

  

meeting book - monday - october 15, 2018 human resources
committee meeting.pdf - Page 63
 

  

X. Committee Reports  Richard
Mathey

5. Employee Grievance Procedure and Conflict/Dispute   

1. Health Insurance Recommendation   

IX. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene
Richardson,
Chief
Executive
Officer

Page 3 of 305



 
Capital Request FY 19_15.pdf - Page 91
 

  

Narrative to September 2018 Financial Statement.pdf - Page
109
 

  

2. Narratives  Tami Love,
Chief
Financial
Officer

Open Bid Investment Summary 09 30 18.pdf - Page 112
 

  

3. Investment Recommendation For Approval Tami Love

Capital Request FY 19_16.pdf - Page 100
 

  

Narrative Provider Clinic September 2018.pdf - Page 111
 

  

a. Investment Plan - Bank of the West Funds For Approval Marty Kelsey

4. Bad Debt
Final numbers distributed near or on meeting date.

For Approval Ron Cheese,
Patient
Financial
Services
Director

D. Building & Grounds Committee  Ed Tardoni

F. Compliance Committee  Barbara
Sowada

H. Governance Committee  Barbara
Sowada

meeting book - monday - october 29, 2018 finance & audit
committee meeting.pdf - Page 113
 

  

meeting book - tuesday - october 16, 2018 building & grounds
committee meeting.pdf - Page 246
 

  

E. Foundation Board  Taylor Jones

Minutes October 2018 Compliance Sowada.docx - Page 257
 

  

G. Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee
In Executive Session

 Richard
Mathey

Minutes October 18 2018 Governance Sowada.docx - Page 258
 

  

1. Change Healthcare from Interqual - Page 259
 

  

2. Rumor Digital Marketing Service Agreement - Page 291
 

  

A. Contract Consent Agenda For Approval  

B. Contracts Approved by CEO Since Last Board Meeting For Your Information  

3. T-System - Eighth Amendment - Page 300
 

  

XI. Contract Review  Suzan
Campbell,
Chief Legal
Executive/Legal
Counsel

I. Joint Conference Committee  Dr. David
Dansie

1. Healthicity - Page 304
 

  

XII. Good of the Order  Richard
Mathey

XIII. Adjourn  Richard
Mathey

Page 4 of 305



OUR MISSIONOUR MISSION  

Compassionate care for 

every life we touch. 

OUR VISIONOUR VISION  

To be our community’s trusted 

healthcare leader. 

OUR VALUESOUR VALUES  

Be Kind 

Be Respectful 

Be Accountable 

Work Collaboratively 

Embrace Excellence 

 

OUR STRATEGIESOUR STRATEGIES  

Patient Experience 

Quality & Safety 

Workplace Experience 

Growth, Opportunity & Community 

Financial Stewardship 

Page 5 of 305



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

October 3, 2018 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in regular session on 

October 3, 2018, at 2:00 PM with Mr. Richard Mathey, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Mathey called the meeting to order. The following Trustees were present: Mr. Marty Kelsey, 

Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Richard Mathey, Dr. Barbara Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni.  

 

Officially present: Dr. David Dansie, Medical Staff President, and Mr. John Kolb, Sweetwater 

County Board of County Commissioners Liaison. Mr. Jim Phillips, Legal Counsel, arrived later 

in the meeting. 

 

Mr. Mathey led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance and read aloud the mission and vision 

statements.  

 

Mr. Mathey reported Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer, was in Green River 

representing the Hospital at a trial. He asked for a motion to amend the agenda to move her 

report and approval of the strategic plan to later in the meeting. The motion to amend the 

meeting as requested was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the September 12, 2018, regular meeting as presented was 

made by Mr. Jones; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.   

 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

There were no comments. 

 

Ms. Tami Love, Chief Financial Officer, said the auditors were delayed. Mr. Mathey asked for a 

motion to amend the agenda to move the presentation to later in the meeting. The motion to 

amend the agenda as requested was made by Mr. Jones; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The motion to go into Executive Session was made by Mr. Jones; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion 

carried.  

 

  

Page 6 of 305



 

 

Minutes of the October 3, 2018 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 

 

The Board of Trustees reconvened into Regular Session at 3:40 PM. Mr. Phillips was no longer 

in attendance. 

 

The motion to approve numbers one through six of the September 10, 2018 Credentials 

Committee Recommendations as follows for appointment to the Medical Staff was made by Dr. 

Sowada; second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried. 

 

1. Initial Appointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Israel Stewart, Internal Medicine 

2. Initial Appointment to Locum Tenens Staff (1 years) 

 Dr. Kamran Khan, Pulmonary Medicine 

3. Initial Appointment to Consulting Staff  

 Dr. Mary Phillips, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

4. Initial Appointment to AHP Staff (1 year) 

 Charles Michael, Licensed Social Work (SWCS) 

5. Reappointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Sigsbee Duck, Otolaryngology 

6. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Mark Sarfati, Vascular Surgery (U of U) 

7. Other Business 

 Approval of Genetic Counselors Privilege Form 

 Approval of Consulting Gastroenterology Privilege Form 

 Approval of VRad Schedule 1- List of Physicians 

 

The motion to approve the delineation of privileges forms for genetic counselors, consulting 

gastroenterology, and VRad schedule as presented was made by Mr. Jones; second by Mr. 

Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

The motion to approve the CEO to sign a physician contract on behalf of the Hospital as 

presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.  

 

FY18 AUDIT REPORT 

 

Mr. Darryn McGarvey and Mr. Tyler Johnson from CliftonLarsonAllen presented the FY18 

audit report. They reviewed the very collaborative process. Mr. McGarvey said they are hired to 

express an opinion on financials and issue a management letter. They use industry standard 

benchmarks and evaluate internal controls. They utilize a risk-based audit approach for the 

healthcare industry. Mr. McGarvey said hospital management is responsible for the financial 

policies. One of the heavy areas they focus on is the estimates. Mr. McGarvey said the estimates 

were deemed reasonable by the auditors. There were no difficulties or disagreements with 

management. There were no uncorrected adjustments. There were no material weaknesses or 

deficiencies. Mr. Johnson reviewed the financial ratios. He said the expense reduction was very 

impressive. FTE’s were down and revenue was up and that was a positive trend. Mr. Jones said 

in light of all we have gone through, are those some numbers we should be striving for. He said 

Page 7 of 305



 

 

Minutes of the October 3, 2018 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 

the $8M turnaround was fabulous but it’s not realistic to think we can do that again. Mr. 

McGarvey said most organizations are budgeting for a 2-4% margin. Being in the black in 

healthcare is a positive. As things stabilize, who do we benchmark with, what do we aspire to? 

Mr. McGarvey said we need to look at who we are and where we are going. He referenced good 

information for review in the audit packet. Mr. McGarvey noted a big play on the tele health 

side. He said it is something to invest in and something to watch. Mr. McGarvey concluded by 

saying it is always a pleasure to work with the Hospital. Mr. Kelsey said he really enjoyed this 

audit team and thanked staff for their good work. The motion to accept the FY18 audit report as 

presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried.  

 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

For Board Approval 

 

Strategic Plan 

 

Mr. Mathey noted this was moved to later in the agenda. 

 

Outstanding – Not Ready For Board Consideration 

 

Mr. Mathey said the list is the same as last month. Mr. Tardoni said the Employee Corrective 

Action Policy and Employee Grievance Procedure and Conflict/Dispute items and perhaps the 

Policy or Plan Regarding Inspections for Weapons are being worked on by the Human Resources 

Committee.  

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Mr. Kelsey’s Finance Position Paper 

 

Mr. Mathey read aloud the note on the agenda and asked everyone to pay attention to certain 

parts of the note. He said Trustees and all other interested people are invited to submit comments 

and noted the deadline of October 30. Mr. Mathey said it is not the intent to deny input from 

people not on the Board. Regarding the position paper, Mr. Mathey said every time that we have 

a Board of Trustees meeting staff puts the packet together with the help of others and there is a 

deadline. Submission of written comments will result in shorter meetings.  

 

Withdrawal of MHSC Funds from Bank of the West 

 

Mr. Mathey said Ms. Love is reporting at the next Finance and Audit Committee meeting on 

what might happen. He said that is contingent on what happens in the current meeting. Mr. Jones 

said this was discussed two months ago by the Committee and at the September Board of 

Trustees meeting. The motion to remove the Bank of the West funds as soon as possible if not 

violating any legal contracts was made by Mr. Jones; second by Mr. Kelsey. Mr. Tardoni said he 

considers it to be a political issue, not a financial issue. He said he had 35 years in the industry 

and receives checks every month and feels voting would be a conflict of interest and said he 

would abstain from the vote. Mr. Mathey said the reason this was listed under “New Business” 

Page 8 of 305



 

 

Minutes of the October 3, 2018 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 

was because the Trustees were engaged in an online debate of this issue as well as Mr. Kelsey’s 

financial position paper. The activity was not meant to be a violation of open meetings law but it 

was a violation. Mr. Mathey wanted business done in public view. He said this process allows 

the Board members to have a conversation in the proper manner. In his view, Mr. Mathey said it 

has not been debated in a manner that is lawful and should not be voted on at this time. The 

motion carried. Mr. Mathey said the item will be removed from the November meeting agenda. 

 

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Dr. Dansie reported the CEO hosted a General Medical Staff, Foundation Board of Directors, 

and Board of Trustees dinner at Santa Fe Trail in Rock Springs. He said the Medical Staff is very 

appreciative of that and the time and effort put forth to make that happen. Dr. Dansie said a letter 

of concern was sent to the Centers of Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) regarding their 

proposed fee schedules for 2019. The Medical Staff feels it will not have the desired effect and 

will hurt patients. Dr. Dansie thanked Dr. Jessica Dingwall and Ms. Kari Quickenden, Chief 

Clinical Officer, for their help resolving an issue regarding mammogram mailings timelines and 

guidelines. Dr. Dansie said the University of Utah has offered to host an ongoing series of 

teleconferences with our Medical Staff on a variety of fields and topics. Dr. Dansie said we were 

hoping we could have the revised bylaws to the Medical Staff on October 1. He said we are 

getting close and hope to meet with Mr. Nick Healy and the Joint Conference Committee. Dr. 

Dansie said we hope to bring to a vote within the month of October but may have to change the 

date of the next meeting.  

 

Mr. Mathey said there would be a 10 minute recess. The meeting reconvened at 4:41 PM. 

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Building and Grounds 

 

Mr. Tardoni asked Mr. Jim Horan, Facilities Director, to report. Mr. Horan said the Committee 

discussed reports and the information the Committee would like to see including four metrics. 

He thinks it will help everybody. Mr. Tardoni said the project list Mr. Horan gives out includes a 

ranking system. The intent is to issue this when there is a change in the projects. Mr. Tardoni 

said that gives us a way to understand Mr. Horan’s and the Hospital’s concerns as an overview.  

 

Compliance 

 

Dr. Sowada said the Committee met the previous week. Previously it was an Ad Hoc Committee 

with Mr. Mathey and Mr. Tardoni. The Compliance Plan was reviewed and recommended for 

approval. Dr. Sowada said the structure of the Board Compliance Committee and Staff 

Compliance Committee is like Quality in that there is a Board group and an internal group. She 

said the Board President is the safety valve for the Compliance Committee. Mr. Tardoni said Mr. 

Clayton Radakovich, Director of Compliance and Risk Management, and Ms. Suzan Campbell, 

Chief Legal Executive and General Counsel, have plans for the internal work group but that has 

not been formed yet. Mr. Mathey said his preference is to wait to approve the Plan at the 

November meeting.  

Page 9 of 305



 

 

Minutes of the October 3, 2018 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 

 

Executive Oversight and Compensation 

 

Mr. Mathey said the minutes are in the packet. He said this is a proper subject for executive 

session and his report was made there.  

 

Foundation Board 

 

Ms. Tiffany Marshall, Foundation Director, reported the joint meeting between the Foundation 

Board and Hospital Board was moved to October 17. She said she will present options for a 

donor wall. She said it is important to recognize donors and it is a huge marketing tool. Ms. 

Marshall said she will try to give a number of options at least a week before the meeting for 

review. She said she told the doctors at the dinner the previous week to submit funding requests. 

Ms. Marshall said the Foundation Board is itching to spend some money. She said she has 

involved Ms. Love and we are looking at what we can do to invest some money back into the 

Hospital.  

 

Finance and Audit 

 

Capital Expenditure Requests: The motion to approve capital expenditure request FY 19-8 for 

$234,300 for an upgrade to Quadramed QCPR was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Jones. 

Motion carried. The motion to approve capital expenditure request FY 19-9 for $155,842.87 for 

expanding the current virtual services storage environment was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by 

Mr. Jones. Motion carried.  

 

Narratives: Ms. Love reviewed the narrative highlights included in the meeting packet.  

 

Investment Recommendation: The motion to approve the investment recommendation of 

$16,593,758 as requested was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried. 

  

Bad Debt: The motion to approve the net potential bad debt for $1,037,374.06 as presented by 

Mr. Ron Cheese, Patient Financial Services Director, was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. 

Jones. Motion carried. 

 

Governance 

 

Dr. Sowada said she did not have any information to report. 

 

Human Resources 

 

Mr. Tardoni said the Committee got out of sync and will be moving forward with two previously 

referenced policies later in the month.    

 

  

Page 10 of 305



 

 

Minutes of the October 3, 2018 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 

Quality 
 

Dr. Sowada said there is a lot going on in Quality. She said a lot of time is being devoted to 

Board and Committee training. Mr. Kelsey said he knows the training component is important. 

The Committee is looking at statistics every meeting and moving toward a four-star rating. 
 

CONTRACT REVIEW 
 

Contract Consent Agenda 
 

Ms. Campbell asked for any questions on the contracts included in the meeting packet. Mr. 

Mathey requested a change in the Change Healthcare for Interqual agreement. He said there is a 

discrepancy between numbers three and four. Ms. Campbell said the terms and conditions are an 

add-on to the original agreement from years ago. She said it just keeps being amended and 

everything goes by the June date but it is not in effect until the Board approves it. Ms. Campbell 

said she will obtain an answer for Mr. Mathey’s question and bring it back for the Board’s 

review in November.  

 

The motion to authorize the CEO to sign the agreements as presented on behalf of MHSC, with 

the exception the Change Healthcare for Interqual agreement, was made by Mr. Tardoni; second 

by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.   

 

CEO REPORT 

 

Ms. Campbell read aloud highlights from information provided by Ms. Richardson. She thanked 

everyone for their hard work in September. Ms. Campbell reviewed the strategic plan goals. 

Several leaders, physicians and Dr. Sowada plan to attend The Governance Institute Leadership 

Conference in Colorado Springs October 7-10. We continue recruiting for a Pulmonologist, 

Orthopedist, and Pediatrician. Ms. Campbell pointed out upcoming events and invited the 

Trustees to attend. 

OLD BUSINESS (continued) 
 

For Board Approval 

 

Strategic Plan 

 

The motion to approve the strategic plan as presented was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. 

Jones. There was discussion of the wrong title on the document in the meeting packet so the 

motion was withdrawn by Dr. Sowada. The motion to forego a vote for the reason stated was 

made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried. Mr. Mathey said the request for 

approval is tabled. This will allow Ms. Richardson to be at the meeting for discussion. Mr. 

Mathey referenced a summary included in the packet and said he did not know her intent in 

providing it unless it was just a summary to discuss. 
 

  

Page 11 of 305



 

 

Minutes of the October 3, 2018 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 7 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 

Dr. Sowada congratulated Ms. Love and her staff as well as the Finance and Audit Committee 

for their hard work on the audit. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to discuss, the motion was made, second and carried to adjourn.   

 

        

 

        ___________________________________ 

        Mr. Richard Mathey, President 

Attest: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Ed Tardoni, Secretary 

Page 12 of 305



 

 

MINUTES FROM THE SPECIAL MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

AND MHSC FOUNDATION BOARD 

 

October 17, 2018 

 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in special session with the 

Hospital Foundation Board of Directors on October 17, 2018, at 6:00 PM with Mr. Richard Mathey,  

President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Mathey called the meeting to order and announced a quorum. The following Trustees were present: 

Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Richard Mathey, Dr. Barbara Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni. Excused: Mr. Marty 

Kelsey.  

 

Mr. Mathey welcomed the Foundation Board of Directors and said he enjoys the opportunities to meet. 

Present: Ms. Dianne Blazovich, Ms. Becky Costantino, Ms. Teresa Noble, Mr. Charlie Van Over, and Mr. 

Fred Von Ahrens. Dr. Jake Johnson arrived later in the meeting. 

 

Officially present:  Ms. Irene Richardson - Chief Executive Officer, Ms. Tami Love – Chief Financial 

Officer, and Ms. Tiffany Marshall – Foundation Director.  

 

FOUNDATION BOARD UPDATE 

 

Mr. Van Over thanked the Board for meeting. He said he feels the meetings are very beneficial. Mr. Van 

Over said the golf tournament in August made about $6,700 and reported people had a great time. Mr. 

Van Over was pleased to announce Vaughn’s donated a furnace and air conditioning system valued in 

excess of $10,000 to the Waldner House. He said it is nice to have community partners like Vaughn’s. 

The Foundation purchased four iPads for use in Dialysis and dictation software for Radiology. Mr. Van 

Over said the Foundation will have further discussion later that night on other items for donation to the 

Hospital. Mr. Van Over said that thanks to Ms. Marshall’s ability to get a $5,000 grant we were able to 

have the Paint the Town Pink event October 5. He said it was well-attended. A “Shredding for the Cure” 

fundraiser is scheduled for the upcoming Saturday. All donations will go to the Foundation. Mr. Van Over 

said it’s time to dig in and get going for the Red Tie Gala. Save the date cards are out and he said he’s 

sure it will be a great time. Mr. Mathey shared a personal experience with Vaughn’s and said he is 

grateful for them. Mr. Tardoni also shared a positive personal experience involving Vaughn’s. 

 

FOUNDATION DIRECTOR UPDATE 

 

Ms. Marshall reported 82 employees have elected to participate in the employee campaign. We are 

trending to reach our goal. She said it is not as good as two years ago but numbers are better than last 

year. She said staff will begin seeing rewards. Ms. Marshall reported 179 people attended the Paint the 

Town Pink Ladies’ Night Out event. She submitted a grant for an “Unmasking Cancer” event next year 

and said she hopes representatives from both Boards are able to attend. Ms. Marshall submitted an RFP to 

the Helmsley Foundation for some radiology equipment. She worked with others for hours and hours in 

her office on the request for $1.76M. We will hear by 12/1 if we are invited to apply for the grant. The 

Helmsley Foundation had three requirements to apply and we only meet two of the three, however they 

Page 13 of 305



 

 

Minutes of the October 17, 2018 Board of Trustees Special Meeting with MHSC Foundation Board 

Page 2 

encouraged us to apply. Ms. Marshall said we received a $5,000 donation from Williams. It will be split 

up for different Hospital needs. Ms. Marshall reported she is working on employee engagement items. 

She said a kickball event was not well-attended but the attendees were a fun group. Ms. Marshall said she 

is trying again to find an employee to help with the Waldner House. A Foundation Associate position will 

be for 20 hours a week with their main priority the Waldner House. This person will also help with 

Foundation projects and efforts. Ms. Marshall said she is excited to receive applications. Ms. Marshall 

referenced a packet of information she e-mailed to both Boards twice and she distributed a hard copy of 

the information at the meeting. One item in the packet was a calendar of events. Ms. Marshall reviewed 

the events and invited everyone to participate. Another item in the packet were examples of donor walls. 

Ms. Marshall asked for feedback. She said it will be located near the fireplace on the left through the main 

entrance. Ms. Blazovich asked that her selection be included in the choices. She said they want something 

that looks like art not just squares or something. Everyone agreed they want it to be something easy to be 

maintained. Ms. Noble asked about the cost. Ms. Marshall said if the group will narrow down the choices 

to two or three, she will go out to get quotes. Ms. Marshall reported Hospital Human Resources has 

implemented BRAVO and one of the groups is about recognition. Ms. Marshall said she has been fighting 

for years to do it but kept getting shut down. One of the reasons she was shut down is the idea it is a 

popularity contest. Ms. Marshall said we want to implement a quarterly recognition and bring to the 

combined Boards to evaluate the submissions. She said identifying information would be redacted. Dr. 

Sowada said employees should recognize each other and it should be peer groups. She said she would not 

stand in the way of what the Boards decide. Ms. Marshall said employees will nominate each other. We 

want to remove the final decision from staff so there is no perception of favoritism. She said there will be 

four categories with four people selected per quarter. Mr. Mathey said this will be brought to the next 

Trustee meeting for a vote. Ms. Marshall said she will forward the program to Mr. Mathey and the 

Trustees for review.  

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER UPDATE 

 

Ms. Richardson reported she is conducting Town Hall meetings each day that week at noon. She has been 

reviewing the strategic plan. Town Hall meetings are scheduled each quarter: October, January, April, 

July. She said they have been well-attended so far. Ms. Richardson thanked everyone for attending the 

recent Medical Staff dinner. She hopes to host another one in the spring. Ms. Richardson invited everyone 

to attend the upcoming Halloween community trick-or-treat event October 31, Hospital 125th Birthday 

Celebration November 8, and holiday community event November 30. Ms. Richardson reported we had a 

successful audit. We ended the year with a $16K loss compared to an $8M loss the year before. She said 

Ms. Love and her staff did an excellent job with the audit. Ms. Richardson said we are looking at about a 

$700K gain year-to-date. We are on our way to meeting the goals of our budget. Ms. Richardson reviewed 

the strategic plan process and highlighted the plan goals. She invited both Boards to participate in moving 

forward together.  

 

HOSPITAL BOARD UPDATE 

 

Mr. Mathey said the Board voted on the Bank of the West matter at the October meeting. Mr. Mathey said 

he was the sole no vote due to a procedural reason. He said his view was that it should not have been 

voted upon. A debate that took place by Board members should have been repeated in public and then 

voted on at a later meeting. Mr. Jones said it was discussed in a public meeting. Mr. Tardoni said he and 

Mr. Jones started debating via e-mail. Mr. Mathey said that was in violation of public meeting law so he 

was trying to rectify it. 

 

Page 14 of 305



 

 

Minutes of the October 17, 2018 Board of Trustees Special Meeting with MHSC Foundation Board 

Page 3 

Mr. Mathey asked for a motion to go into executive session to discuss a jury verdict award. The motion to 

move into executive session as requested was made by Mr. Jones; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.  

 

The Board reconvened into open session at 7:27 PM.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

The Foundation Board of Directors thanked Mr. Mathey and the Trustees for the opportunity to meet. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned. 

 

The next joint meeting is scheduled Thursday – January 24, 2019, at 6:00 PM. Dinner will be provided at 

5:30 PM. 

 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

Mr. Richard Mathey, President 

Attest: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Mr. Ed Tardoni, Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 15 of 305



 1 

 

 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
 

EMERGENCY SERVICES DELINEATION OF CLINICAL PRIVILEGES 

 

Name               
 

PART I. PRIVILEGES 

 
REQUESTED APPROVED 

_________ ___________ May render treatment to all patients presenting to the   

    Emergency Department in the EMS (Emergency Medical Services) 

    system under his or her base station control, and to any acutely  

    decompensating patient anywhere in the hospital. 

 

   Airway techniques 

   Airway adjunct use 

     All types of endotracheal intubation 

     Percutaneous transtracheal ventilation 

     Cricothyrotomy 

     Initial ventilator management 

 

   Anesthesia techniques 

   Local 

     Peripheral nerve blocks 

   Regional IV nerve blocks (Bier block) 

   Use of  sedative, amnestic, analgesic agents 

   Use of paralytic agents 

   Use of ultra-short acting, non-gaseous total intravenous  

anesthesia (eg., methohexital sodium) 

 

   Diagnostic procedures 

   Arthrocentesis 

     Culdocentesis 

   Cystourethrogram 

     Lumbar puncture 

     Emergency Pericardiocentesis 

     Peritoneal lavage 

    Anoscopy 

     Thoracentesis 

     Paracentesis 

     Tonometry 

   Slit lamp exam 

   Skin biopsy 

 

 

 

 

Page 16 of 305



 2 

    Genito-Urinary 

   Urethral catheterization 

   Suprapubic catheterization 

   Precipitous delivery 

   Perimortem Cesarean section 

 

   Head and Neck 

     Anterior and posterior nasal packing 

    Posterior nasal balloon placement 

    Cautery of bleeding sites 

   Direct, indirect and fiberoptic laryngoscopy and 

    nasopharyngeal endoscopy 

 

    Hemodynamic techniques 

   Arterial catheterization 

   Central venous access including femoral, internal jugular,  

   supraclavicular, subclavian, umbilical and venous  

   cutdown lines 

   Intraosseous line placement 

   MAST application and removal 

 

   Skeletal 

   Fracture/dislocation immobilization without casting 

   Reduction of dislocations 

   Reduction of fractures with gross displacement or 

   angulation and severe neurovascular compromise 

   Reduction of fractures with orthopedic consultation and at  

    orthopedist's request 

   Noninvasive cervical and spinal immobilization 

 

   Thoracic 

   Cardiac pacing (cutaneous, transvenous and transthoracic) 

   Defibrillation and cardioversion 

   Emergency (in or near arrest) thoracotomy 

   Thoracostomy with needle, catheter or chest tube   

    placement 

 

   Blood 

   Transfusion of blood and blood components 

   Autotransfusion 

   Initiating anti-coagulant or thrombolytic therapy 

 

    Miscellaneous 

   Quantitative or qualitative expired carbon dioxide   

    monitoring 

   Gastric lavage 

   Incision and drainage 

   Pulse oximetry 

Page 17 of 305



 3 

   Laceration and wound management including suturing 

   Excision of thrombosed hemorrhoids 

   Foreign body removal 

     EMS management and direction 

    Disaster management and direction 

 
SPECIAL NON-CORE PRIVILEGES (See Qualifications and/or Specific Criteria*) 

To be eligible to apply for the special non-core privileges listed below, the applicant must demonstrate 

successful completion of an approved, recognized course when such exists, or acceptable supervised 

training in residency, fellowship or other acceptable experience, and provide documentation of 

competence in performing the requested procedure (if required) consistent with criteria set forth in 

medical staff policies governing the exercise of specific privileges. 
  

 

PART II. PRIVILEGES 
 

REQUESTED APPROVED 

 

__________        __________     FOCUSED ABDOMINAL SONOGRAPHY FOR TRAUMA (F.A.S.T.) 
[Criteria:  Successful completion of an accredited 

postgraduate training program in emergency medicine that 

included ACEP required curriculum training in ultrasound 

interpretation, OR completion of an ACEP or ACR approved 

course in ultrasound interpretation and demonstrated 

current competence as defined by the ACEP or ACR—currently 

50 successfully proctored examinations with written 

documentation. Fifty examinations must be current-- 

performed within the last three years.] 

 
SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS: 

 All examinations performed must have printed images 

which are submitted to the radiologist staff at MHSC 

for final interpretation and patient billing 

purposes. 

 

 This privilege for FAST examinations does NOT extend 

to additional ultrasound examinations. 

 

__________        __________     __________________________________________________________________ 
 
__________        __________     __________________________________________________________________ 
 
__________        __________     __________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

  
 

 

_________________________________________________________                 ____________________________ 
Signature         Date 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
Revised 08/2017 

Page 18 of 305



 
 
 
 
 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

 
OCCUPATIONAL MEDICINE  

CLINICAL PRIVILEGES 

 
Name:  Effective from: ______________ to ______________ 
 
 

   Initial Appointment      Reappointment 

QUALIFICATIONS FOR OCCUPATIONAL MEDICINE 

To be eligible to apply for core privileges in Occupational Medicine, the initial applicant must 

meet the following criteria: 

 Successful completion of an Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education 

(ACGME) or American Osteopathic Association (AOA) accredited residency in 

occupational medicine or other related medical specialty. 

 

AND 
 

 Current certification or active participation in the examination process [with achievement 

of certification within 7 years from completion of residency or fellowship] leading to 

certification in Occupational Medicine or another related medical specialty by a 

recognized ABMS or AOA member board. 

CORE PRIVILEGES 

OCCUPATIONAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL MEDICINE CORE PRIVILEGES 

 Requested Evaluate, diagnose, treat, and provide consultation to patients of all working age 

(18 years and older) on an outpatient basis presenting with work-related problems. 

These privileges include the ability to admit patients to an occupational medicine 

or rehabilitation unit of an acute care facility, if one exists. Assess, stabilize, and 

determine disposition of patients with emergent conditions consistent with 

medical staff policy regarding emergency and consultative call services. The core 

privileges in this specialty include the procedures on the attached procedure list 

and such other procedures that are extensions of the same techniques and skills. 

 

 

 

 

 

N 12/15 

Page 19 of 305



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
 

OCCUPATIONAL MEDICINE CLINICAL PRIVILEGES 
 

Name:  Effective from: ______________ to ______________ 
  

Core Procedure List 

This list is a sampling of procedures included in the core. This is not intended to be an all-

encompassing list but rather reflective of the categories/types of procedures included in the core. 

To the applicant: If you wish to exclude any procedures, please strike through those procedures 

that you do not wish to request, initial, and date. 

1. Anesthesia, local, digital block 

2. Superficial burn treatment, heat or chemical, eye, skin 

3. Disability evaluations (per AMA guidelines) 

4. EKG interpretation 

5. Ergonomic evaluations 

6. Eye injuries, infections, superficial foreign body 

7. Fitness for duty evaluations 

8. Foreign body removal (subcutaneous), ear, skin/soft tissue 

9. Independent medical evaluations 

10. Initial stabilization and treatment of fracture/dislocation 

11. Injection therapy: epicondyle, tendon sheath, trigger point, shoulder (subacromial) 

12. Interpretation of tests (e.g., spirometry, toxicologic, biological, radiographs, audiograms, 

industrial and environmental hygiene sampling results) 

13. Nail injury; removal trephination 

14. Nasal hemorrhage control; cautery, anterior packing 

15. Perform history and physical exam 

16. Periodic medical evaluations: asbestos, lead, respirator 

17. Plant tours (health risk and exposure evaluations) 

18. Preplacement evaluations (according to federal ADA requirements) 

19. Proctoscopy 

20. Pulmonary function test (baseline) for respirator only interpretation 

21. Slit lamp usage 

22. Soft-tissue debridement of burns, wounds 

23. Toxic exposure evaluations 

24. Wound repair/suturing 

Page 20 of 305



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
 

OCCUPATIONAL MEDICINE CLINICAL PRIVILEGES 
 

Name:  Effective from: ______________ to ______________ 
  

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF PRACTITIONER 

I have requested only those privileges for which by education, training, current experience, and 

demonstrated performance I am qualified to perform and that I wish to exercise at Memorial 

Hospital of Sweetwater County, and I understand that: 

a. In exercising any clinical privileges granted, I am constrained by Memorial Hospital of 

Sweetwater County and Medical Staff policies and rules applicable generally and any 

applicable to the particular situation. 

b. Any restriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in an emergency situation 

and in such situation my actions are governed by the applicable section of the Medical Staff 

Bylaws or related documents. 

Signature:   Date:   

DEPARTMENT CHAIR'S RECOMMENDATION 

I have reviewed the requested clinical privileges and supporting documentation for the above-

named applicant and make the following recommendation(s): 

 Recommend all requested privileges. 

 Recommend privileges with the following conditions/modifications: 

 Do not recommend the following requested privileges: 

Privilege Condition/Modification/Explanation 

1.     

2.     

3.     

4.     

Notes 

  

  

  

Department Chair Signature:   Date:   

FOR MEDICAL STAFF OFFICE USE ONLY 

Credentials Committee action Date:    

Medical Executive Committee action Date:    

Board of Trustee action Date:    

Page 21 of 305



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
 

OCCUPATIONAL MEDICINE CLINICAL PRIVILEGES 
 

Name:  Effective from: ______________ to ______________ 
  

 

 

Page 22 of 305



 

 

Page 23 of 305



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
 

DELINEATION OF  

PODIATRIC SURGICAL PRIVILEGES 

 
Name:__________________________________________________________________ 

 

PART I.   PRIVILEGES – Require Base Criteria Only 

 
Requested Approved Procedures (Limited to the Forefoot and Midfoot) 

 

May co-admit with an M.D. or D.O. that has admitting privileges at Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

and render podiatric medical, consultative services and surgical treatment for the following procedures: 

 

________ ________ Co-treatment with physician of skin, bone, and joint infections of the foot. 

 

________ ________ Incision and Drainage:  abscess, hematoma, post-operative wound infection,  

infected bursa. 

 

________ ________ Puncture aspiration:  abscess, hematoma, bulla, cyst 

 

________ ________ Paring/curettement benign hyperkeratotic or verrucous skin lesions with or  

without cauterization 

 

________ ________ Skin biopsy, skin/subcutaneous tissue 

 

________ ________ Excision of uncomplicated benign/malignant, skin/subcutaneous lesions 

 

________ ________ Debridement:  toenails, superficial or subcutaneous tissue ulcer 

 

________ ________ Avulsion of toenails, partial or complete, with or without matricectomy,  

partial or complete, with or without repair of nail bed 

 

________ ________ Wedge excision of skin of nail fold 

 

________ ________ Simple repair or layered closure of foot wounds 

 

________ ________ Cauterization superficial granulation tissue 

 

________ ________ Incision and removal foreign body, subcutaneous tissues, muscle or tendon  

sheath 

 

________ ________ Tenotomy, digital, subcutaneous or open, extensor or flexor; lengthening,  

repair or suture of tendon 

 

________ ________ Excision intermetatarsal neuroma 

 

________ ________ Excision lesion of tendon/fibrous sheath or capsule (cyst or ganglion), forefoot,  

toes 

 

________ ________ Capsulotomy for contracture; metatarsopholangeal or interphalangeal joint 

 

________ ________ Arthroplasty, digital 

 

Page 24 of 305



________ ________ Open/closed treatment digital fractures with use of internal fixation 

 

________ ________ Ostectomy; digital, metatarsal head  

 

________ ________ Use of intra-operative radiographs and C-Arm assisted surgical fluoroscopy  

(after appropriate in servicing by Radiologist) 

 

________ ________ Local anesthesia of the foot and ankle for forefoot procedures, fracture  

reduction/dislocation 

 

________ ________ Application/windowing/removal of:  short leg walking cast; clubfoot; short leg  

splint; strapping (ankle, foot, toes) & Unna Boot 

 

________ ________ Use of internal fixation (K-wires, absorbable pins) 

 

 

PART II.   PRIVILEGES – Require Base Criteria Plus Additional Specified Criteria 

 

Requested Approved 

 

________ ________ Arthrotomy with exploration, drainage or removal of loose or foreign  

body or for synovial biopsy, metatarsophalangeal or interphalangeal joint 

 

________ ________ Excision/curettage of bone cyst or benign tumor, phalanges, metatarsals 

 

________ ________ Hallux valgus (bunion) correction:  with or without sesamoidectomy;  

Keller, McBride type; with metatarsal osteotomy; by phalanx osteotomy 

 

________ ________ Excision accessory ossicles, bone cyst or benign tumor, forefoot 

 

________ ________ Osteotomy, metatarsal or toe, base or shaft, with or without lengthening for  

shortening or angular correction 

 

________ ________ Soft tissue reconstruction, angular deformity of toe (i.e. overlapping second,  

fifth toe, curly toes) 

 

________ ________ Sesamoidectomy 

 

________ ________ Open/closed treatment metatarsal fractures with or without use of internal  

fixation 

 

________ ________ Ostectomy hypertrophied tarsal bone (i.e. 1st metatarsal – 1st cuneiform  

exostosis) 

 

________ ________ Forefoot tenodesis with or without transfer 

 

________ ________ Arthrodesis, digital 

 

________ ________ Use of internal fixation (screws, staples, pins) 

 

________ ________ Soft tissue reconstruction, angular deformity of toe (i.e. overlapping second, 

    fifth toe, curly toes) 

 

________ ________ Excision accessory ossicles, bone cyst or benign tumor, forefoot 

 

 

Page 25 of 305



OTHER: 

 

Requested Approved 

 

________ ________  

 

________ ________   
 

________ ________  

 

 

 

 

 

____________________________________________________  ___________________ 

Signature        Date 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

R 11/2016 

Page 26 of 305



1  

 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

CERTIFIED NURSE MIDWIFE (CNM) CLINICAL PRIVILEGES 

Name: ____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 Initial Appointment  Reappointment 

Introduction: The Practice of Nurse-Midwifery 

The practice of nurse-midwifery at Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (MHSC) is performed by certified 

nurse-midwives (CNMs) who are credentialed as allied health professionals and must maintain appropriate practice 

privileges at MHSC. They provide nurse-midwifery services to women within a health care system that provides for 

consultation, collaboration and referral with their sponsoring Obstetrician. This is in agreement with the joint 

practice statement between the American College of Obstetricians and Gynecologists (ACOG) and the American 

College of Nurse Midwives (ACNM). The following practice guidelines also correspond with the ACNM 

Philosophy, Code of Ethics and Standards for the Practice of Nurse-Midwifery, the policies of the MHSC OB/GYN 

department and Wyoming state legislation governing nurse-midwifery practice. 

Certified nurse-midwives are responsible for the obstetrical care of women whose medical/obstetrical history and 

present condition indicate an essentially normal course. These guidelines provide provisions for management of 

common deviations from normal, and for consultation, collaborative management, and referral to physician 

management when deviation from normal occurs. 

Applicant: Check off the “Requested” box for core privileges requested. Applicants have the burden of producing 

information deemed adequate by the hospital for a proper evaluation of current competence, current clinical activity, 

and other qualifications, and for resolving any doubts related to qualifications for requested privileges.  

Department chair: Check the appropriate box for recommendation on the last page of this form. If recommended 

with conditions or not recommended, provide condition or explanation on the last page of this form. 

Other requirements 

 This document is focused on defining the qualifications related to competency to exercise clinical privileges. 

The applicant must also adhere to any additional organizational, regulatory, or accreditation requirements that 

the organization is obligated to meet.  

QUALIFICATIONS FOR CERTIFIED NURSE MIDWIFE (CNM) 

To be eligible to apply for initial clinical privileges as a certified nurse midwife (CNM), the applicant must meet 

the following criteria: 

Successful completion of an American College of Nurse Midwives (ACNM)-accredited nurse midwifery program 

AND 

Current active certification by the American Midwifery Certification Board (or its predecessor, the American 

College of Nurse Midwives (ACNM) Certification Council), or be actively seeking initial certification and take 

initial exams within 24 months from completion of midwifery program. 

AND 

Current active licensure to practice as an advanced practice nurse in the nurse midwife category in the State of 

Wyoming. 

AND 

Page 27 of 305



2  

 

Professional liability insurance coverage issued by a recognized company and in an amount equal to or greater than 

the limits established by the governing body. 

Required previous experience: Applicants for initial appointment must be able to demonstrate current competence 

and evidence of the performance of at least 15 deliveries1, reflective of the scope of privileges requested, in the past 

12 months or completion of an accredited nurse midwifery program in the past 12 months. 

Reappointment requirements: To be eligible to renew core privileges as a certified nurse midwife, the applicant 

must meet the following maintenance of privilege criteria: 

Current demonstrated competence and an adequate volume of experience (x# deliveries) with acceptable results 

reflective of the scope of privileges requested for the past 24 months based on results of ongoing professional 

practice evaluation and outcomes. Evidence of current ability to perform privileges requested is required of all 

applicants for renewal of privileges. 

Nurse-midwifery Management: The responsibility for decisions and orders concerning care of the patient meeting 

low risk criteria will be assumed by the CNM, according to approved practice guidelines. Management of deviations 

from normal may occur when the diagnosis is clear with an expected predictable outcome, or when consultation 

with the physician results in a mutual decision for continued CNM management of the patient’s care. Nurse-

midwifery management includes observation, assessment, examination and treatment according to current standards 

of care and clinical practice guidelines. When deviations from normal occur, the nurse midwife: 

 a. May implement guidelines to establish a diagnosis and treatment plan when deviations from normal are 

identified which are covered in practice guidelines. 

 b. will seek obstetrical consultation when deviations from normal develop which are not covered by 

practice guidelines.  

c. may, with mutual agreement with the obstetrician/gynecologist, collaboratively manage the care of the 

woman who has developed medical or obstetric complications  

d. may refer care of the woman to physician or other health care professional for management of particular 

aspect of patient’s care or for assumption of total management of patient’s care. The consultation may occur in 

person, by telephone, or by written documentation.  The consultation will be documented in the medical record by 

the physician, per patient chart, per admission. 

Consultation: Process whereby a CNM maintains primary management responsibility for the woman’s care, seeks 

the advice/opinion of her supervising physician or MHSC physician.  

Collaboration: Process whereby a CNM and physician jointly manage the care of a woman or newborn that has 

become medically or obstetrically complicated. The scope of collaboration may encompass the physical care of the 

patient, including delivery, by the CNM, according to a mutually agreed-upon plan of care. When the physician 

must assume a dominant role in the care of the patient due to increased risk status, the CNM may continue to 

participate in physical care, counseling, guidance, teaching and support. Effective communication between the CNM 

and physician is essential for ongoing collaborative management. The physician will document the assessment and 

plan of care in the medical record in a timely manner.  

Referral: Process by which the CNM directs the patient to a physician or another health care professional for 

management of a particular problem or aspect of the patient’s care. Responsibility for decisions and orders 

concerning the care of a woman who is referred to physician management is assumed by the physician. CNM will 

document in medical record that care has been transferred to physician management. A patient who has been 

                                                           
1 Clinical Privilege White Paper, Certified nurse-midwife—Practice area 164. March 2007; HCPro, Inc. 

Page 28 of 305



3  

 

referred to a physician may be referred back to the CNM once the condition requiring referral has been resolved, as 

determined by the physician.  

Consulting physician: Physician member of the Medical Staff, with appropriate clinical privileges, who consults, 

collaborates, and who assumes care for patients of medium or high risk status as outlined in practice guidelines.  

Proctoring Practitioner:  Physician/CNM member of the Medical Staff with appropriate privileges. If required, the 

proctoring function will not negate the role and responsibilities of the sponsoring physician. 

Prescriptive Authority: CNMs, with prescriptive authority granted by the State of Wyoming, will prescribe in 

accordance with all applicable state and federal laws including, but not limited to, the Wyoming Pharmacy Act [WS 

33-24-101 through 33-24-204], the Wyoming Controlled Substances Act of 1971 [WS 35-7-1001 through 35-7-

1101], the Federal Controlled Substances Act [21 U.S.C. 801 et seq], and their applicable Rules and Regulations. 

Scope of Practice:  The CNM is responsible for the management of patients during the antepartum, intrapartum, 

and postpartum periods. In addition, collaboration with the consultant physician in the co-management of selected 

medium risk patients may occur, if in the judgment of the physician and/or nurse-midwife this is deemed 

appropriate.  

Quality/Peer Review:  Evaluation of care provided by CNMs will be assessed through the established medical staff 

process.  

Affiliation with medical staff appointee/supervision: The exercise of these clinical privileges requires a 

designated collaborating physician with clinical privileges at this hospital in the same area of specialty practice. All 

practice is performed under the supervision of this physician/designee and in accordance with written policies and 

protocols developed and approved by the relevant clinical department or service, the medical executive committee, 

nursing administration, and the governing body. A copy of the collaborating/sponsoring agreement signed by both 

parties is to be provided to the hospital. In addition, the collaborating physician must: 

 
 Participate as requested in the evaluation of competency (i.e., at the time of reappointment and, as applicable, at 

intervals between reappointment, as necessary) 

 Be physically present on hospital premises or readily available by electronic communication or provide an 

alternate to provide consultation when requested, and to intervene when necessary 

 Assume total responsibility for the care of any patient when requested or required by the policies referenced 

above or in the interest of patient care 

 Sign the privilege request of the practitioner he or she supervises, accepting responsibility for appropriate 

supervision of the services provided and agrees that the supervised practitioner will not exceed the scope of 

practice defined by law (within his or her licensing agreement—i.e., collaborating/sponsoring agreement) 

 Co-sign entries on the medical record of all patients seen or treated by the collaborating practitioner in 

accordance with organizational policies 

Medical record charting responsibilities 

Clearly, legibly, completely, and in a timely fashion, the CNM must describe each service provided to a patient in 

the hospital and describe relevant observations. Standard rules regarding authentication of, necessary content of, and 

required time frames for preparing and completing the medical record and portions thereof are applicable to all 

entries made. All orders are to be countersigned by the collaborating physician in a timely manner. 

 

 

 

Page 29 of 305



4  

 

 

 

GENERAL GUIDELINES AND RISKING CRITERIA 

The following Guidelines are meant as a framework to identify patients appropriate for nurse midwifery care at 

MHSC, and not as an exhaustive and restrictive set of rules. They are intended to be amended from time to time as 

befits the ever-changing nature of health care. It is understood that a patient’s status may change during the 

antepartum, intrapartum or postpartum, and with the change of status, the care plan may also be revised.  

NOTE:  The times listed below aren’t fixed.  If a complication is pending, the CNM should NOT wait until the times 

are expired before contacting the physician. 

Low Risk Status: Patient meeting generally accepted definition of “low risk” status, including but not limited to, 

term pregnancies (greater than 37 weeks gestation), singleton, vertex presentations with uncomplicated antenatal and 

intrapartum courses, will be managed independently by the CNM. 

Medium Risk Status/Consultation or Collaboration (Documentation in chart is mandatory) Patients with a 

history of more complicated antenatal courses due to medical, surgical, or obstetrical reasons require consultation 

and/or collaboration and a plan of care will be implemented that may or may not necessitate physician co-

management. These include, but are not limited to: 

 Antepartum/Intrapartum: 

 Mild hypertension in pregnancy without proteinuria/not requiring medication 

 Heart disease, without functional disabilities 

 Post-term pregnancy beyond 42 weeks  

 Prolonged ROM at term (greater than18 hours)  

 Maternal fever greater than 100.4F (38C)  

 Anemia, (Hct less than 25%, Hgb less than 8g/dl or symptomatic regardless of Hgb levels) 

 Hemoglobinopathy  

 Abdominal pain of unknown etiology or unresolving  

 Small for gestational age (less than 10% estimated fetal weight)  

 Gestational diabetes, diet controlled 

 Preterm contractions without cervical change  

 Abnormal ultrasound findings  

 Mental impairment that interferes with patient compliance 

 Other current medical, surgical, or psychiatric condition that could affect patient’s plan of care  

 Cholestasis of pregnancy  

 Fetal demise, including prior history of second/third trimester loss  

 Renal disease without renal failure, including complicated UTI/Pyelonephritis 

 Labor deviating from normal rate of progress as outlined by ACOG guidelines 

 3rd stage labor lasting longer than 60 minutes  

 Premature labor and/or PROM greater than 35 but less than 37 weeks  

 Second stage greater than 2 hours with no epidural or greater than 3 hours (Nulliparous). Add 1 hour if 

epidural given.  

 Pudendal Nerve block 

 Suspected macrosomia (greater than 5000g, 4500g if diabetic) 

 Oligohydramnios/Polyhydramnios 

Page 30 of 305



5  

 

 Category II or III fetal heart rate tracings, persistent  more than 15 minutes. 

 Underlying familial genetic disorders with potential for transmission, (ie: Cystic fibrosis, 

hemoglobinopathies, Tay-Sachs, Huntington’s Disease, Muscular Dystrophy, Chromosomal 

translocations/deletions), that directly affects patient’s plan of care. 

 History of prior complicated pregnancy, including, but not limited to: preterm labor, cesarean delivery, 

GBS affected infant, pre-eclampsia, gestational hypertension, infection with parvovirus, toxoplasmosis, 

HSV and/or CMV, Preterm premature rupture of membranes, that directly affects patient’s plan of care. 

Postpartum  

 Maternal fever greater than 100.4F (38C)  

 Severe anemia defined by Hct less than 22 or a symptomatic patient  

 Persistent urinary retention  

 Abdominal pain unresponsive to analgesic relief 

 Mastitis  

 Postpartum depression 

 Postpartum hemorrhage greater than 500, resolved 

High Risk Status/Physician management: (Documentation in chart mandatory) Patients in this category will 

require referral to physician management.  The patient’s care may then be managed through collaboration, as 

determined appropriate by the physician.  These include, but are not limited to: 

Antepartum/Intrapartum  

 Diabetes requiring medication (insulin/oral hypoglycemic agents) 

 PROM in pre-term infant less than 35 weeks  

 Severe pre-eclampsia/eclampsia (including HELLP syndrome)  

 Any patient requiring magnesium sulfate  

 Severe IUGR (less than 3%ile estimated fetal weight)  

 Persistent non-reassuring fetal heart rate tracing  

 Unstable Placenta previa or unexplained third trimester bleeding  

 Suspected abruptio placentae  

 Unstable medical, surgical or psychiatric condition 

 Trauma with vaginal bleeding or severe abdominal pain  

 Complications resulting from isoimmunization  

 DVT/thromboembolic disease  

 Fetal anomalies requiring surgery (e.g. gastroschesis, NTD, cardiac defects, diaphragmatic hernia) 

 Thrombocytopenia (platelets less than100,000)  

 Preterm labor less than 35 weeks  

 Suspected maternal sepsis 

 Use of illegal drugs, other than marijuana, immediately preceding or during labor  

 Multiple gestations  

 Third or Fourth degree lacerations 

 Amnioinfusion 

 Active genital herpes outbreak 

 Hepatitis/HIV 

 Non-cephalic presentation 

 Cervical cerclage 

 Alcohol abuse 

 

Page 31 of 305



6  

 

Postpartum  

 Hematoma increasing in size 

 Postpartum hemorrhage greater than 500 mL 

 Endometritis  

 DVT/PE 

 Episiotomy or laceration complications 

 Suspected maternal sepsis  

 Complicated medical, surgical, or psychiatric condition  

Physician will be immediately available (within 20 minutes) for the following patients:  

 Previous C-sections or Uterine Surgery  

 Anticipated shoulder dystocia  

Physicians will be notified immediately for infants with Apgars less than 6 at 10 minutes. 

GUIDELINES FOR MANAGEMENT OF TRIAGE AND INTRAPARTUM PATIENTS 

 Screening:  The CNM or Labor & Delivery staff will screen triage patients. Screening will include history, vital 

signs, and fetal monitor tracing and physical exam as indicated. CNM will be notified of patient status and a plan of 

care will be determined. CNM will consult, collaborate/comanage, or refer patient to physician care when indicated. 

Any transfer of patients to other facilities will be according to MHSC policies to ensure compliance with EMTALA 

guidelines.  

Intrapartal Management:  will include admission, management and discharge of patients as outlined in CNM Core 

& Special Privilege delineation.  

Aminiotomy:  Membranes may be ruptured at the discretion of the CNM when the following criteria are met: 

 Active labor (greater than 4 cm) 

 Vertex presentation with head at 0/-1 station or lower, well applied to cervix  

 Absence of bleeding, except bloody show  

 Absence of contraindications for amniotomy: 

o Active maternal genital herpes 

o HIV 

o Non-vertex fetal presentation and any condition that precludes vaginal delivery 

o Undiagnosed vaginal bleeding 

If the above criteria are not met, the CNM may perform amniotomy in selected circumstances, after consultation 

with physician. If head is not well applied to cervix, physician should be immediately available.  

Fetal scalp electrode/IUPC:  FSE/IUPC may be placed at the discretion of the CNM when the following criteria 

are met: 

 Inability to obtain adequate fetal heart tracing, could be secondary to maternal habitus (obesity) or frequent 

maternal movement 

 Confirmation of non-reassuring FHR tracing to allow for timely interventions 

 Absence of contraindications for FSE/IUPC placement: 

o Active maternal genital herpes 

o HIV 

o Non-vertex fetal presentation and any condition that precludes vaginal delivery 

o Undiagnosed vaginal bleeding 

 

Page 32 of 305



7  

 

CERTIFIED NURSE MIDWIFE (CNM) CORE PROCEDURES 

Requested   

Manage and provide care to adolescent and adult females focusing on pregnancy, childbirth, the postpartum period, 

gynecological needs, and the care of the newborn.  CNMs may admit patients to the hospital.  They may assess, 

stabilize, and determine the disposition of patients with emergent conditions consistent with medical staff policy 

regarding emergency and consultative call services.  The core privileges in this specialty include the procedures 

listed below, and such other procedures that are extensions of the same techniques and skills. 

This list is a sampling of procedures included in the core. This is not intended to be an all-encompassing list but 

rather reflective of the categories/types of procedures included in the core. 

To the applicant: If you wish to exclude any procedures, please strike through those procedures you do not wish to 

request, then initial and date. 

 Write admission orders after notification of collaborating physician 

 Manage midwifery elements of selected moderate- and high-risk conditions after consultation with 

physician 

 Order routine laboratory, radiological, sonographical, and other diagnostic examinations 

 Perform history and physical examinations 

 Collect specimens for pathological examination 

Labor management 

 Perform amniotomies 

 Conduct fetal surveillance 

 Comanage (limited to midwifery aspects of care) with physician selected moderate- and high-risk 

conditions including but not limited to pre-eclampsia, gestational diabetes, preterm labor, chorioamnionitis, 

and other conditions that may be assessed on a case-by-case basis with the consulting physician 

 Perform induction of labor after consultation with physician 

 Initiate amnio-infusion after consultation with physician 

 Interpret fetal monitor tracing 

 Manage normal labor at no less than 36 weeks gestational age and not more than 42 weeks completed 

gestation. Includes management of women with a previous Cesarean section with a documented low-

transverse uterine scar. 

 Manage post-dates pregnancy in consultation with a physician as appropriate 

 Administer local or pudendal anesthesia and order epidural anesthesia when indicated 

 

Management of normal spontaneous birth with the collaborating physician or designee readily available to 

respond to any call for assistance 

 Perform cord blood sampling 

 Explore the uterus and manually remove placenta fragments 

 Perform midline/mediolateral episiotomies and repair 

 Manage normal spontaneous birth  

 Repair first- and second-degree perineal lacerations and other associated lacerations 

Postpartum management 

 Provide care to mothers and their infants in the postpartum period 

 Perform hemorrhage stabilization with physician consultation if needed 

 Manage midwifery elements of selected high-risk conditions after consultation with physician 

 Monitor vital signs, lochia, fundus, and bladder functions in the immediate postpartum period 

 Conduct postpartum rounds and examination 

 

Page 33 of 305



8  

 

REQUESTED BY CNM   APPROVED BY  BOARD APPROVAL 

(Initials)     SUPERVISING PHYSICIAN    

      

_________    First Assist for C Sections ______________________  _______ 

 

__________   First Assist for Surgery _______________________  ________ 

Page 34 of 305



9  

 

Acknowledgement of Practitioner 

I have requested only those clinical services/functions for which by education, training, current experience, and 

demonstrated performance I am qualified to perform and for which I wish to exercise at [hospital name], and I 

understand that: 

 In exercising any clinical services/functions granted and in carrying out the responsibilities assigned to me, I am 

constrained by hospital and medical staff policies and rules applicable generally and any applicable to the 

particular situation. 

 

Signed  Date  

Endorsement of collaborating PHYSICAN / physician employer(s): 

 
Signed  Date  
 

 

Signed  Date  

Department Chair's Recommendation 

I have reviewed the requested clinical privileges and supporting documentation for the above-named applicant and 

make the following recommendation(s): 

 Recommend requested clinical privileges 

 Recommend clinical privileges with the following conditions/modifications: 

 Do not recommend the following requested clinical privileges: 

Privilege Condition/modification/explanation 

1.     

2.     

3.     

4.     

Notes 

  

 

  

 

 

 

R 12/2015 

Page 35 of 305



10  

 

Statement of Collaborating Physician 

Certified Nurse Midwifes 

 

Name of C.N.M. 

____________________________________________ 

 Name of Patient 

____________________________________________ 

 

I agree that I will be in a collaborative relationship with the above named CNM and patient for the purposes of 

referral, consultation and/or co-management as defined by the midwife scope of practice and delineation of 

privileges.  I will assure appropriate access for consultation/coverage when I am unavailable.  (Collaborative 

physician must be a member of the Active Medical Staff of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County with 

privileges in OB/GYN).               

 

____________________________________________      ________________ 

(Name) Collaborative Physician         Date  

 

Collaborative Physician Office Address (please print or type)                    

____________________________________________ 

____________________________________________ 

____________________________________________ 

____________________________________________ 

____________________________________________ 

Contact Phone:_________________________________ 

 

 

Page 36 of 305



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Registered Nurse First Assistant  

Delineation of Privileges 

 

Name: _______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 Initial Appointment  Reappointment 

 

Note:  The following criteria for delineation of clinical privileges will uniformly apply to all 

applicants at initial appointment and reappointment of privileges. 

DEFINITION OF RN FIRST ASSISTANT:  

The RNFA is a perioperative registered nurse who:  

 works in collaboration with the surgeon and other health care team members to achieve 

optimal patient outcomes;  

 has acquired the necessary knowledge, judgment, and skills specific to the expanded role 

of RNFA clinical practice;  

 intraoperatively practices at the direction of the surgeon; and  

 does not concurrently function as a scrub person.2  

EDUCATION: 

Completion of an RNFA program that:  

 is equivalent to six (6) semester credit hours of formal, post-basic nursing study;  

 meets the AORN standards for RN first assistant education programs; and  

 requires a baccalaureate degree for entry into the program (after January 1, 2020). 1 

QUALIFICATIONS FOR RNFA PRACTICE: 

The minimum qualifications to practice as an RNFA include:  

 certification in perioperative nursing (CNOR);  

 a minimum of three years of perioperative nursing experience; 

 current certification in ACLS; 

 successful completion of an RNFA program that meets the AORN standards for RN first 

assistant education programs;  

 compliance with all statutes, regulations, and institutional policies relevant to RNFAs; 

and  

 a baccalaureate degree, with the exception that the RNFA practicing prior to January 1, 

2020, may continue to practice at his or her existing level of education. 1 

Page 37 of 305



CORE PROCEDURE LIST 

NOTE:  THIS LIST IS A SAMPLING OF PRIVILEGES INCLUDED IN THE CORE.  IT IS NOT 

INTENDED TO BE AN ALL-ENCOMPASSING LIST.  NEW APPLICANTS MAY BE REQUESTED TO 

PROVIDE DOCUMENTATION OF THE NUMBER AND TYPES OF HOSPITAL CASES DURING THE 

PAST 12 MONTHS.  APPLICANTS HAVE THE BURDEN OF PRODUCING INFORMATION DEEMED 

ADEQUATE BY THE HOSPITAL FOR A PROPER EVALUATION OF CURRENT COMPETENCE AND 

OTHER QUALIFICATIONS AND FOR RESOLVING ANY DOUBTS. 

To the applicant: If you wish to exclude any procedures, please strike through those procedures 

you do not wish to request, then initial and date. 

Requested  

A. Assists the surgeon (DO/MD) during the operative procedure as the first assistant 

 Performs positioning, prepping, and draping of patient 

 Provides homeostasis by clamping blood vessels, coagulating bleeding points, 

ligating vessels and by other means as directed  by surgeon 

 Handles and/or cuts tissue as directed by surgeon during operative procedure 

 Performs wound closure as directed by surgeon 

 Incise and drain superficial skin infections 

 Changes dressings 

  Administers local infiltrative anesthetic 

 

B. Provides comprehensive approach to surgical patient care using knowledge and skills of 

professional nursing: 

 Identifies patient hazards and participates in quality improvement and initiates 

appropriate corrective action 

 Applies principles of asepsis and infection control 

 Applies surgical dressing and assists with transferring patients from operating 

room3 

SPECIAL NONCORE PRIVILEGES (SEE SPECIFIC CRITERIA) 

If desired, noncore privileges are requested individually in addition to requesting the core. Each 

individual requesting noncore privileges must meet the specific threshold criteria governing the 

exercise of the privilege requested including training, required previous experience, and for 

maintenance of clinical competence. 

 

Additional Privileges Requested: 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 38 of 305



AFFILIATION WITH MEDICAL STAFF APPOINTEE/SUPERVISION 

The exercise of these clinical privileges requires a designated supervising surgeon (DO/MD) 

with clinical privileges at this hospital. All practice is performed under the supervision of this 

surgeon/designee and in accordance with written policies and protocols developed and approved 

by the relevant clinical department or service, the medical executive committee, nursing 

administration, and the governing body. A copy of the sponsoring surgeon (DO/MD) agreement 

signed by both parties is to be provided to the hospital. 

 

In addition, the supervising surgeon must: 

 Participate as requested in the evaluation of competency (i.e., at the time of initial 

appointment, reappointment and, as applicable, at intervals between reappointment, as 

necessary) 

 Be physically present in the Surgery Department  

 Assume total responsibility for the care of any patient  

 Sign the privilege request of the practitioner he or she supervises, accepting responsibility 

for appropriate supervision of the services provided under his or her supervision, and 

agree that the supervised practitioner will not exceed the scope of practice defined by law 

(within his or her licensing agreement—i.e., supervising/collaborating agreement) 

 Sign entries on the medical record of all patients seen or treated by the supervised 

practitioner in accordance with organizational policies 

Page 39 of 305



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF PRACTITIONER 

I have requested only those clinical services/functions for which by education, training, current experience, and 

demonstrated performance I am qualified to perform and for which I wish to exercise at Memorial Hospital of 

Sweetwater County, and I understand that: 

In exercising any clinical services/functions granted and in carrying out the responsibilities assigned to me, I am 

constrained by hospital and medical staff policies and rules applicable generally and any applicable to the particular 

situation. 

 

Signed  Date  

ENDORSEMENT OF COLLABORATING SURGEON (MD/DO)/EMPLOYER(S): 

 

I have reviewed the clinical privileges requested by the named applicant, and I believe that this individual 

is qualified by licensure and training to provide patient care as requested.  The applicant is employed, 

contracted, or supervised by me to function in this capacity. 

 

I understand that all duties performed by him/her must be done under my supervision and upon my 

authority.  I assume accountability for his/her conduct within Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County. 

 

I agree to notify the hospital of any changes in this agreement. 

 
 
Signed  Date  
 

Printed Name of Surgeon (MD/DO)Sponsor:________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Signed  Date  

 

Printed Name of Surgeon (MD/DO)Sponsor:________________________________________________________ 

 

 

References 

1. Advisory Opinion RN First Assistant, Wyoming State Board of Nursing; https://nursing-

online.state.wy.us/Resources/RN%20First%20Assistant.pdf, April 9, 2014: 1 – 3. 

 

2. AORN Position Statement on Advanced Practice Registered Nurses in the Perioperative Environment; 

Association of Operating Room Nurses; 2014; 1 – 4. 

 
3. Scope of Practice, RN First Assistant; Kaleida Health; 

https://www.kaleidahealth.org/providers/support/AHP/RNFA.pdf, 2014; 1 – 2. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

R 9/2016 

Page 40 of 305

https://nursing-online.state.wy.us/Resources/RN%20First%20Assistant.pdf
https://nursing-online.state.wy.us/Resources/RN%20First%20Assistant.pdf
https://www.kaleidahealth.org/providers/support/AHP/RNFA.pdf


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Overall Goal: Improve HCAHPS Scores to 75th Percentile 

 INITIATIVES MEASURE 

 Patient Focused Culture Program  Select and obtain MHSC Board approval by 
10/2018 

 Roll out plan by end of 12/2018 

 100% of employees trained by 7/2021 
 

 

 Overall Goal: Improve CMS Star Rating to a 4 Star 

 INITIATIVES MEASURE 

 Universal Training (LEAN)  100% of employees trained on quality 
improvement strategy model by 6/2021 
 

 

 Overall Goal: Increase Patient Volume by 5% 

 INITIATIVES MEASURE 

 Clinic Improvements  Establish electronic follow up/reminder 
program in 80% of clinics by 12/2019 

 

 Improve Access to Care  Patients able to make appointments in non-
specialty clinics within 2 business days by 
6/2021 

 

 Community Needs Assessment  Report completed and shared with MHSC 
Board by 6/2019 

 

 

 Overall Goal: Increase Employee Retention 

 INITIATIVES MEASURE 

 Communication Improved 
at All Levels 

 Improve and/or create employee self-
service portals by 6/2021 

 Review and improve meetings process 
(purpose, timing, recordkeeping, 
attendance) by 6/2019 
 

 
 
 

Become Employer of Choice  Team BRAVO initiatives through 2021 

 Professional development initiatives 
through 2021 
 

 

 Overall Goal: Improve Standard & Poor’s Bond Rating 

 INITIATIVES MEASURE 

 Improve Bond Rating  Maintain BB+ by 6/2020 

 Improve BBB- by 6/2021 
 

 6 Cent Tax Project  Prepared by 1/2020 to present to Board of 
County Commissioners for approval for 
placement on Election 2020 ballot 

 

 

P
A

T
IE

N
T

 

E
X

P
E

R
IE

N
C

E
 

Q
U

A
L

IT
Y

 

&
 S

A
F

E
T

Y
 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 

&
 G

R
O

W
T

H
 

W
O

R
K

P
L

A
C

E
 

E
X

P
E

R
IE

N
C

E
 

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 

S
T

E
W

A
R

D
S

H
IP

 

 
Page 41 of 305



Page 42 of 305



Page 43 of 305



Page 44 of 305



Page 45 of 305



Page 46 of 305



Page 47 of 305



Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 
 

A Finance Position Paper 
 

By 
 
 

 Wm. Marty Kelsey 
Trustee 

 
Introduction 
For the past almost 15 months on the Board, I have been trying to keep alert to ways the Board 
can improve communication with Senior Leadership in an effort to enhance financial 
governance. I have observed many things. I have determined to reduce my thoughts to writing 
and share them at this time with the Board and some of Senior Leadership. 
 
Please note and be assured of this important fact: This is document is not a criticism of the 
Board nor of Senior Leadership. This Position Paper is written primarily to the Board. But, of 
course, some of Senior Leadership is directly involved with what is written. Big ships turn 
slowly; however, I feel the time has come for the Board to make some fundamental changes in 
how we interact with and what we expect from Senior Leadership on matters impacting the 
Hospital’s finances. Just as important, the time has also come for Senior Leadership to receive 
from the Board more guidance and policy direction. 
 
The items listed below are not intended to be all-inclusive. I don’t pretend to have all the 
answers. But we need to start somewhere. Trustees and Senior Leadership will, of course, have 
their own opinions and ideas. All of these opinions and ideas are welcomed in the marketplace 
of governance and management. 
 

Request 
I am requesting that Chairman Mathey place this matter on the October agenda. Not for the 
purpose of discussing/debating the content of this Position Paper, but rather to determine 
where do we go from here? What does our CEO think? What does our CFO think? What do 
Board members think? 
 

Specific Position Paper Topics Listed Below 
Below are the specific topics I wish to cover at this time. They are not listed in any particular 
order of priority or importance. 
 

 
 

Page 48 of 305



Data Used in Financial Decision Making 
 I feel that we as a Board have very limited data given us as we approve budgets and make 
other financial decisions. One hears the term regularly…”data-driven”. I don’t think we should 
be a “data driven” institution. Rather, I think we should be a “data informed” institution. Data, 
per se, should not be the driving factor in our decision-making. But, we as Board members and 
as Senior Leadership need to be informed of key data elements prior to making certain 
decisions. I can’t speak for Senior Leadership and what data they review and have at their 
disposal, but I have observed that the Board is making significant budget decisions absent 
knowledge of key data elements. Below, I will give some examples. 
 

Comparator Hospitals 
For a variety of reasons, it is often very helpful and desirable to know how other hospitals are 
operated. Metrics from these hospitals help us secure a good feel for how we are managed on 
multiple fronts. 
 
Our auditors, CliftonLarsenAllen, have suggested that there are five Wyoming hospitals that 
could very well be our comparator hospitals. Some are larger than Memorial and some are 
smaller. I think we should very seriously consider using various data elements from these 
hospitals to compare ourselves to. Below, I will provide just a few areas could explore in this 
regard. 
 
One subject area where we should keep using national and /or regional data, however, is with 
regard to physician salaries and perhaps salaries of selected professionals. 
 

Cash on Hand 
We all know that our bond covenants dictate that we need to have 75 days of cash on hand. As 
of July, 2018, we have 108 days of cash on hand. However, I’m not aware of any Board goal in 
this regard. I think there should be. Should it be 75 days minimum?  Should it be 100 days 
minimum? I would lean on Senior Management to recommend a minimum. In any event, I 
believe this is a benchmark that should be set by the Board. 
 

Annual Debt Service Coverage 
Again, the bond covenants dictate that this coverage ratio should be 1.25. As of July, it was 
2.75. I’m not aware of any Board goal in this regard. What should the number be as a goal? The 
minimum? No, of course. I would lean on Senior Management to recommend a minimum. As 
with cash on hand, I believe this is a benchmark that should be set by the Board. 
 

Operating Margin 
Much has been said about the Hospital’s operating margin. Operating margins are important to 
the financial health of the organization. Computationally, the FY 2019 budget shows a 1.9% 
operating margin. That number is easily manipulated. For example, if the two percent 
employee raise had not been plugged into the equation, the operating margin would be higher. 

Page 49 of 305



If significantly fewer patient days were assumed and then plugged into the equation, the 
operating margin would be lower. Numerous assumptions are made in the budget model. 
 
My primary question to the Board is this: What do you want as an operating margin going 
forward? What do you want Senior Management to strive to achieve? One could argue that the 
Board determined that the 1.9% product of the budget equation was OK for FY 2019. I would 
not take issue with this argument. However, there are other prongs to this very important 
matter. 
 
Our auditors suggest that Memorial Hospital strive to achieve an operating margin of 
approximately 3-4%. Do we as members of the Board want to see the operating margin 
increase over the next few years until we reach a desired level? 
 
The Board did not set an operating margin goal for Senior Management to work toward for FY 
2019. In my opinion, setting goals for an operating margin is an integral part of financial 
governance for a hospital board of trustees. This should be done not only for the immediate 
upcoming fiscal year, but also for a few years in the future. 
 

Salaries and Benefits 
For FY 2017, salary and benefit expenses per FTE employee for Memorial and for our 
“comparator” hospitals, as identified by our auditors were as follows: 
Wyoming Hospital A:  $83,656 
Wyoming Hospital B:  $95,992 
Wyoming Hospital C:  $92,591 
Wyoming Hospital D:  $99,654 
Wyoming Hospital E:  $100,478 
Memorial Hospital:  $108,333 
 
Of note, for FY 2018, Memorial’s S & B expense was $106,730. No data yet from the 
comparators. 
 
The mean average, in FY 2017 for the five comparator hospitals, was $94,400. Memorial’s S & B 
expenses were 14.7% higher than the average of the comparators. 
 
There are at least three potential reasons why Memorial’s salaries and benefits per FTE are 
considerably higher than the average of these comparators. 

 Higher Salaries and Wages 

 Higher Level of Benefits, perhaps higher health insurance and/or retirement 
contributions, for example 

 A combination of the above 
 
Unlike what typically occurs in an often rather high-profile way at most public institutions, at 
Memorial there was almost no discussion involving the Board of what salary increases should 

Page 50 of 305



be for the upcoming fiscal year. The Finance Committee met in May and went over the 
proposed FY 2019 budget which had a two percent raise plugged in. Then it was approved in 
June by the Board with little discussion or fanfare. 
 
It is my strong opinion that the Board needs to have good, comparative data regarding salaries 
and benefits before S & B decisions are made. (Data Informed Model) Salaries and benefits 
make up over 55% of the FY 2019 operating budget. Because of the huge expense involved, as 
well as employee recruitment and retention, this is an important Board matter and deserves 
more than a “minute or two” of discussion. Moreover, S & B expenses are critical to the bottom 
line. What should S & B increases be linked to? Lots of options.  I’m quite sure Senior 
Management talks about this a lot. But, my point is…where is the Board? 
 

Room Rates 
This is another area where the Board had virtually no input this year. Senior Management made 
a decision to not increase room rates for FY 2019 whereas in the past they were apparently 
increased 5% annually. 
 
My question is this: With an ever more cost conscience public due to higher out of pocket costs 
due at least in part to higher deductibles, people shop now more than ever. What should our 
room rates be? I have no clue. What are the room rates for our auditor-suggested “comparator 
hospitals”? For all I know, perhaps Senior Management has this data and uses it each year. 
 
Each year the University of Wyoming and the seven community colleges act on tuition 
increases. They do not, however, do it in a vacuum. These decisions are made by either a 
Coordinating or Governing Board…not staff. Careful comparisons are made with regional 
colleges and universities before a decision is made. It is my opinion we need to seek 
comparative data before acting. We as a Board need to know what others are doing. (Data 
Informed Model) This is good information to have, if for no other reason than to defend our 
decisions if the need arises. I think the Board should decide on room rates and this matter 
should be discussed well before numbers are plugged into the budget model. 
 

Sinking Funds and Medium Range Equipment Replacement Plan 
I haven’t yet asked the question: “Does the Hospital employ sinking funds to provide resources 
to pay for the replacement of certain equipment items, or is the process entirely “pay as you 
go”? My guess is we are on a “pay as you go” basis. A sinking fund is a fund into which the 
institution deposits money annually anticipating a future purchase. Typically, these funds would 
be used for the purchase of “big ticket” items. 
 
One example at Memorial comes immediately to mind. The Radiation Oncology department 
uses a very expensive item of equipment called a Linear Accelerator. I don’t know, but I am 
assuming this piece of equipment was purchased with bond proceeds. This piece of equipment 
will likely cost approximately $3,000,000 to replace, depending on what “bells and whistles” are 
on it. As it now operates, the physical life is many years. However, the problem is not physical 

Page 51 of 305



life, it is functional life given exploding technology. Functional obsolescence is a real problem in 
many domains, medical equipment not excepted. Already, there are a few advanced 
accelerators on the market (used by cutting edge hospitals) that are gaining popularity. 
 
I think it would be wise for the Board to consider the establishment of selected sinking funds 
for Senior Leadership to administer as part of a financial plan. What would the Hospital do if the 
need arises to buy such a piece of equipment? I know there are other expensive equipment 
items as well in the Hospital. (Comment: this is one reason why operating margins have 
significance!) 
 
The Board is responsible for both short term and long term capital and equipment strategies. I 
think we should at least ensure there is a plan in place to address these matters. 
 

Equipment Purchasing Prioritization 
The FY 2019 budget has $3,000,000 set aside for equipment purchases. The Board has not seen 
a comprehensive listing of equipment needs. (We did, however, receive a nice capital renewal 
listing a few months ago from Jim Horan) 
 
I am suggesting that the Board be provided with a listing of equipment needs the Hospital has, 
not prioritized by each piece of equipment, but rather placed in three levels: 

 Highest Priority, with total estimated cost 

 Medium Priority, with total estimated cost 

 Lowest Priority, with total estimated cost 
I would be surprised if the list does not exceed $3,000,000. 
 
Each month the Finance Committee and subsequently the Board is presented with a list of 
requested equipment items. It would be nice to have a reference point as we consider these 
requests. 
 

Clinic Financial Performance 
We all know the Clinic is losing a substantial amount of money each year. Below are the 
numbers (rounded): 
FY 2018: $4,300,000 
FY 2017: $8,000,000 
FY 2016: $3,400,000 
 
FY 2017 was likely an outlier…an aberration. It is interesting to me that the Clinic lost about 
$900,000 more in FY 2018 than in FY 2016. Too early to see a trend and we need to keep on top 
of this part of the Hospital’s operations. Where are we headed in FY 2019? 
 
I think the Board would benefit from Senior Leadership addressing this issue, giving us some 
insights and possibly some projections and future plans.  
 

Page 52 of 305



 
 
Selected Strategic Plan Items 
To effectively (and realistically) address Jim Horan’s long list of capital renewal items, securing 
6th cent funding may well be our best shot at getting adequate funding to meet several of these 
needs. Yes, we can spread the expenses out over time, but with competing medical equipment 
needs and small (or no) operating margins, the task will be challenging. 
 
We must be careful to not “shoot ourselves in the foot” politically or otherwise over the next 
period of time. We do not have a lot of time to put together a package for consideration by the 
Board of County Commissioners. 
 
Maintaining and then improving our Standard and Poors rating over time is a worthwhile goal. 
But, I can tell you, it is often a moving target. The institution must develop a very good 
relationship with the first level S & P contacts with the Hospital in order to have a fighting 
chance of getting a good recommendation from them to the S & P approving committee. 
 

Board Budget Workshops with Senior Leadership 
In my opinion, and as it is done with most all public entities, I think the Board needs to have a 
major budget workshop in late January of each year with Senior Leadership to go over 
comparative data, to listen to Senior Leadership’s concerns, to give direction as determined 
appropriate, and to formulate fiscal strategies. This will likely be a several hour meeting. 
Another meeting may well be needed in late March or April, depending on issues. The 
outcomes of these workshops should prove worthwhile to Senior Leadership as they then work 
to present a proposed budget to the Finance Committee in May. 
 

Summary 
We need to get more involved as a Board. The Finance Committee can follow-up on things and 
bring things to the Board’s attention for action or for information. But, I believe we need to do 
more as a Governing Board to meet our obligations to the public and to give guidance and 
direction to Senior Leadership. In my opinion, Senior Leadership deserves more direction from 
us. 
 
Again, let me reiterate. This document is not meant to be critical. We have great people in 
Senior Leadership and on the Board who are doing good work. I am simply providing some 
things I feel are important for the Board to consider. 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 53 of 305



Page 54 of 305



Page 55 of 305



Page 56 of 305



Page 57 of 305



 

Board Procedure: Board Agenda  

                                                                                                                                     
                                                                                         

Category: Governance Committee 
Title: Board Agenda 
Original adoption:  
Revision:  
 

             

1. Amending the agenda.  It is recommended that the only permissible action be changing the 

order of the agenda items. However, in the case of a true emergency, agenda items may be 

added or deleted. 

2. Agenda items added by individual board members. 

a. If an individual board member has an item that s/he wishes to add, either for discussion 

or action, it is recommended that the person send the item to the CEO and the Board 

chair for inclusion in that month’s agenda. The item will be placed on the agenda and 

discussed at that month’s meeting, but no action will be taken. Any action to be taken 

will occur at the following month, as part of Old Business. 

b. The alternative method is for the individual to bring the agenda item to the appropriate 

board committee. The committee, then, as part of its routine business recommends that 

the item come before the board for consideration. Once placed on the board agenda, 

the item will be discussed at that month’s meeting, and any action to be taken will occur 

on at the following month, as part of Old Business.  

 

Board of Trustees Orientation and Resource Handbook 

Page 58 of 305



 

 

Board Procedure: E-mail Communication  

                                                                                                                                     
                                                                                         

Category: Governance Committee 
Title: E-mail Communication 
Original adoption:  
Revision:  
 

    

Procedure for communicating with each other by email regarding the Board’s business. Individual 
comments regarding any agenda item, including those placed by individual board members, are to be 
emailed to the CEO’s administrative assistant. So that everyone, including the public can see them, the 
comments will be included in that month’s board meeting packet. 

Board of Trustees Orientation and Resource Handbook 

Page 59 of 305



Quality Committee Summary Report- MHSC Quality Dashboard 
October 2018 

QUALITY-CONFIDENTIAL 

MHSC Quality Dashboard 

Background. The MHSC Quality Dashboard is a monthly snapshot of measures that reflect the quality 

and safety of patient care at MHSC. Metrics include internal goals and opportunities for improvement 

that have been identified by teams and outlined in the annual Quality Assessment Performance 

Improvement Plan (QAPI). Other metrics are defined, prioritized and benchmarked by the Centers for 

Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), The Joint Commission (TJC) and/or MIDAS comparative 

databases. Measures may be added, changed or re-evaluated annually, at a minimum, to best represent 

outcomes and goals. The data is used by the hospital to identify improvement opportunities, evaluate 

trends, and assist in moving MSHC towards strategic initiatives. Data is represented monthly, with the 

most recent, completed data. There is a lag in completion of data as teams have to manually abstract 

and collect the information. While a lag in the data exists on the dashboard, internal teams are still 

monitoring and responding to deviations from expected as occurrences arise in real time. The current 

dashboard reflects elements of CMS’ Star Rating program as part of the strategic plan.  

 

CMS Star Ratings- Overall Hospital 

Mortality. No deviations from expected. Mortality rates similar to comparison benchmarks.  

 

Readmission. Pneumonia readmission rate at 16.67% in August, up from 12.5% July. The 16.67% 

readmission reflects 1 patient readmission for the month of August.  

 

Safety of Care. Refer to safety report.  

 

Infection prevention. No data reported for August, still in progress.    

 

Efficient Use of Medical Imaging. Case review from OP-10 reveals opportunities for improvement. A 

goal has been set and added to the QAPI work plan. Data criteria built into MIDAS to capture concurrent 

performance as of October. Performance of measure added to physician peer review process for review 

of cases when triggered as of October.  

 

Timeliness of Care. Median time for ED arrival to ED departure for admitted patients was 310 minutes in 

August, down from 331 minutes in July. Current goal is to be under 250 minutes.  Average composite 

time for past six months is 312 minutes. Median time from admit decision time to departure was 131 

minutes in August, trending down from 145.9 minutes in July and 167.5 minutes in June. MHSC goal is 

75 minutes. Interventions for improvement include: Patient feedback surveys started 7/10/18 to provide 

sample of patient perspective feedback in real time. Bedside hand-off and report began 9/10/2018 

between ED and Medical floor transfers. ED and inpatient teams working through cycles of change and 

addressing barriers in new hand-off process. LEAN process implementation planned for future, pending 

initiation of contract for LEAN education.  

 

Median time from ED arrival to ED departure for discharged patients at 155 minutes in August, down 

from 156 minutes in July. MHSC goal is 100 minutes.  

 

Page 60 of 305



Quality Committee Summary Report- MHSC Quality Dashboard 
October 2018 

QUALITY-CONFIDENTIAL 

Median time to ECG at 9 minutes in August, compared to 9 minutes in July. MHSC goal is 7 minutes or 

less.  Work team in place. Bedside triage taking place. Testing use of walkie talkie devices as of October 

to expedite communicate necessity of immediate EKG upon patient arrival when indicated.  

 

Effectiveness of Care. Influenza vaccine coverage among healthcare personnel at 75% for last flu season, 

with MHSC goal of 85%. Hospital newsletter sent out in September to begin preparation and heighten 

awareness of importance. Employee Health nurse actively rounding and performing vaccinations for 

employees.  

 

Colonoscopy follow-up for average risk patients at 66.67% in August, down from 75% in July. August rate 

reflective of 2 cases not having appropriate documentation out of 3 for the month. Physician has been 

notified of documentation necessity and provided performance feedback. Data shared with surgery 

department. Indicator placed on medical staff peer review list for review.  

 

QUALITY ASSESSMENT PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT (QAPI) 

Opportunities for improvement.  

Meaningful Use. Informatics has identified a 90-day reporting period where data meets benchmarks for 

successful reporting.  Reporting to begin in February 2019 for 2018 performance.  

 

 

Patient Experience. Refer to HCAHPS report.   

 

 

 

Page 61 of 305



 

  Page 1 of 1 

Confidential   11/3/2018 

Quality Committee Meeting 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

October 17, 2018 

 
  

Present:  Clayton Radakovich, Suzan Campbell, Dr. Barbara Sowada, Marty Kelsey, Irene 

Richardson, Kari Quickenden, Dr. Cielette Karn, Dr. Banu Symington, Dr. Kristy 

Nielson, Leslie Taylor, Tami Love, Amanda Molski 

 

Guest: Richard Mathey 

 

Absent/Excused:   

 

Chair:   Dr. Barbara Sowada   

 

 

Call to Order 

Dr. Sowada called the meeting to order at 8:00 am. 

 

Minutes 

The September 19, 2018 Quality Meeting Minutes were presented. Mr. Kelsey moved to approve, 

Dr. Symington seconded. Motion carried. 

 

Governance Quality Engagement Diagnostic 

Dr. Sowada opened the conversation on section 4 of the Governance Quality Engagement 

Diagnostic – “Change the environment, policies, and culture”. Mr. Radakovich noted that with 

the current strategic plan we have moved away from #37, where we overwhelm staff with 

MANY little projects. Ms. Richardson referred to #42 and suggested that the Quality Report be 

moved ahead of the Finance report in the Agenda for Board meetings; we should show that 

Quality is important. Finance is also important, but Quality should drive us. 

 

Education: The Board’s Role in Safety 

Dr. Sowada presented a PowerPoint on “The Board’s Role in Safety”. (see attached) 

 

Next Meeting 

Robin Fife noted that the next meeting falls on the day before Thanksgiving. Committee 

determined changing to the week before would be preferred. Ms. Fife will check classroom 

availability and notify the Committee. 

 
Meeting Adjourned  The meeting adjourned at 10:00 am 

 

 

Next Meeting   November 21, 2018 at 0800 am, CR 1 & 2 

 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

_____________________________________________      

Robin Fife, Recording Secretary 

 

Page 62 of 305



Page 63 of 305



Page 64 of 305



Page 65 of 305



Page 66 of 305



Page 67 of 305



Page 68 of 305



Page 69 of 305



Page 70 of 305



Page 71 of 305



Page 72 of 305



Page 73 of 305



Page 74 of 305



Page 75 of 305



Page 76 of 305



Page 77 of 305



Page 78 of 305



Page 79 of 305



Page 80 of 305



Page 81 of 305



Page 82 of 305



Page 83 of 305



Page 84 of 305



Page 85 of 305



Page 86 of 305



Page 87 of 305



Page 88 of 305



Page 89 of 305



Page 90 of 305



Page 91 of 305



Page 92 of 305



Page 93 of 305



Page 94 of 305



Page 95 of 305



Page 96 of 305



Page 97 of 305



Page 98 of 305



Page 99 of 305



Page 100 of 305



Page 101 of 305



Page 102 of 305



Page 103 of 305



Page 104 of 305



Page 105 of 305



Page 106 of 305



Page 107 of 305



Page 108 of 305



Page 109 of 305



Page 110 of 305



Page 111 of 305



Page 112 of 305



Monday - October 29, 2018 Finance & Audit
Committee Meeting

%date

Classrooms 1 & 2

Page 113 of 305



Agenda
 

 

II. Approve Meeting Minutes Marty
Kelsey

CAPITAL REQUESTS October 29.xls
 

 
FY19-14.pdf
 

 
FY19-15.pdf
 

 
FY19-16.pdf
 

 
19 CAPITAL.xlsx
 

 

III. Capital Requests FY19 Marty
Kelsey

IV. Building Project Review James
Horan

V. IT Report Rich Tyler

NARRATIVE TO SEPTEMBER 2018 FINANCIALS.doc
 

 
FY19 FINANCIALS COMBINED - Sept 2018.pdf
 

 
FY19 Other Operating Revenue Detail.xlsx
 

 
CLINIC NARRATIVE TO SEPTEMBER 2018
FINANCIALS.doc
 

 

FY19 FINANCIALS CLINIC- Sept 2018.pdf
 

 
FY19 FINANCIALS HOSPITAL-Sept 2018.pdf
 

 
Key Financial Ratio Definitions.pdf
 

 
19 Board Graphs Sept.pdf
 

 
19 MHSC STATISTICS-Sept.pdf
 

 
19 FTE REPORT - 093018.pdf
 

 
19 PAYOR MIX-SEPT.pdf
 

 
Days in AR-Sept.pdf

1. Financial reports and Narratives Tami Love

A. Monthly Financial Statements & Statistical Data Tami Love

VI. Financial Report  

Agenda Finance Comm October 29, 2018.docx
 

 
I. Call Meeting to Order Marty

Kelsey

Finance and Audit Comm Draft Minutes September 26 2018.doc
 

 

Capital Priority by Quarter.pdf
 

 

Building and Grounds-Sept.pdf
 

 

IT Report Oct.docx
 

 

Meeting Book - Monday - October 29, 2018 Finance & Audit Committee Meeting

Agenda

Page 114 of 305



  
19 DAYS OF CASH & CASH VS EXPENSES-SEPT.pdf
 

 
19 BOARD LEGAL EXPENSE -SEPT.pdf
 

 
19 Cash Disbursements-Sept.pdf
 

 

19 INVESTMENT SUMMARY 09-30-18.pdf
 

 
Investment policy current - 1996.pdf
 

 
Investment Policy-Draft.pdf
 

 
Investment Plan 102918.docx
 

 

B. Approve Investment Report Tami Love

2. County Title 25 and Maintenance Voucher Ron
Cheese

1. Preliminary Bad Debt Ron
Cheese

C. Other Business
 

 

2. Budget Adherence Tami Love

Investment Proposal 093018.pdf
 

 

VII. Old Business  

VIII. New Business  

FY19 County Maintenance & Title 25 Voucher-Sept.pdf
 

 

Restricted Fund Accounts.pdf
 

 

A. Financial Forum Discussions Marty
Kelsey

IX. Adjournment Marty
Kelsey

Page 115 of 305



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE AGENDA 
  

Monday ~ October 29, 2018  4:00 p.m.   Classrooms 1 & 2 
      

   Voting Members:     Non-Voting Members: 
  Marty Kelsey, Chairman  

Taylor Jones 
Irene Richardson 
Tami Love 
Jan Layne 

       Ron Cheese 
       Angel Bennett 
       Rich Tyler 
 

Kristy Nielson 
Kari Quickenden 
Suzan Campbell 
Dr. Larry Lauridsen 
Dr. Augusto Jamias 

  Guests:                        

 John Kolb, Commission 
Tracie Soller 

 Jim Horan 
Amber Fisk 

Leslie Taylor 
Alisha Mackie 

     

I. Call Meeting to Order      Marty Kelsey 

II. Approve September 26, 2018 Meeting Minutes   Marty Kelsey 

III. Capital Requests FY 19      Marty Kelsey 

IV. Building Project Review      Jim Horan     

V. IT Report        Rich Tyler 

VI. Financial Report        

A. Monthly Financial Statements & Statistical Data   

1. Narratives       Tami Love 

2.  Budget Adherence      Tami Love   

B. Approve Investment Report     Marty Kelsey 

1.  Investment Policy      Tami Love 

2.  Investment Plan      Tami Love 

C. Other Business 

1.   Preliminary Bad Debt      Ron Cheese 

  2.  Title 25 County Voucher     Ron Cheese 

     VII.  Old Business  

A.  Comparator Hospitals      Marty Kelsey 

B.  Restricted fund accounts donated to Foundation   Tami Love 

VIII.  New Business 

A.  Financial Forum Discussion      Marty Kelsey 

1. Capital Equipment Plan     Marty Kelsey 

             

IX.   Adjournment       Marty Kelsey  

        

Page 116 of 305



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Finance & Audit Committee Meeting 

September 26, 2018 
 

 

Voting Members Present:  Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee - Chair 

Mr. Taylor Jones, Trustee 

Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

Ms. Jan Layne, Controller 

 

Voting Members Absent:  Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO 

           

Non-Voting Members Present: Ms. Kari Quickenden, CCO 

     Dr. Kristy Nielson, CNO 

Mr. Ron Cheese, Director of Patient Financial Services 

Mr. Rich Tyler, Director of Information Technology 

Dr. Larry Lauridsen 
 

Non-Voting Members Absent: Ms. Angel Bennett, Director of Materials Management 

Dr. Augusto Jamias 
      

Guests:    Ms. Bethany Bettolo, Nursing Informatics 

Ms. Suzan Campbell, Chief Legal Exec/General Counsel 

Ms. Leslie Taylor, Clinic Director 

Mr. Jim Horan, Facilities Director 

     Mr. Darryn McGarvey, CliftonLarsonAllen via telephone 

     Mr. Tyler Johnson, CliftonLarsonAllen via telephone 

 

 

Call Meeting to Order 
 

Mr. Kelsey called the meeting to order.   
 

Approve Meeting Minutes 
 

A motion to approve the meeting minutes of August 29, 2018, as presented was made by Ms. 

Love; second by Ms. Layne. Motion carried.  
 

Audit FY18 

 

Mr. Johnson and Mr. McGarvey joined the meeting via telephone and reviewed the Draft 

Combined Financial Statements and reviewed an Audit Power Point presentation. They said they 

would review the information in further detail at the October Board of Trustees meeting. Mr. 

McGarvey said the Hospital essentially produced more revenue with less salary and wage 

expense. He said it was a fantastic job by everyone in the organization to get back on the right 

footing from a financial perspective. Mr. Johnson thanked everyone in the organization involved 

in the audit process. Mr. Jones asked where we compare to other comparable hospitals. Mr. 

McGarvey said they can “blind” their information and are happy to share that information with 

the Hospital. He said the Hospital should focus on driving cash-flow. Mr. Kelsey said the 

auditors told him in the exit interview there were five hospitals we could be compared to and Mr. 

Kelsey would like that information. Mr. Kelsey asked Mr. McGarvey to provide that information 

Page 117 of 305



 

 

Minutes of the September 26, 2018 Finance & Audit Committee 

Page 2 

to Ms. Richardson. Mr. Kelsey thanked everyone with a role in turning things around and said it 

was excellent work.  

 

Capital Requests FY 18 
 

Mr. Tyler reviewed request FY 19-8 for a version upgrade to QCPR for $238,700. He said we 

have put it off as long as we can. Ms. Love said the amount requested includes some estimates 

for travel of $4,400. She said the annual support is operational and not included in the capital 

request amount. Ms. Love said she would revise the amount on the request to $234,300. The 

motion to approve the request as revised to forward to the Board of Trustees for review and a 

request for approval was made by Mr. Jones; second by Ms. Layne. Motion carried. 

 

Mr. Tyler reviewed request FY 19-9 to expand the virtual server for $155,842.67. Mr. Kelsey 

asked Mr. Tyler to include the second quote in the information forwarded to the Board. 

(Following the meeting, Mr. Kelsey asked Ms. Love via e-mail to clarify the CDW quote total of 

$156,667.73 and include in the minutes.) Ms. Love will check the “budgeted” box on the form. 

The motion to approve the request as discussed to forward to the Board of Trustees for review 

and a request for approval was made by Mr. Jones; second by Ms. Love. Motion carried.  

 

Building and Grounds Committee Report 
 

Mr. Horan said the Building and Grounds Committee had a rather long meeting with a lively 

discussion of maintenance metrics. He said from now on reports will include the metrics 

requested. Mr. Kelsey asked how much additional burden did the request place on Mr. Horan and 

his staff. Mr. Horan said we are striving to make sure we give meaningful information. He said 

the group came to an understanding of what is the point of providing the information.  

 

IT Report 
 

Mr. Tyler reviewed his report in the meeting packet. He said the audio visual upgrades for the 

classrooms are on hold for now. Mr. Tyler said we received the final report from the IT risk 

assessment and he will forward the information to the full Board. He said he is reaching out to 

the Wyoming Health Information Exchange.  
 

Financial Report 
 

Monthly Finance Statements & Statistical Data 
 

Ms. Love reviewed the narrative and financial highlights included in the meeting packet.  

 

Approve Investment Report 
 

The motion to approve investments as presented to forward to the Board for review and a request 

for approval was made by Mr. Jones; second by Ms. Layne. Motion carried.  

 

Ms. Love reported on an MHSC investment policy she found from 1996. The information is not 

in Policy Stat. She asked Mr. Robb Slaughter, County Treasurer, to send her a copy of the 

County’s policy. Ms. Love said she cleaned up the 1996 policy and the update is very close to 

the original. She forwarded the updated proposed draft to Mr. Kelsey. Mr. Kelsey said we have 

Page 118 of 305



 

 

Minutes of the September 26, 2018 Finance & Audit Committee 

Page 3 

been talking about the Bank of the West and moving money. He said this will be on the October 

3 Board agenda. Mr. Kelsey said he asked Mr. Jim Phillips, Board Legal Counsel, for his legal 

opinion on the investment policy Ms. Love forwarded to him. Mr. Kelsey said Mr. Phillips told 

him there is nothing in the policy that would prohibit us from moving our money. Ms. Love said 

her recommendation is to keep some money liquid. There was discussion about confusion and 

concern of what is currently in effect and what was sent to Mr. Phillips for review. Ms. Love said 

she will send the 1996 policy to Mr. Kelsey and Mr. Jones to review and compare to the updated 

information she sent to them that included some clean-up revisions.  

 

Other Business 
 

Mr. Cheese distributed the preliminary bad debt information of $994,211 for review. The motion 

to forward the information to the Board for review and approval was made by Mr. Jones; second 

by Ms. Love. Motion carried.  

 

Mr. Cheese reported Title 25 related vouchers have been forwarded to the County. $19,080.15 

was submitted on August 7. $16,565.66 was submitted in September. Neither amount has been 

paid by the County to-date. 

 

Ms. Love said we have submitted vouchers to the County for maintenance for $61,971.99 and we 

have not received payment to-date. 

 

New Business 
 

Financial Forum Discussion 
 

Mr. Kelsey said he has talked with Ms. Richardson and Mr. Richard Mathey. For a variety of 

reasons and for the purpose to see where we stand with like hospitals, he would like staff to 

come up with a list of five comparative hospitals. Mr. Kelsey said he is asking this committee 

and in particular Ms. Richardson, Ms. Love and Dr. Nielson to come back to the October 

committee meeting with the names of five hospitals that in our best professional opinion are 

comparable to our hospital to look at different metrics to see how we compare. He said the 

information won’t necessarily drive decisions. Mr. Jones said it is like a weather vane. He said a 

lot of “low-lying fruit” is gone. Mr. Jones said if someone approaches him with a question of, 

“where do you see the hospital in five years?” he wants to have an answer. Mr. Kelsey said the 

auditors are probably not the best source for the information. He said staff can get information 

from public hospitals. Ms. Love said there are 26 hospitals in our area and 20 are critical access. 

Ms. Taylor said it might take more than a month to gather the requested information. Mr. Kelsey 

told staff to do their best, please work on it diligently, and sooner than later. He said he doesn’t 

want to burden anyone but he feels it is important.  

 

Due to the timing of Halloween, the October committee meeting is moved to Monday, October 

29 at 4:00 PM. 

 

With no further business, the meeting adjourned at 5:55 PM. 

 

 
 

Submitted by Cindy Nelson 

Page 119 of 305



 YTD CAPITAL 

APPROVED 

 GRANT OR 

DONATION 

REIMBURSED 

 2019 

APPROVED 

BUDGET REMAINING YTD BALANCE

AS OF SEPTEMBER 2018 843,567.00      -                               3,000,000.00      2,156,433.00                                

CAPITAL 

REQUEST # REQUESTED ITEM/REQUESTOR

 AMOUNT 

REQUESTED COMMENTS

FY19-14 DR Bridge Program - Enterprise CR 27,891.00        

Tracie Soller

FY19-15 Steris V-Pro Max sterilizer 111,829.00      

Alisha Mackie

FY19-16 Healthcare Source HT 34,025.00        

Amber Fisk

TOTAL AMOUNT REQUESTED 145,854.00      -                               -                      

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE REQUESTS

MONDAY ~ OCTOBER 29, 2018

Page 120 of 305



Page 121 of 305



Page 122 of 305



Page 123 of 305



Page 124 of 305



Page 125 of 305



Page 126 of 305



Page 127 of 305



Page 128 of 305



Page 129 of 305



Page 130 of 305



Page 131 of 305



Page 132 of 305



Page 133 of 305



Page 134 of 305



Page 135 of 305



Page 136 of 305



Page 137 of 305



Page 138 of 305



Page 139 of 305



Page 140 of 305



Page 141 of 305



Page 142 of 305



Page 143 of 305



Page 144 of 305



Page 145 of 305



Page 146 of 305



Page 147 of 305



Page 148 of 305



Page 149 of 305



MHSC Capital Budget for FYE 6/30/2019

Department ITEM Approved  Purch/Amt Variance FY#

Facilities MOB Duct Renovation 278,240                  27,327              (250,913)              FY19-1

Cancer Center Looking Glass/ARIA equipment 9,168                      9,168                -                       FY19-2

Urology Flexible Video Cystoscope 29,984                    29,984              -                       FY19-4

IT Desktop Computers 55,938                    55,223              (715)                     FY19-5

IT Laptop Computers 32,652                    32,652              -                       FY19-6

Cancer Center Looking Glass/ARIA equipment 1,476                      1,020                (455)                     FY19-7

IT Quadramed Electronic Health Record Upgrade 234,300                  234,300            -                       FY19-8

IT Virtual Server Upgrade 155,843                  155,843            -                       FY19-9

Facilities 2019 Can Am 4 Wheeler w/ Plow 6,987                      6,987                -                       FY19-10

IT WAN Bandwith upgrade 16,985                    16,985              -                       FY19-11

IT iPrism internet content filter appliance 21,995                    21,995              -                       FY19-12

Respiratory Trilogy Transport Ventilator 11,697                    FY19-13

-                       
-                       

Total Budgeted 3,000,000 855,264             591,484       (252,083)         

Capital Expenditure Dollars Authorized 855,264      

Less Donated Capital

     FY19-13 Trilogy Transport Ventilator Foundation purchase (11,697)      

(11,697)      

Net Capital Outlay FYTD 2019 843,567      

Remaining Balance FY2019 Capital Budget 2,156,433   

Page 150 of 305



Capital Expenditures Budget
Budget For The Year Ending 6/30/2019

Department Requested Item Priority
Number of 

Units
Capital 
Budget Notes FY#

Quarter 1:   July - September
MAINTENANCE MOB duct return project 1 1 $278,240 approved FY19-1
IT Looking Glass equipment $9,168 approved FY19-2
CLINIC - Urology Cystoscope 1 $29,984 approved FY19-4
IT Desktop Computers and Monitors 3 50 $55,938 approved FY19-5
IT Laptops for Providers and Replacements 2 18 $32,652 approved FY19-6
IT Looking Glass equipment $1,438 approved FY19-7
IT Upgrade QCPR to Version 6.2 4 1 $234,300 approved FY19-8
IT Virtual Environment upgrade 1 $155,843 approved FY19-9
IT WAN Bandwith upgrade 5 1 $16,985 approved FY19-11
IT iPrism internet content filter appliance 5 1 $21,995 approved FY19-12

$836,543 $836,543

Quarter 2:   October - December
MAINTENANCE 2019 Can-Am 4-wheeler with Snow Plow 1 $6,987 approved FY19-10
HR Healthcare Source HT 1 1 $34,025 FY19-16
RADIOLOGY DR Bridge Program Enterprise CR 1 1 $27,891 FY19-14
SURGERY V-Pro Max Sterilizer 4 1 $111,829 FY19-15
IT Upgrade Mirth appliances $12,000 approved FY19-18
CANCER CENTER Centricity software update $9,852 approved FY19-17
MAINTENANCE Central Plant Upgrade  phase 1 6 1 $269,000
IT Replace Core Network Switches 6 1 $80,269
LABORATORY Automated Urinalysis Analyzer 1 1 $130,195
IT QCPR Server upgrade 7 1 $120,000

$802,048 $1,638,591

Quarter 3:   January - March
SURGERY Endoscopic System Replacement 3 1 $331,834
MAINTENANCE - Other Depts Enginering Medical Imaging remodel 5 1 $15,000
MAINTENANCE - Other Depts OR Architectrual/Engineering/Redesign of patient spaces 8 1 $90,000
MAINTENANCE IT Heat Resolution 7 1 $85,000

Page 151 of 305



CARDIOPULMONARY Muse Cardiology IS 1 1 $174,094
OB Fetal Monitor Carts 1 1 $9,095 possible grant
BLOOD BANK Automated Blood Bank Analyzer 1 1 $113,500
LABORATORY Fluorescent Microscope 5 1 $7,371
BLOOD BANK Blood Bank double door refrigerator 4 1 $13,196

$839,090 $2,477,681

Quarter 4:   April - June
RADIOLOGY Digital Portable X-Ray Unit #2 2 1 $172,535 possible grant
RADIOLOGY Digital Portable X-Ray Unit #1 3 1 $172,535 possible grant
RADIOLOGY-ECHO EPIC 7C Cardiac Ultrasound System 4 1 $151,557
RADIATION ONCOLOGY Sterotactic Cone System 2 1 $96,015
OB Wireless Fetal Monitor 2 1 $5,308 possible grant
SECURITY Replace old Inet Operating Control Boards 1 1 $35,454
LABORATORY Centrifuge, replacement 3 1 $6,810
LABORATORY Refrigerator 4 1 $7,196
BLOOD BANK Blood Bank  -20 degrees freezer 3 1 $10,573
RADIOLOGY DR for the GE Precision 500 5 1 $88,560
DIETARY Refrigeration Unit For Cooks Line 3 1 $12,889
DIETARY Conveyor Belt Dishwasher 4 1 $47,000
DIETARY Posiflex 2 5 1 $5,079

$811,511 $3,289,192

Grants 345,000.00         Helmsley

MAINTENANCE-College Hill Fire Notification System 2 1 $24,957 tabled FY19-3

DIETARY Walk-In Cooler and Freezer Units/Including Renovation 1 1 $81,588 Foundation FY19-19
SURGERY Percutaneous Nephrolithotomy System 2 1 $11,920 Foundation
LABORATORY  -20 degrees freezer 2 1 $7,088 Foundation
BLOOD BANK Blood Bank Cell Washer 2 1 $7,403 Foundation
RESPIRATORY Respironics Trilogy Vent 2 1 $11,687 Foundation FY19-13
RADIATION ONCOLOGY 18x Photon Beam 1 1 $35,512 Foundation
SURGERY Pediatric Foreign Body Removal 1 1 $31,453 Foundation
CLINIC Wall mounted otoscopes and opthalmoscopes 32 $11,002 Foundation FY19-20

$197,653

Page 152 of 305



Page 153 of 305



Finance and Audit Committee 

IT report 

October 2018 

Rich Tyler 

1. Tsystem production environment has been upgraded to the latest version. 

2. Kicked off auditing software implementation.  Currently looking at a go-live in March 

2019. 

3. Continuing working with the Cancer Center team and Pharmacy team to implement the 

new Looking Glass software.  Also working to implement Varian Aria for the medical 

oncology department.  Possible go-live in Jan 2019. 

4. Upgraded Iprism content filter and Fatpipe WAN aggregation device in preparation to 

upgrade internet speed to 1Gig.   Waiting on AllWest to schedule an install and provide 

us with an activation date. 

5. Kicked off implementation to connect to Wyoming HIE (Health Information Exchange).  

Currently sending example interface messages and working with vendors to verify data 

structure.  I was also voted in to service on the executive committee of the Wyoming 

HIE. 

6. Set up a webinar with a few providers to explain what the Utah state HIE currently 

offers us, and how they can utilize it to retrieve patient information submitted by 

hospitals and providers throughout Utah.   

7. Took delivery of 50 desktops/monitors as well as new laptops for the providers. 

Currently working on imaging those and preparing for a roll out of the laptops.  The 

desktops will be rolled out as needed and to replace older computers throughout the 

facility. 

8.  Scheduled to take delivery of virtual server expansion hardware in November to allow 

for server migration and growth. 

9. Finalizing quotes to migrate Mirth Connect (interface engine) from current outdated 

appliances to new virtual environment. 

10. Investigating new Antivirus software with possible implementation in December or 

January.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 154 of 305



IT News and Info: 

1. The files of an estimated 75,000 individuals were accessed in a breach of Healthcare.gov 

for ACA enrollment according to CMS.  CMS on behalf of HHS (Dept of Health and 

Human Services), has the authority to investigate and audit hospitals and providers for 

compliance with HIPAA standards and security rules. 

2. The Fetal Diagnostic Institute of the Pacific (Hawaii) was hit with ransomware in June 

that potentially breached the data of 40,800 patients. 

3. Portland Oregon based Legacy Health notifies 38,000 patients that a phishing attack 

may have breached their data. 

4. UnityPoint Health in Wisconsin is notifying 1.4 million patients that their records may 

have been breached when its business system was compromised by a phishing attack. 

5. Anthem Health was breached back in 2015 and exposed PHI of 79 million people.  The 

department of Health and Human Services, DHS, settled the case and Anthem agreed to 

pay DHS $16 million for the data breach.  Also, Anthem has agreed to pay $115 million 

to settle lawsuits over that data breach. 

Page 155 of 305



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

ROCK SPRINGS, WY 

 

 

To: Finance & Audit Committee  October 15, 2018 

From: Tami Love, CFO 

 

 

NARRATIVE TO SEPTEMBER 2018 FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

 

 

THE BOTTOM LINE.    The bottom line from operations for September was a gain of 

$169,755, compared to a gain of $183,589 in the budget.  This yields a 2.48% operating 

margin for the month compared to 2.48% in the budget. The YTD net operating gain is 

$672,576, compared to a gain of $105,889 in the budget.  This represents a YTD 

operating margin of 3.08% compared with .48% in the budget.   

 

The total net gain for the month was $64,310, compared to a gain of $91,254 in the 

budget.  The YTD total net gain is $408,302, compared to a loss of $171,114.  This 

represents a YTD total profit margin of 1.87% compared with -.78% in the budget.  

 

Annual Debt Service Coverage came in at 3.27.  The existing bond covenants require that 

we maintain Debt Service Coverage of 1.25 for compliance.   

 

VOLUME.  Average inpatient census for the month was 10.4; under budget by .8. YTD 

average census is 11.6 compared to 11.5 in the budget and 16.1 in the prior year. 

 

Inpatient surgeries were 5 under budget at 25 and outpatient surgeries were 17 under 

budget at 124.   There were 6,027 outpatient visits, under budget by 109.     

 

Total ER visits were 1,274, under budget by 45.  There were 47 newborns in September, 

over budget by 15. Births are under budget by 16 year to date.     

  

REVENUE.  Revenue for the month was $11,968,383, under budget by $1,516,073.  

Inpatient revenue was under budget by $418,338, outpatient revenue was under budget by 

$932,470 and the employed Provider Clinic was over budget by $165,265. 

 

YTD total revenue was $39,886,527, under budget by $437,955.  Inpatient revenue is 

under budget by $492,581, outpatient revenue is over budget by $14,823 and the Provider 

Clinic is over budget by $39,803.   

 

Net patient revenue for the month was $6,179,587, under budget by $993,473.  YTD net 

patient revenue was $20,855,083, under budget by $538,555.   

 

Deductions from revenue were booked at 48.4% for September compared to 46.8% in the 

budget.  YTD deductions from revenue are 47.7%, compared to 47% in the budget and 

47.7% for the same period in FY 2018.    

 

 

Page 156 of 305



EXPENSES.  Total expenses for the month were $6,687,900 under budget by $528,656.   

All expense categories were under budget for September except Insurance expense and 

Leases and Rentals. 

 

Insurance expense – This expense is over budget by $5,842 and over budget 

$15,180 year to date.    

Leases and Rentals -  This expense is over budget by $13,326 and remains over 

budget year to date.   

 

Through three months, the daily cash expense is at $210,000, down from a high of 

$236,000 in last fiscal year. 

 

BALANCE SHEET.  Operating cash at month end was $16,584,209, an increase of 

$2,490,165 from August. Collections for the month of September were $7,609,891.  The 

Days of Cash on Hand increased in September to 122, up thirteen days from August.  The 

existing bond covenants require that we maintain 75 days of cash on hand for 

compliance.   

   

Gross receivables at month end were $21,945,462, a decrease of $4,213,721 from the 

prior month.  Net patient receivables at month end were $11,410,718, down $1,482,245 

from last month.  Days in Receivables are 50 for September, down 6 days from August.  

 

OUTLOOK FOR OCTOBER.  Gross revenue is projected to come in under budget in 

the Hospital and the Clinic. Inpatient admits, Patient days, Infusions, Chemo and Lab and 

other Outpatient visits are all projecting to come in close to budget. Surgeries, ER visits, 

Births and Clinic visits are projecting to be under budget in September. Gross patient 

revenue is projecting to come in at $12.8M, with net revenue projecting to $6.8M, both 

under budget. Collections are projecting to come in at $6.4M, which is under budget. 

With expenses expected to come in around $7M, we are projecting to a breakeven month 

in October.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 157 of 305



TRENDS IN HEALTH CARE FINANCE.   

  

Medicaid Eligibility and Reimbursement 

 

CMS recently reported plans to approve more of the pending work requirement waivers 

for Medicaid enrollees.  State waivers that require work or other community engagement 

activities have been approved in four states, with seven other states’ waivers being 

reviewed by CMS.  With Medicaid expansion under the Affordable Care Act in 2016, a 

recent projection shows Medicaid spending reaching $1 trillion by 2026.  Federal 

scrutiny has risen with the increase in both the number of Medicaid plans and the number 

of beneficiaries that are covered by those plans.  CMS has announced the launch of eight 

program-integrity initiatives aimed at minimizing spending.  These include targeted 

audits of actual claims data, eligibility determination, State rate-setting processes and 

supplemental Medicaid payments. 

 

 Effects on MHSC - Medicaid expansion was not passed in Wyoming.  Previous 

legislative budget session cuts resulted in $10 million in reductions of Medicaid 

reimbursements.  In a previous analysis of possible Medicaid expansion, we estimated an 

additional $7 million in patient revenue would have qualified for Medicaid under the 

expansion.  These dollars were ultimately written off to bad debt and charity care. 

 

While MHSC hasn’t contributed to the increased costs due to the ACA and Medicaid 

expansion, we will likely be affected by these new initiatives.  In the past few years, 

Medicaid has continually cut our reimbursements.  Wyoming Department of Health 

reduced their general fund by $90 million with corresponding federal matching funds cut 

by $43.4 million, totaling $143.4 million in reductions for the FY17 & 18 biennium.   

 

While the Medicaid population has stayed relatively even at around 9.5% of total revenue 

over the last 5 years, Medicaid payments decreased by $760,000 from fiscal year 2017 to 

fiscal year 2018.  In Wyoming, Medicaid eligibility is already very difficult.  With the 

added work requirements and eligibility initiatives, we are facing a shift in patients from 

low reimbursing Medicaid to even lower reimbursing self-pay.  

Page 158 of 305



Page 159 of 305



Page 160 of 305



Page 161 of 305



Page 162 of 305



Page 163 of 305



Page 164 of 305



Page 165 of 305



Page 166 of 305



Page 167 of 305



Page 168 of 305



Page 169 of 305



Page 170 of 305



Page 171 of 305



Page 172 of 305



Page 173 of 305



Page 174 of 305



JULY MONTHLY FYTD

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT TOTAL TOTAL

Collection Agency interest income            9,917.17 

Pharmacy sales                  15.51 

Coca Cola Commission               146.08 

Medical Records               558.15 

HPSA          30,015.62 

Cache Valley Rebate                  12.00 

Inmar Rebate            1,768.95 

Interlare 4,055.66        

Foundation Golf Trny            2,250.00 

MCR Test Amount                    0.02 

Olympus Thunderbeat            1,800.00 

PACS Storage            1,000.00 

County Maintenance Fund          13,120.28 

BCBS Payment Received Incorrectly - Wil be reversed                  72.00 

WWB Commissions               460.89 

Post Partum Supplies              (189.51)

Foundation                (47.96)

Grants          (4,163.39)

Lab Courier               520.00 

Shriners               346.36 

Solvay            3,600.00 

Jim Bridger Physician Services 12,750.00        

Castle Rock 3,653.70          

Tata Occupation Medicine on site 14,550.00        

Sage View            2,400.00 

High Desert Rural Health Clinic District Wamsutter - July 28,503.61        

Cafeteria sales 23,793.98        

July Totals 150,909.12       150,909.12          

AUGUST MONTHLY FYTD

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT TOTAL TOTAL

Collection Agency interest income          15,521.30 

Retirement Forfeiture                  11.17 

Medical Records               639.65 

Pharmacy sales                  80.46 

BLS 204.00           

HPSA               757.48 

Foundation - Reimburse Golf Tournament          (2,850.00)

Wind River Vending 8.75               

Sports Physicals            3,650.00 

PACS Storage               380.00 

WWB Commissions               241.86 

Blood Systems Reversal                (72.00)

Sweetwater Medics-Linens            2,500.00 

County Maintenance Fund          48,851.71 

Prenatal Class                  60.00 

Grants              (522.28)

Lab Courier               260.00 

Shriners               262.62 

Solvay               900.00 

Jim Bridger Retainer               800.00 

Jim Bridger Physician Services 13,812.50        

Castle Rock 2,115.30          

Tata Occupation Medicine on site 16,650.00        

Sage View            2,400.00 

High Desert Rural Health Clinic District Wamsutter - August 27,723.96        

Cafeteria sales 24,801.23        

August Totals 159,187.71       310,096.83          

SEPTEMBER MONTHLY FYTD

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT TOTAL TOTAL

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
OTHER OPERATING REVENUE - Detail

YEAR TO DATE 2019

Page 175 of 305



Collection Agency interest income          14,347.07 

Retirement Forfeiture               641.46 

Medical Records               186.55 

Pharmacy sales                  14.00 

Radiology Films                    5.00 

BLS 361.00           

HPSA                  13.19 

BCBS Entered incorrectly - reversed on 10/1 3,469.66        

Inmar Rebate 59.92             

Interlare          11,763.70 

MCR Temp Allowance          29,017.00 

Supplies            1,362.32 

PACS Storage               576.00 

WWB Commissions               115.28 

Foundation       496,842.20 

Prenatal Class               122.30 

Grants          (1,190.46)

County Maintenance Fund          21,866.14 

Shriners               234.70 

Solvay               900.00 

Jim Bridger Retainer               800.00 

Jim Bridger Physician Services 11,687.50        

Castle Rock 2,596.05          

Tata Occupation Medicine on site 12,450.00        

Sage View            2,400.00 

High Desert Rural Health Clinic District Wamsutter - August 31,076.00        

Cafeteria sales 33,766.83        

Catering 2,583.66          

September Totals 678,067.07       988,163.90          

Page 176 of 305



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

ROCK SPRINGS, WY 

 

To: Finance & Audit Committee    October 23, 2018 

From: Tami Love, CFO 

 

PROVIDER CLINIC –  SEPTEMBER 2018    

 

THE CLINIC BOTTOM LINE.    The bottom line for the Provider Clinic for 

September was a loss of $435,487, compared to a loss of $389,194 in the budget. The 

YTD net operating loss is $1,236,371, compared to a loss of $1,390,100 in the budget.   

 

VOLUME.  Total visits were 4,097 for September, under budget by 270 visits. YTD 

patient visits are 12,828, over budget by 182 visits. 

 

REVENUE.  Revenue for the Clinic for September was $1,222,216, under budget by 

$168,463.    YTD revenue was $3,997,029, over budget by $36,130.  The Clinic 

physicians also generate hospital revenue, called enterprise revenue, which consists of 

various sources, including Lab, Medical Imaging and Surgery.  The amount of gross 

enterprise revenue generated year to date through September from the Clinic is 

$10,662,338.  This equates to $5,544,416 of net enterprise revenue with an impact to the 

bottom line of $543,907.  The gross enterprise revenue represents 26.7% of the total 

Hospital revenue year to date. 

 

Net patient revenue for the Clinic for September was $641,360, under budget by 

$139,393.  YTD net patient revenue was $2,194,884, which was over budget by $47,306.   

 

Deductions from revenue for the Clinic were booked at 47.5% for September.  In 

September, the YTD payer mix was as follows; Commercial Insurance and Blue Cross 

consisted of 55.1% of revenue, Medicare and Medicaid consisted of 38.8% of revenue 

and Self Pay consisted of 5.5% of revenue. 

 

EXPENSES.  Total expenses for the month were $1,138,991, which was under budget 

by $100,638.   YTD expenses were $3,623,868, which was under budget by $117,950. 

The majority of the expenses consist of Salaries and Benefits; which are 84.8% of YTD 

total expenses.  The following categories were over budget for September: 

 

Repairs and Maintenance – This expense is over budget by $2,299 and remains 

over budget $3,059 year to date.   

Leases and Rentals - This expense is over budget by $354 and remains over 

budget $1,905 year to date.   

Depreciation – This expense is over budget by $2,378 and remains over budget 

$4,896 year to date. 

 

OVERALL ASSESSMENT.   Through September, the Provider Clinic revenue plus 

enterprise revenue makes up 36.7% of total hospital gross patient revenue.    

Page 177 of 305



Page 178 of 305



Page 179 of 305



Page 180 of 305



Page 181 of 305



Page 182 of 305



Page 183 of 305



Page 184 of 305



Page 185 of 305



Page 186 of 305



Page 187 of 305



Page 188 of 305



Page 189 of 305



Page 190 of 305



Page 191 of 305



Page 192 of 305



Page 193 of 305



Page 194 of 305



Page 195 of 305



Page 196 of 305



Page 197 of 305



19 Board Graphs Sept 10/24/2018 8:39 AM

   MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
   "DASHBOARD" GRAPHS

SEPTEMBER 2018

  FYE 2018 ACTUAL   FYE 2019 BUDGET   FYE 2019 ACTUAL

AVERAGE ACUTE CENSUS ER IP+OP VISITS

INPATIENT CHARGES OUTPATIENT CHARGES

TOTAL NET OPERATING REVENUE OPERATING EXPENSE

AVERAGE CHARGE PER ADJUSTED PATIENT DAY AVERAGE CHARGE PER OUTPATIENT VISIT (Inc. ER)

AVERAGE NET OPERATING REVENUE PER ADJUSTED PATIENT DAY    AVERAGE OPERATING EXPENSE PER ADJUSTED PATIENT DAY

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

$0
$500,000

$1,000,000
$1,500,000
$2,000,000
$2,500,000
$3,000,000
$3,500,000
$4,000,000
$4,500,000
$5,000,000

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

$14,000,000

$0
$1,000,000
$2,000,000
$3,000,000
$4,000,000
$5,000,000
$6,000,000
$7,000,000
$8,000,000
$9,000,000

$0
$1,000,000
$2,000,000
$3,000,000
$4,000,000
$5,000,000
$6,000,000
$7,000,000
$8,000,000
$9,000,000

$0

$2,000

$4,000

$6,000

$8,000

$10,000

$12,000

$0

$200

$400

$600

$800

$1,000

$1,200

$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

$5,000

$6,000

$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

$5,000

$6,000

Page 198 of 305



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY

DETAIL STATISTICS

September 2018

STATISTICS Actual Budget PY YTD YTD YTD YTD
Sep-18 Sep-18 Sep-17 Sep-18 Sep-17 Sep-16 Sep-15

Case Mix
Medicare 1.3433 1.3733 1.3733 1.2309 1.2844 1.4576 1.3752
All payers 0.7620 0.9709 0.9709 0.7523 0.8774 0.8626 0.8419

Admissions
Med 59 60 60 190 184 228 264
ICU 16 21 21 55 69 97 90
Surgery 4 10 10 23 20 26 30
OB 47 31 31 107 125 156 147
Newborn 46 29 29 106 122 148 145

Total Admissions 172 151 151 481 520 655 676

Discharges
Med 58 64 64 202 209 259 287
ICU 6 18 18 27 37 50 46
Surgery 8 12 12 32 27 38 48
OB 48 31 31 108 125 150 147
Newborn 47 32 32 106 122 145 145

Total Discharges 167 157 157 475 520 642 673

Patient Days:
Med 180 183 183 671 587 1,112 1,072
ICU 40 61 61 113 152 242 259
Surgery 23 42 42 114 104 99 137
OB 68 48 48 171 219 248 239
Newborn 80 50 50 184 217 238 221

Total Patient Days 391 384 384 1,253 1,279 1,939 1,928

Observation Bed Days 77 108 108 329 346 272 219

Surgery Statistics:
IP Surgeries 25 30 30 71 86 123 104
OP Surgeries 124 141 141 415 452 417 427

Outpatient Visits:
X-ray 708 678 678 2,103 2,117 2,111 2,107
Mammography 103 152 152 361 386 360 405
Ultrasound 239 293 293 874 855 779 782
Cat Scan 413 443 443 1,276 1,304 1,198 1,146
MRI 117 119 119 370 327 301 318
Nuclear Medicine 31 65 65 107 152 108 120
PET Scan 2 18 18 14 39 32 15
Echo 52 0 0 161 0 0
Laboratory 2,489 2,280 2,280 7,872 7,655 9,085 7,808
Histology 151 164 164 518 463 412 394
Respiratory Therapy 224 255 255 613 761 735 693
Cardiovascular 364 433 433 1,232 1,257 1,396 1,356
Sleep Lab 27 27 27 90 88 61 55
Cardiac Rehab 278 300 300 815 1,012 1,418 1,224
Physical Therapy 144 194 194 387 626 679 736
Dialysis 375 313 313 1,153 923 712 775
Medical Oncology 154 152 152 493 483 571 671
Radiation Oncology 156 250 250 606 728 889 999
Total Outpatients Visits 6,027 6,136 6,136 19,045 19,176 20,847 19,604

Clinic Visits - Primary Care 3,654 3,846 3,771 11,485 11,756 13,196 16,658
Clinic Visits - Specialty Clinics 443 521 474 1,343 1,459 1,595 1,512

ER visits admitted 119 140 140 405 399 433 425
ER visits Discharged 1,155 1,179 1,179 3,569 3,678 3,790 3,902
Total ER visits 1,274 1,319 1,319 3,974 4,077 4,223 4,327

Page 199 of 305



19 FTE REPORT FTE Trend 1 of 6 10/10/2018 11:54 AM

                          MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY

 Variance
PPE 9/2/2018 9/16/2018 9/30/2018 Variance YTD from budget

BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease
AVG CENSUS 11.80 12.0 10.1 10.2 (1.6)                  0.07                -                     83.3
ER VISITS (Avg Day) 45                  40.7 45.3 38.9 (5.9)                  -                  6.36                   302.6
SURGERIES (IP+OP) 78                  78 70 76 (1.6)                  6.00                -                     529.0
BIRTHS 19                  13 23 21 2.0                    -                  2.00                   119.0
CHARGES -IP  $000 1,358            1237 1202 1015 (343)                 -                  187.00               9102.0
                 -OP $000 4,987            4946 4298 4229 (758)                 -                  69.00                 32381.0
                 -TOTAL $000 6,345            6183 5500 5244 (1,101)              -                  256.00               41483.0
Adjusted Patient Days 772                840                 650                 739                 (33)                    89.06              -                     5,359.94               

Paid FTEs (Including Contract)

600 MEDICAL FLOOR 24.5 20.7            20.9            19.9            (4.6)                  -                  1.06                   21.1 (3.4)
605 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 7.2 7.2              4.5              5.9              (1.3)                  1.36                -                     8.1 0.9
610 OB FLOOR 5.3 6.9              6.9              6.7              1.4                    -                  0.16                   6.3 1.0
611 NURSERY 7.2 6.7              7.3              6.5              (0.7)                  -                  0.79                   6.8 (0.4)
612 LABOR & DELIVERY 4.9 2.9              3.4              3.0              (2.0)                  -                  0.44                   3.1 (1.8)
615 OUTSIDE SERVICES 0.9 1.5              1.2              2.0              1.1                    0.81                -                     1.5 0.6
620 ICU 12.5 11.6            10.0            9.2              (3.3)                  -                  0.84                   10.5 (2.0)
630 OR 12.1 13.7            11.9            13.4            1.3                    1.49                -                     13.2 1.1
631 SAME DAY SURGERY 6.8 6.2              6.1              5.9              (1.0)                  -                  0.24                   5.8 (1.0)
633 RECOVERY 2.8 3.6              2.6              2.1              (0.7)                  -                  0.41                   3.2 0.4
634 CENTRAL STERILE 3 1.5              2.8              2.6              (0.4)                  -                  0.15                   2.6 (0.4)
640 DIALYSIS 7 7.8              8.0              8.3              1.3                    0.30                -                     7.2 0.2
650 ER 21.5 21.8            21.4            20.3            (1.2)                  -                  1.12                   22.1 0.6
651 TRAUMA 1.3 2.2              2.1              1.9              0.6                    -                  0.21                   1.9 0.6
652 SANE 0.9 1.1              1.0              1.1              0.2                    0.13                -                     1.1 0.2
660 RADIATION ONC 6.6 6.9              6.8              7.0              0.4                    0.12                -                     6.8 0.2
661 MEDICAL ONC 6 5.7              5.8              6.3              0.3                    0.57                -                     6.3 0.3
700 LABORATORY 31.1 30.1            29.9            28.4            (2.7)                  -                  1.46                   29.6 (1.5)
701 HISTOLOGY 2 2.1              2.0              2.0              0.0                    -                  0.03                   2.1 0.1
702 BLOOD BANK 1 1.0              0.9              1.2              0.2                    0.32                -                     1.1 0.1
710 RADIOLOGY 9.7 9.6              10.0            9.3              (0.4)                  -                  0.65                   9.7 (0.0)
711 MAMMOGRPAHY 1.6 1.1              0.7              1.5              (0.1)                  0.78                -                     1.2 (0.4)
712 ULTRASOUND 3.25 4.1              4.3              3.8              0.5                    -                  0.49                   4.1 0.8
713 NUC MED 1.6 1.0              1.2              1.1              (0.5)                  -                  0.14                   1.4 (0.2)
714 CAT SCAN 4.7 4.4              4.2              4.2              (0.5)                  -                  0.03                   4.4 (0.3)
715 MRI 1.3 1.1              1.0              1.2              (0.1)                  0.21                -                     1.1 (0.2)
716 PET SCAN 0.1 -              -              -              (0.1)                  -                  -                     0.0 (0.1)
717 ECHOCARDIOGRAPHY 1.25 1.0              0.5              0.3              (0.9)                  -                  0.19                   0.8 (0.5)
720 RESPIRATORY 6 7.7              7.1              6.7              0.7                    -                  0.46                   7.5 1.5
721 SLEEP LAB 2.3 1.6              1.6              1.9              (0.4)                  0.30                -                     1.6 (0.7)
722 CARDIO 2.3 1.9              2.0              1.9              (0.4)                  -                  0.13                   1.9 (0.4)
723 CARDIAC REHAB 2.4 2.3              2.2              2.3              (0.1)                  0.10                -                     2.2 (0.2)
730 PHYSICAL THERAPY 3.5 3.5              3.0              3.5              (0.0)                  0.53                -                     3.2 (0.3)
780 EDUCATION 2 0.5              0.5              0.6              (1.4)                  0.09                -                     0.4 (1.6)
781 SOCIAL SERVICES 1 1.0              1.0              1.0              -                    -                  -                     1.0 0.0
782 QUALITY 4 4.6              4.1              4.1              0.1                    0.08                -                     4.5 0.5
783 INFECTION CONTROL 2 3.0              4.0              2.0              (0.0)                  -                  1.99                   2.4 0.4
784 ACCREDITATION 3 2.8              3.0              3.0              0.0                    0.04                -                     2.4 (0.6)
786 NURSING INFORMATICS 3 3.0              3.0              3.0              -                    -                  -                     3.0 0.0
790 HEALTH INFORMATION 12.6 12.5            12.7            14.9            2.3                    2.14                -                     13.0 0.4
791 CASE MANAGEMENT 5.3 5.1              5.0              5.1              (0.2)                  0.06                -                     5.3 0.0
800 MAINTENANCE 11.7 11.6            11.3            11.8            0.1                    0.51                -                     11.2 (0.5)
801 HOUSEKEEPING 23.5 22.3            21.4            23.0            (0.5)                  1.59                -                     22.7 (0.8)
802 LAUNDRY 6.5 5.7              5.6              6.6              0.1                    0.93                -                     5.9 (0.6)
803 BIO MED 2 1.1              1.0              1.0              (1.0)                  0.04                -                     1.0 (1.0)
810 SECURITY 8.3 8.1              8.0              8.1              (0.2)                  0.11                -                     8.1 (0.2)
811 EMERGENCY MGMT 0.1 0.0              0.1              -              (0.1)                  -                  0.14                   0.0 (0.1)
850 PURCHASING 5 5.0              5.1              5.0              -                    -                  0.09                   5.0 0.0
855 CENTRAL SUPPLY 3 3.0              3.0              3.0              -                    -                  0.00                   3.0 0.0
870 DIETARY 17.6 16.2            16.7            16.5            (1.1)                  -                  0.17                   16.4 (1.2)
871 DIETICIANS 1.5 1.0              1.0              0.8              (0.7)                  -                  0.16                   0.9 (0.6)
900 ADMINISTRATION 6 6.0              6.0              6.0              -                    -                  -                     6.0 0.0
901 COMM SVC 1 1.0              1.0              1.0              -                    -                  -                     1.0 0.0
902 MED STAFF SVC 2.5 2.0              2.2              2.8              0.3                    0.58                -                     2.3 (0.2)
903 MHSC FOUNDATION 1.3 1.0              1.0              1.0              (0.3)                  -                  -                     1.0 (0.3)
904 VOLUNTEER SRV 1 1.0              1.0              1.0              -                    -                  -                     1.0 0.0
905 NURSING ADMIN 4.3 4.1              4.1              4.0              (0.3)                  -                  0.11                   4.7 0.4
907 PHYSICIAN RECRUIT 1 1.0              1.0              1.0              -                    -                  -                     1.0 0.0
910 INFORMATION SYSTEMS 8 8.0              8.0              8.0              -                    -                  -                     7.9 (0.1)
920 HUMAN RESOURCES 4.6 4.4              4.3              4.4              (0.2)                  0.04                -                     4.4 (0.2)
930 FISCAL SERVICES 5 4.8              4.8              4.8              (0.2)                  0.01                -                     4.8 (0.2)
940 BUSINESS OFFICE 14 13.7            13.8            14.4            0.4                    0.61                -                     14.0 (0.0)
941 ADMITTING 13.4 14.4            14.6            16.2            2.8                    1.63                -                     14.4 1.0
942 COMMUNICATION 3 2.8              2.6              2.7              (0.3)                  0.15                -                     2.9 (0.1)
943 CENTRAL SCHEDULING 4 3.9              4.0              4.0              0.0                    0.01                -                     3.7 (0.3)

CHANGE FROM
LAST PAY PERIOD

Page 200 of 305



19 FTE REPORT FTE Trend 2 of 6 10/10/2018 11:54 AM

PPE 9/2/2018 9/16/2018 9/30/2018 Variance YTD from budget
BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease

LAST PAY PERIOD

948 NEW ORTHO 1 -              -              -              (1.0)                  -                  -                     0.0 (1.0)
949 DENKER 3 3.0              3.0              3.0              (0.0)                  -                  0.05                   3.3 0.3
950 OLIVER 3.1 2.2              3.0              3.1              (0.0)                  0.07                -                     2.8 (0.3)
952 NEW PULMONOLOGIST 2 -              -              -              (2.0)                  -                  -                     0.0 (2.0)
953 STEWART 2.5 1.0              1.0              1.0              (1.5)                  -                  -                     1.4 (1.1)
954 WHEELER 3 1.0              1.0              1.0              (2.0)                  -                  -                     1.7 (1.3)
956 KATTAN 3.5 1.0              1.0              1.0              (2.5)                  -                  -                     1.7 (1.8)
957 STARLA LETTE 2 1.0              1.0              1.0              (1.0)                  -                  -                     1.3 (0.7)
958 VERONESE 0 -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     0.3 0.3
959 GREWAL 3 1.0              1.0              1.0              (2.0)                  -                  -                     1.6 (1.4)
960 SANDERS 2 1.0              1.0              1.0              (1.0)                  -                  -                     1.5 (0.5)
961 DANSIE 2.5 1.0              1.0              1.0              (1.5)                  -                  -                     1.5 (1.0)
962 BOWERS 2 0.5              0.7              0.6              (1.5)                  -                  0.13                   1.2 (0.8)
963 LONG 3 1.0              0.9              0.9              (2.1)                  -                  -                     1.3 (1.7)
964 JAKE JOHNSON 2 1.0              1.0              1.0              (1.0)                  -                  -                     1.0 (1.0)
966 OCC MED 1 1.0              1.0              1.1              0.1                    0.07                -                     1.1 0.1
967 PA PALINEK 1.5 -              -              -              (1.5)                  -                  -                     0.0 (1.5)
969 PAWAR 2 2.0              2.0              2.0              (0.0)                  -                  0.00                   2.1 0.1
970 CROFTS 2.5 1.0              1.0              1.0              (1.5)                  -                  -                     1.4 (1.1)
971 WAMSUTTER CLINIC 1 1.8              1.7              1.9              0.9                    0.20                -                     1.9 0.9
972 FARSON CLINIC 0 -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     0.0 0.0
973 LAURIDSEN 1 0.9              0.8              0.9              (0.1)                  0.10                -                     0.9 (0.1)
974 SMG ADMIN/BILLING 13.5 34.5            32.8            36.9            23.4                  4.11                -                     27.1 13.6
976 LEHMAN 2 0.9              0.9              0.8              (1.2)                  -                  0.13                   0.8 (1.2)
978 HOSPITALIST 4.2 4.2              4.2              4.2              -                    -                  -                     4.2 0.0
980 JENSEN 1 1.0              1.0              1.0              -                    -                  -                     0.6 (0.4)
981 CROFT 1 1.0              1.0              1.0              -                    -                  -                     1.0 0.0
982 CHRISTENSEN 3 1.0              1.0              1.0              (2.0)                  -                  -                     1.8 (1.2)
988 CURRY 2 1.0              1.0              1.0              (1.0)                  -                  -                     1.9 (0.1)
990 NEW PEDIATRICIAN 0 -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     0.0 0.0
991 JAMIAS 2 1.0              1.0              1.0              (1.0)                  -                  -                     1.3 (0.7)
992 ASPER 1 1.0              1.0              1.0              -                    -                  -                     1.3 0.3
993 LIU 2 1.0              1.0              1.0              (1.0)                  -                  -                     1.1 (0.9)
994 DUCK 2 1.1              -              1.1              (0.9)                  1.08                -                     1.1 (0.9)
996 SARETTE 0.6 1.1              -              2.1              1.5                    2.10                -                     0.9 0.3
997 OUTSIDE SERVICES 0.5 -              -              -              (0.5)                  -                  -                     0.0 (0.5)

TOTAL Paid FTEs 464.2         445.6          435.3          446.7          (17.5)            11.38             -                     445.7                (18.5)                 
TOTAL WORKED FTEs 422.4         410.1          388.8          414.5          (7.9)              25.67             -                     400.7                (21.7)                 

WORKED % Paid 91% 92% 89% 93% 2% 0.03                -                     90% (0.0)                       

CONTRACT FTES (Inc above) 2.3 5.6 4.1 4.6 2.3               0.46            -                6.2                    3.9                    

GROSS EMPLOYEE PAYROLL 1,437,662   1,340,218   1,376,400   1,376,400    36,181.97     -                     36,544,337           

 Average Employee Hourly Rate $40.33 $38.48 $38.52 $38.52 0.03                -                     #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

Benchmark Paid FTEs 6.63           7.43            9.38            8.46            1.83             -              0.92               22.12 15.49                
per  Adj. Occupied Bed (APD)

WORKED FTEs (Including Contract)

600 MEDICAL FLOOR 22.3           18.5            17.5            17.6            (4.7)                  0.09                -                     18.8 (3.5)
605 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 6.6             7.1              2.8              5.5              (1.0)                  2.70                -                     7.6 1.1
610 OB FLOOR 4.8             6.4              6.7              6.1              1.2                    -                  0.66                   5.8 0.9
611 NURSERY 6.6             5.4              6.7              5.6              (1.0)                  -                  1.12                   5.5 (1.0)
612 LABOR & DELIVERY 4.5             2.6              3.0              2.5              (1.9)                  -                  0.51                   2.7 (1.7)
615 OUTSIDE SERVICES 0.8             1.5              1.2              2.0              1.2                    0.81                -                     1.5 0.7
620 ICU 11.4           8.9              8.9              8.3              (3.0)                  -                  0.60                   9.4 (1.9)
630 OR 11.0           12.8            11.4            12.9            1.9                    1.52                -                     12.4 1.4
631 SAME DAY SURGERY 6.2             5.4              5.1              5.7              (0.5)                  0.62                -                     5.1 (1.0)
633 RECOVERY 2.5             3.3              2.3              1.9              (0.7)                  -                  0.48                   3.0 0.5
634 CENTRAL STERILE 2.7             1.2              2.7              2.5              (0.2)                  -                  0.17                   2.3 (0.4)
640 DIALYSIS 6.4             7.6              7.2              7.7              1.3                    0.50                -                     6.6 0.3
650 ER 19.6           19.8            19.9            19.8            0.2                    -                  0.12                   20.2 0.6
651 TRAUMA 1.2             1.8              1.7              1.9              0.7                    0.24                -                     1.6 0.5
652 SANE 0.8             1.1              0.8              1.1              0.3                    0.38                -                     1.0 0.2
660 RADIATION ONC 6.0             6.8              5.2              7.0              1.0                    1.75                -                     6.0 (0.0)
661 MEDICAL ONC 5.5             5.6              4.3              5.8              0.3                    1.53                -                     5.3 (0.2)
700 LABORATORY 28.3           26.3            26.3            25.7            (2.6)                  -                  0.58                   26.4 (1.9)
701 HISTOLOGY 1.8             2.1              1.7              1.9              0.1                    0.28                -                     1.9 0.1
702 BLOOD BANK 0.9             1.0              0.9              1.2              0.3                    0.32                -                     1.1 0.2

Page 201 of 305



19 FTE REPORT FTE Trend 3 of 6 10/10/2018 11:54 AM

PPE 9/2/2018 9/16/2018 9/30/2018 Variance YTD from budget
BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease

LAST PAY PERIOD

710 RADIOLOGY 8.8             8.8              8.7              9.2              0.4                    0.45                -                     8.7 (0.1)
711 MAMMOGRPAHY 1.5             1.1              0.7              1.1              (0.4)                  0.43                -                     1.0 (0.4)
712 ULTRASOUND 3.0             3.6              4.1              3.5              0.6                    -                  0.57                   3.8 0.8
713 NUC MED 1.5             1.0              0.9              1.0              (0.5)                  0.03                -                     1.1 (0.3)
714 CAT SCAN 4.3             4.1              4.1              4.2              (0.1)                  0.11                -                     4.1 (0.2)
715 MRI 1.2             1.1              0.8              1.2              0.1                    0.41                -                     1.0 (0.2)
716 PET SCAN 0.1             -              -              -              (0.1)                  -                  -                     0.0 (0.1)
717 ECHOCARDIOGRAPHY 1.1             1.0              0.5              0.3              (0.8)                  -                  0.19                   0.8 (0.4)
720 RESPIRATORY 5.5             7.1              6.9              6.4              0.9                    -                  0.47                   6.6 1.1
721 SLEEP LAB 2.1             1.6              1.1              1.4              (0.7)                  0.32                -                     1.4 (0.7)
722 CARDIO 2.1             1.6              1.8              1.9              (0.2)                  0.09                -                     1.6 (0.5)
723 CARDIAC REHAB 2.2             2.2              1.8              2.1              (0.0)                  0.35                -                     2.1 (0.1)
730 PHYSICAL THERAPY 3.2             3.3              2.6              3.3              0.1                    0.67                -                     2.8 (0.4)
780 PATIENT ED 1.8             0.5              0.5              0.6              (1.3)                  0.10                -                     0.4 (1.4)
781 SOCIAL SERVICES 0.9             1.0              1.0              0.8              (0.2)                  -                  0.25                   0.9 0.0
782 QUALITY & ACCREDIT 3.6             4.1              3.8              4.0              0.4                    0.21                -                     3.9 0.3
783 INFECTION CONTROL 1.8             2.7              1.6              1.7              (0.1)                  0.17                -                     1.7 (0.1)
784 COMPLIANCE 2.7             2.8              2.3              2.8              0.1                    0.50                -                     2.2 (0.5)
786 NURSING INFORMATICS 2.7             2.5              2.8              2.9              0.1                    0.13                -                     2.8 0.0
790 HEALTH INFORMATION 11.5           11.7            10.9            11.7            0.2                    0.77                -                     11.2 (0.3)
791 CASE MANAGEMENT 4.8             4.5              4.4              4.8              0.0                    0.39                -                     4.7 (0.1)
800 MAINTENANCE 10.6           11.4            10.1            10.9            0.2                    0.81                -                     10.1 (0.6)
801 HOUSEKEEPING 21.4           20.1            19.1            21.4            0.0                    2.28                -                     20.2 (1.2)
802 LAUNDRY 5.9             5.4              5.0              6.2              0.3                    1.27                -                     5.4 (0.6)
803 BIO MED 1.8             1.1              0.9              1.0              (0.8)                  0.12                -                     0.9 (0.9)
810 SECURITY 7.6             7.0              7.3              7.7              0.2                    0.46                -                     7.2 (0.4)
811 EMERGENCY MGMT 0.1             0.0              0.1              -              (0.1)                  -                  0.14                   0.0 (0.1)
850 PURCHASING 4.6             4.3              4.6              4.3              (0.3)                  -                  0.30                   0.0 (4.5)
855 CENTRAL SUPPLY 2.7             3.0              2.6              2.5              (0.2)                  -                  0.12                   4.5 1.8
870 DIETARY 16.0           15.9            15.5            16.1            0.1                    0.58                -                     2.4 (13.6)
871 DIETICIANS 1.4             1.0              1.0              0.6              (0.8)                  -                  0.40                   15.3 13.9
900 ADMINISTRATION 5.5             4.9              4.3              5.9              0.4                    1.60                -                     0.9 (4.6)
901 COMM SVC 0.9             0.9              0.8              1.0              0.1                    0.20                -                     5.2 4.3
902 MED STAFF SVC 2.3             1.9              1.6              2.3              0.1                    0.73                -                     0.9 (1.3)
903 MHSC FOUNDATION 1.2             1.0              0.8              1.0              (0.2)                  0.20                -                     1.9 0.8
904 VOLUNTEER SRV 0.9             1.0              1.0              0.5              (0.4)                  -                  0.50                   1.0 0.1
905 NURSING ADMIN 3.9             3.8              3.8              3.3              (0.6)                  -                  0.56                   0.8 (3.1)
907 PHYSICIAN RECRUIT 0.9             1.0              1.0              0.3              (0.6)                  -                  0.70                   4.0 3.1
910 INFORMATION SYSTEMS 7.3             7.6              7.5              7.9              0.6                    0.43                -                     0.9 (6.4)
920 HUMAN RESOURCES 4.2             4.2              4.2              4.1              (0.1)                  -                  0.05                   7.3 3.1
930 FISCAL SERVICES 4.6             4.1              4.3              4.1              (0.5)                  -                  0.26                   4.2 (0.3)
940 BUSINESS OFFICE 12.7           12.5            12.2            13.5            0.8                    1.28                -                     4.1 (8.6)
941 ADMITTING 12.2           13.9            14.1            15.6            3.4                    1.48                -                     12.6 0.4
942 COMMUNICATION 2.7             2.8              1.9              2.6              (0.1)                  0.76                -                     13.8 11.1
943 CENTRAL SCHEDULING 3.6             3.8              3.5              3.7              0.1                    0.17                -                     2.6 (1.0)
948 NEW OTHO 0.9             -              -              -              (0.9)                  -                  -                     3.3 2.3
949 DENKER 2.7             3.0              2.8              2.9              0.1                    0.07                -                     0.0 (2.7)
950 OLIVER 2.8             2.2              2.8              2.5              (0.3)                  -                  0.25                   2.7 (0.1)
952 NEW PULMONOLOGIST 1.8             -              -              -              (1.8)                  -                  -                     2.5 0.7
953 STEWART 2.3             1.0              0.8              0.9              (1.4)                  0.10                -                     0.0 (2.3)
954 WHEELER 2.7             1.0              1.0              0.5              (2.2)                  -                  0.50                   1.3 (1.5)
956 KATTAN 3.2             0.9              1.0              1.0              (2.2)                  -                  -                     1.4 (1.8)
957 STARLA LETTE 1.8             1.0              1.0              1.0              (0.8)                  -                  -                     1.6 (0.2)
958 VERONESE -             -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     1.3 1.3
959 GREWAL 2.7             1.0              1.0              1.0              (1.7)                  -                  -                     0.1 (2.6)
960 SANDERS 1.8             1.0              1.0              0.5              (1.3)                  -                  0.50                   1.3 (0.5)
961 DANSIE 2.3             1.0              1.0              1.0              (1.3)                  -                  -                     1.3 (1.0)
962 BOWERS 1.8             0.5              0.6              0.6              (1.3)                  -                  -                     1.3 (0.5)
963 LONG 2.7             1.0              0.9              0.8              (1.9)                  -                  0.10                   1.0 (1.8)
964 JAKE JOHNSON 1.8             1.0              1.0              1.0              (0.8)                  -                  -                     1.2 (0.6)
966 OCC MED 0.9             1.0              0.9              1.1              0.2                    0.15                -                     1.0 0.1
967 PA PALINEK 1.4             -              -              -              (1.4)                  -                  -                     1.0 (0.4)
969 PAWAR 1.8             1.5              1.9              2.0              0.2                    0.06                -                     0.0 (1.8)
970 CROFTS 2.3             0.9              1.0              0.9              (1.4)                  -                  0.10                   1.8 (0.4)
971 WAMSUTTER CLINIC 0.9             1.8              1.7              1.9              1.0                    0.22                -                     1.2 0.3
972 FARSON CLINIC -             -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     1.8 1.8
973 LAURIDSEN 0.9             0.4              0.8              0.9              (0.0)                  0.10                -                     0.0 (0.9)
974 SMG ADMIN/BILLING 12.3           32.6            29.9            35.2            22.9                  5.26                -                     0.8 (11.5)
976 LEHMAN 1.8             0.4              0.7              0.7              (1.1)                  0.03                -                     24.7 22.9
978 HOSPITALIST 3.8             4.2              4.2              4.2              0.4                    -                  -                     0.7 (3.2)
980 JENSEN 0.9             1.0              0.9              1.0              0.1                    0.10                -                     4.2 3.3
981 CROFT 0.9             1.0              1.0              1.0              0.1                    -                  -                     0.6 (0.3)
982 CHRISTENSEN 2.7             1.0              1.0              1.0              (1.7)                  -                  -                     0.8 (1.9)
988 CURRY 1.8             1.0              0.9              0.6              (1.2)                  -                  0.30                   1.6 (0.2)
990 NEW PEDIATRICIAN -             -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     1.6 1.6
991 JAMIAS 1.8             1.0              1.0              1.0              (0.8)                  -                  -                     0.0 (1.8)
992 ASPER 0.9             0.9              0.9              0.9              (0.0)                  -                  -                     1.2 0.3
993 LIU 1.8             1.0              1.0              1.0              (0.8)                  0.05                -                     0.8 (1.0)
994 DUCK 1.8             1.1              1.4              1.1              (0.7)                  -                  0.29                   1.0 (0.8)

Page 202 of 305



19 FTE REPORT FTE Trend 4 of 6 10/10/2018 11:54 AM

PPE 9/2/2018 9/16/2018 9/30/2018 Variance YTD from budget
BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease

LAST PAY PERIOD

996 SARETTE 0.5             1.1              -              2.1              1.6                    2.10                -                     1.2 0.6
997 OUTSIDE CLINICS 0.5             -              -              -              (0.5)                  -                  -                     0.9 0.4

TOTAL WORKED FTEs 422.4         410.1          388.8          414.5          (7.90)            25.67             -                     400.7                (21.7)                 

CONTRCT FTES (Inc above) 2.3                 5.6                  4.1                  4.6                  2.28             0.46                -                     6.2                    3.9                    

OVERTIME HOURS Current OT
OT Dollars YTD Hours

600 MEDICAL FLOOR 8.3              10.0            2.0              37.88               -                  8.00                   20.3                       
605 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 24.8            -              36.0            847.92             36.00              -                     365.5                     
610 OB FLOOR 2.5              -              2.8              67.02               2.75                -                     31.0                       
611 NURSERY -              8.3              -              -                    -                  8.25                   9.0                         
612 LABOR & DELIVERY -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
615 OUTSIDE SERVICES -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
620 ICU -              1.8              -              -                    -                  1.75                   2.3                         
630 OR 18.3            20.5            7.0              297.57             -                  13.50                 95.0                       
631 SAME DAY SURGERY 8.8              5.3              1.8              72.19               -                  3.50                   45.3                       
633 RECOVERY 0.5              -              -              -                    -                  -                     6.5                         
634 CENTRAL STERILE 1.0              13.0            0.8              17.07               -                  12.25                 24.8                       
640 DIALYSIS 7.8              8.8              34.3            1,607.57          25.50              -                     112.3                     
650 ER 14.8            23.0            36.0            1,238.35          13.00              -                     144.3                     
651 TRAUMA 9.5              -              -              -                    -                  -                     22.3                       
652 SANE 0.5              1.8              5.0              268.80             3.25                -                     12.8                       
660 RADIATION ONC 0.5              -              0.8              62.66               0.75                -                     5.0                         
661 MEDICAL ONC -              -              1.0              32.93               1.00                -                     8.5                         
700 LABORATORY 6.0              26.5            14.3            533.60             -                  12.25                 170.0                     
701 HISTOLOGY 5.5              3.5              3.0              87.00               -                  0.50                   20.8                       
702 BLOOD BANK 0.3              -              0.5              21.72               0.50                -                     5.3                         
710 RADIOLOGY 1.0              5.3              3.5              153.52             -                  1.75                   26.5                       
711 MAMMOGRPAHY -              1.3              -              -                    -                  1.25                   1.3                         
712 ULTRASOUND 1.8              3.5              8.0              560.39             4.50                -                     28.8                       
713 NUC MED 0.3              2.5              -              -                    -                  2.50                   6.5                         
714 CAT SCAN -              -              0.3              8.51                  0.25                -                     1.8                         
715 MRI -              -              3.3              129.22             3.25                -                     5.0                         
716 PET SCAN -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
717 ECHOCARDIOGRAPHY 0.3              -              5.0              374.10             5.00                -                     6.3                         
720 RESPIRATORY -              3.3              -              -                    -                  3.25                   12.0                       
721 SLEEP LAB 4.3              -              9.5              451.44             9.50                -                     31.8                       
722 CARDIO -              -              0.3              6.14                  0.25                -                     0.3                         
723 CARDIAC REHAB -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
730 PHYSICAL THERAPY -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
780 PATIENT ED -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
781 SOCIAL SERVICES -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
782 QUALITY & ACCREDIT -              -              0.3              10.76               0.25                -                     0.3                         
783 INFECTION CONTROL 22.8            -              2.5              127.48             2.50                -                     30.5                       
784 COMPLIANCE -              -              3.0              104.31             3.00                -                     3.0                         
786 NURSING INFORMATICS -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
790 HEALTH INFORMATION -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     0.3                         
791 CASE MANAGEMENT 12.3            1.3              5.5              310.63             4.25                -                     62.3                       
800 MAINTENANCE 0.3              0.8              24.8            672.96             24.00              -                     32.8                       
801 HOUSEKEEPING 36.3            16.8            10.8            221.26             -                  6.00                   262.3                     
802 LAUNDRY 20.3            2.5              12.3            207.43             9.75                -                     160.0                     
803 BIO MED 2.8              1.3              0.3              15.26               -                  1.00                   4.3                         
810 SECURITY 4.8              3.8              11.5            342.68             7.75                -                     59.0                       
811 EMERGENCY MGMT -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
850 PURCHASING -              8.0              -              -                    -                  8.00                   10.8                       
855 CENTRAL SUPPLY -              0.3              -              -                    -                  0.25                   0.3                         
870 DIETARY 3.8              26.8            10.8            238.74             -                  16.00                 174.5                     
871 DIETICIANS -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
900 ADMINISTRATION -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
901 COMM SVC -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
902 MED STAFF SVC -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     0.3                         
903 MHSC FOUNDATION -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
904 VOLUNTEER SRV -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
905 NURSING ADMIN 4.0              4.0              13.0            923.91             9.00                -                     92.0                       
907 PHYSICIAN RECRUIT -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
910 INFORMATION SYSTEMS -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
920 HUMAN RESOURCES -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
930 FISCAL SERVICES 0.3              -              0.3              7.20                  0.25                -                     1.0                         
940 BUSINESS OFFICE 6.5              10.3            41.0            1,137.99          30.75              -                     154.3                     
941 ADMITTING 141.5          149.5          204.5          5,085.43          55.00              -                     969.5                     
942 COMMUNICATION 11.5            14.8            15.8            381.13             1.00                -                     97.0                       
943 CENTRAL SCHEDULING -              0.5              0.5              15.53               -                  -                     3.3                         
948 NEW ORTHO -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
949 DENKER 1.3              1.0              -              -                    -                  1.00                   4.1                         
950 OLIVER 0.3              1.0              10.0            400.60             9.00                -                     17.6                       
952 NEW PULMONOLOGIST -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         

Page 203 of 305



19 FTE REPORT FTE Trend 5 of 6 10/10/2018 11:54 AM

PPE 9/2/2018 9/16/2018 9/30/2018 Variance YTD from budget
BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease

LAST PAY PERIOD

953 STEWART -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     14.5                       
954 WHEELER -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     4.3                         
956 KATTAN -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     1.8                         
957 STARLA LETTE -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
958 VERONESE -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
959 GREWAL -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     5.5                         
960 SANDERS -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     26.5                       
961 DANSIE -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     5.9                         
962 BOWERS -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
963 LONG -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     3.8                         
964 JAKE JOHNSON -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
966 OCC MED 2.5              4.3              5.8              295.38             1.50                -                     63.5                       
967 PA PALINEK -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
969 PAWAR -              0.3              -              -                    -                  0.25                   2.5                         
970 CROFTS -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
971 WAMSUTTER CLINIC 3.0              4.8              4.3              96.39               -                  0.50                   26.8                       
972 FARSON CLINIC -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
973 LAURIDSEN -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
974 SMG ADMIN/BILLING 51.0            27.8            53.3            1,824.74          25.50              -                     233.5                     
976 PA LEHMAN -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     2.4                         
978 HOSPITALIST -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
980 JENSEN -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
981 CROFT -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
982 CHRISTENSEN -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     10.4                       
988 CURRY -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     8.4                         
990 NEW PEDIATRICIAN -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
991 JAMIAS -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
992 ASPER -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
993 LIU -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     1.0                         
994 DUCK -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     1.0                         
996 SARETTE -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
997 OUTSIDE CLINICS -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         

TOTAL OT HOURS 441.0          417.3          604.5          19,295         187.25           -                     3,771.0             
TOTAL OT FTEs 5.5              5.2              7.6              2.34                -                     6.7                    
OT % WORKED HOURS 1.4% 1.4% 1.8% 0.00                0.0%

CONTRACT HOURS PPE 9/2/2018 9/16/2018 9/30/2018 Variance
BUDGET Current FTE Increase Decrease FTE YTD from budget

600 MEDICAL FLOOR -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
605 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 127.3          29.3            126.8          1.6               97.50              -                     1.85                       1.85                       
610 OB FLOOR 0.5             -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         (0.50)                      
611 NURSERY -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
612 LABOR & DELIVERY -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
615 OUTSIDE SERVICES -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         
620 ICU -              24.0            -              -               -                  24.00                 0.09                       0.09                       
630 OR 1.0             167.2          171.6          239.6          3.0               68.00              -                     2.07                       1.07                       
631 SAME DAY SURGERY -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
633 RECOVERY -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
634 CENTRAL STERILE -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
640 DIALYSIS -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
650 ER 0.3             -              -              -              -               -                  -                     0.51                       0.21                       
651 TRAUMA -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
652 SANE -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
660 RADIATION ONC -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
661 MEDICAL ONC -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
700 LABORATORY -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
701 HISTOLOGY -              -              -              -               -                  -                     0.20                       0.20                       
702 BLOOD BANK -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
710 RADIOLOGY -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
711 MAMMOGRPAHY -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
712 ULTRASOUND 0.5             79.0            68.8            -              -               -                  68.75                 0.77                       0.27                       
713 NUC MED -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
714 CAT SCAN -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
715 MRI -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
716 PET SCAN -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
717 ECHOCARDIOGRAPHY -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         
720 RESPIRATORY -             71.8            36.0            -              -               -                  36.00                 0.72                       0.72                       
721 SLEEP LAB -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
722 CARDIO -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
723 CARDIAC REHAB -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
730 PHYSICAL THERAPY -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
780 PATIENT ED -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
781 SOCIAL SERVICES -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
782 QUALITY & ACCREDIT -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
783 INFECTION CONTROL -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
784 ACCREDITATION -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         

CHANGE FROM
LAST PAY PERIOD

Page 204 of 305



19 FTE REPORT FTE Trend 6 of 6 10/10/2018 11:54 AM

PPE 9/2/2018 9/16/2018 9/30/2018 Variance YTD from budget
BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease

LAST PAY PERIOD

786 NURSING INFORMATICS -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
790 HEALTH INFORMATION -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
791 CASE MANAGEMENT -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
800 MAINTENANCE -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
801 HOUSEKEEPING -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
802 LAUNDRY -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
803 BIO MED -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
810 SECURITY -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
811 EMERGENCY MGMT -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
850 PURCHASING -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
855 CENTRAL SUPPLY -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
870 DIETARY -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
871 DIETICIANS -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
900 ADMINISTRATION -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
901 COMM SVC -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
902 MED STAFF SVC -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
903 MHSC FOUNDATION -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
904 VOLUNTEER SRV -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
905 NURSING ADMIN -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
907 PHYSICIAN RECRUIT -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
910 INFORMATION SYSTEMS -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
920 HUMAN RESOURCES -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
930 FISCAL SERVICES -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
940 BUSINESS OFFICE -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
941 ADMITTING -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
942 COMMUNICATION -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
943 CENTRAL SCHEDULING -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
948 NEW ORTHO -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         
949 DENKER -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
950 OLIVER -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
952 NEW PULMONOLOGIST -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         
953 STEWART -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
954 WHEELER -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
956 KATTAN -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
957 STARLA LETTE -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
958 VERONESE -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
959 GREWAL -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
960 SANDERS PA -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
961 DANSIE -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
962 BOWERS -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
963 LONG -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
964 JAKE JOHNSON -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
966 OCC MED -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
967 PA PALINEK -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         
969 PAWAR -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
970 CROFTS -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
971 WAMSUTTER CLINIC -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
972 FARSON CLINIC -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
973 LAURIDSEN -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
974 SMG ADMIN/BILLING -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
978 HOSPITALIST -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
980 JENSEN -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         
981 CROFT -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
982 CHRISTENSEN -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
988 CURRY -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
990 NEW PEDIATRICIAN -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         
991 JAMIAS -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
992 ASPER -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
993 LIU -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
994 DUCK -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
996 SARETTE -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
997 OUTSIDE CLINICS -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         

TOTAL CONTRACT HOURS 445.2          329.6          366.3          36.8            -                

TOTAL CONTRACT FTEs 2.3 5.6              4.1              4.6              2.3               0.5              -                6.2                    3.9                    

CONTRACT  % WORKED HOURS 1.4% 1.1% 1.1% 0.0% 0.0%

Page 205 of 305



HOSPITAL CURRENT YEAR TO DATE PRIOR YEAR
Commercial/Work Comp 16.98% 17.18% 18.37%
Blue Cross 22.43% 21.17% 23.66%
Medicaid 9.79% 8.16% 9.99%
Medicare 39.49% 41.50% 36.77%
Self Pay  8.42% 9.42% 9.42%
Other 2.89% 2.58% 1.79%

TOTAL 100% 100% 100%

CLINIC CURRENT YEAR TO DATE PRIOR YEAR
Commercial/Work Comp 26.20% 26.46% 28.94%
Blue Cross 27.34% 28.64% 30.49%
Medicaid 12.53% 12.95% 14.70%
Medicare 27.71% 25.82% 19.07%
Self Pay  5.36% 5.51% 6.18%
Other 0.85% 0.62% 0.62%

TOTAL 100% 100% 100%

ORTHO CLINIC CURRENT YEAR TO DATE PRIOR YEAR
Commercial/Work Comp 42.04% 32.08% 39.50%
Blue Cross 30.98% 22.41% 27.91%
Medicaid 3.09% 4.40% 6.32%
Medicare 19.17% 37.07% 23.02%
Self Pay  4.23% 3.77% 2.71%
Other 0.48% 0.27% 0.54%

TOTAL 100% 100% 100%

COMBINED CURRENT YEAR TO DATE PRIOR YEAR
Commercial/Work Comp 18.16% 18.23% 19.86%
Blue Cross 23.00% 21.85% 24.39%
Medicaid 9.97% 8.52% 10.34%
Medicare 38.12% 40.04% 34.80%
Self Pay  8.08% 8.98% 8.96%
Other 2.66% 2.37% 1.65%

TOTAL 100% 100% 100%

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY

Three months ending September 30, 2018
PAYOR MIX DATA

Page 206 of 305



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
DAYS IN A/R

09/30/18

HOSPITAL AR DAYS
Sep-17 44
Oct-17 44
Nov-17 42
Dec-17 42
Jan-18 45
Feb-18 47
Mar-18 48
Apr-18 51
May-18 47
Jun-18 48
Jul-18 54
Aug-18 58
Sep-18 49

CLINIC AR DAYS
Sep-17 52
Oct-17 50
Nov-17 56
Dec-17 54
Jan-18 57
Feb-18 62
Mar-18 58
Apr-18 57
May-18 59
Jun-18 55
Jul-18 58
Aug-18 66
Sep-18 62

ORTHO AR DAYS
Sep-17 54
Oct-17 45
Nov-17 35
Dec-17 41
Jan-18 44
Feb-18 40
Mar-18 63
Apr-18 67
May-18 53
Jun-18 38
Jul-18 55
Aug-18 66
Sep-18 47

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Sep-17 Nov-17 Jan-18 Mar-18 May-18 Jul-18 Sep-18

52 50 
56 54 57 

62 
58 57 59 

55 
58 

66 
62 

CLINIC AR DAYS

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Sep-17 Nov-17 Jan-18 Mar-18 May-18 Jul-18 Sep-18

54 

45 

35 
41 

44 
40 

63 
67 

53 

38 

55 

66 

47 

ORTHO AR DAYS

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Sep-17 Nov-17 Jan-18 Mar-18 May-18 Jul-18 Sep-18

44 44 42 42 
45 47 48 

51 
47 48 

54 
58 

49 

HOSPITAL AR DAYS

Page 207 of 305



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
Days of Cash on Hand

9/30/2018

154.07

135.26

106.86
91.17

110.8
122.39

FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 FY2018 YTD 2019

DAYS OF CASH ON HAND

161,980 

198,019 
228,512 226,999 224,923 

224,639 200,999 202,528 

240,227 245,026 
234,282 

218,829 

FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 FY2018 YTD 2019

DAILY CASH COLLECTIONS/DAILY CASH EXPENSE

DAILY COLLECTIONS DAILY CASH EXPENSE

Page 208 of 305



Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Legal Fees By Fiscal Year

FY 2019
DRAY, DYEKMAN, REED & HEALEY PC $2,117.50
SETTLEMENTS $30,000.00
PHILLIPS LAW, LLC $29,197.12

Total FYTD 2019 $61,314.62

Page 209 of 305



Page 210 of 305



Page 211 of 305



Page 212 of 305



Page 213 of 305



Page 214 of 305



Page 215 of 305



Page 216 of 305



Page 217 of 305



Page 218 of 305



Page 219 of 305



Page 220 of 305



Page 221 of 305



Page 222 of 305



Page 223 of 305



Page 224 of 305



Page 225 of 305



Page 226 of 305



Page 227 of 305



Page 228 of 305



Page 229 of 305



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
OPEN BID INVESTMENT SUMMARY REPORT

09/30/18

INTEREST
ACCOUNT FINANCIAL INST RATE 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 6/30/2017 6/30/2018 6/30/2019
GENERAL BANK OF WEST 0.300% 8,710,751 5,295,564 4,330,411 4,362,377 4,894,328 4,904,513
RESERVE BANK OF WEST 0.300% 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,300,000
GENERAL BANK OF WEST 1.000% 2,460,272 2,983,016 2,964,992 2,474,121 2,480,927
CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT KEYBANK 1.620% 13,001,178 12,299,119 9,231,852 8,253,433 8,303,935 7,804,410
E. BOICE WYOSTAR 1.702% 39 39 39 40 40 40
LIFELINE WYOSTAR 1.702% 104,294 104,607 104,934 105,575 106,849 107,311
TOTAL 23,116,262 21,459,601 17,950,252 16,986,416 17,079,273 16,597,201

INFORMATION:

CURRENT INVESTMENT BALANCE: 16,597,201.01$  

GENERAL FUND BALANCE AS OF 09/30/18 2,645,440           
REPRESENTING DAYS OF CASH ON HAND 12.60                  

RECOMMENDATION:

Recommendations on attached sheet

23,116,262
21,459,601

17,950,252
16,986,416 17,079,273 16,597,201

0

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

20,000,000

25,000,000

6/30/2014 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 6/30/2017 6/30/2018 6/30/2019

Page 230 of 305



Page 231 of 305



Page 232 of 305



Page 233 of 305



Page 234 of 305



Page 235 of 305



Page 236 of 305



Page 237 of 305



DRAFT

Current Status: Draft PolicyStat ID: 5411947

Approved: N/A
Review Due: N/A
Policy Area: Fiscal Services
Reg. Standard:

Investment Policy
Statement of Purpose

Text
I. Scope

a. This investment policy applies to all activities of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County with regard
to investing surplus public assets held in various hospital restricted and unrestricted funds.

b. Investment income will be allocated to the various funds based on their respective participation and
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

II. General Objectives – the primary objectives, in priority order, of investment activity shall be safety,
liquidity, and yield.

a. Safety – Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program. Investments shall be
undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. The
objective will be to mitigate credit risk and interest rate risk.

i. Credit Risk – Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County will minimize credit risk, which is the risk
of loss due to the failure of the security issuer or backer by:

1. Pre-qualifying the financial institutions, broker/dealers, intermediaries, and advisers with
which MHSC will do business in accordance with Section IV

2. Diversifying the investment portfolio so that the impact of potential losses from any one
type of security or from any one individual issuer will be minimized

ii. Interest Rate Risk – Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County will minimize interest rate risk,
which is the risk that the market value of securities in the portfolio will fall due to changes in
market interest rates by:

1. Structuring the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash requirements for
ongoing operations, thereby minimizing the need to sell securities on the open market prior

This Statement of Investment Policy is adopted pursuant to the requirements of Wyoming Statute 9-4-831(h). It
is the policy of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County to invest public funds in a manner which will provide a
reasonable rate of investment return while assuring the maximum security of principal, meeting the daily cash
flow demands and conforming to all federal, state and local laws and regulations governing the investment of
public funds.

Investment Policy. Retrieved 09/18/2018. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/5411947/.
Copyright © 2018 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 4

Page 238 of 305

www.princexml.com
Prince - Non-commercial License
This document was created with Prince, a great way of getting web content onto paper.

https://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy_search/category/?search_query=&terms=13784


DRAFT

to maturity

2. Investing operating funds primarily in shorter-term securities, money market mutual funds
or similar investment pools and limiting the average maturity of the portfolio in accordance
with this policy and Section VII

b. Liquidity – The investment portfolio shall be structured to remain sufficiently liquid to meet all
operating requirements that may be reasonably anticipated. This will be accomplished by structuring
the portfolio so that securities mature concurrent with cash needs to meet anticipated demands.
Furthermore, since all possible cash demands cannot be anticipated, the portfolio shall consist of
securities with active secondary or resale markets. Alternatively, a portion of the portfolio may be
placed in money market mutual funds or local government investment pools which offer same day
liquidity for short-term funds.

c. Yield - The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining a market rate of
return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the investment risk constraints
and liquidity needs. Return on investment is of secondary importance compared to the safety and
liquidity objectives described above. The core of investments are limited to relatively low risk
securities in anticipation of earning a fair return relative to the risk being assumed. Securities shall
generally be held until maturity with the following exceptions:

i. A security with declining credit may be sold early to minimize loss of principal.

ii. A security swap would improve the quality, yield, or target duration of the portfolio.

iii. The security has increased in value and may be sold at an increase in value.

iv. Liquidity needs of the portfolio require that the security be sold.

d. Local Considerations - Where possible, funds may be invested for the betterment of the local
economy or that of local entities within the State. The Sweetwater County Treasurer may invest a
portion of the investment portfolio with eligible financial institutions at a lower rate of interest when
the investment officer deems that the investment may benefit the local economy.

III. Standards of Care

a. Prudence - The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the "prudent
person" standard and shall be applied in the context of managing an overall portfolio. Investment
officers acting in accordance with written procedures and this investment policy and exercising due
diligence shall be relieved of personal responsibility for an individual security's credit risk or market
price changes, provided deviations from expectations are reported in a timely fashion and the
liquidity and the sale of the securities are carried out in accordance with the terms of this policy. The
"prudent person" standard states that, "Investments shall be made with judgement and care, under
circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the
management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable
safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived."

b. Ethics and Conflict of Interest - Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall
refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with the proper execution and management
of the investment program, or that could impair their ability to make impartial decisions. Employees
and investment officials shall disclose any material interests in financial institutions with which they
conduct business. They shall further disclose any personal financial/investment positions that could
be related to the performance of the investment portfolio.

c. Delegation of Authority – Authority to manage the investment program is delegated to the Chief

Investment Policy. Retrieved 09/18/2018. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/5411947/.
Copyright © 2018 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 4

Page 239 of 305



DRAFT

Financial Officer, who shall act in accordance with established written procedures and internal
controls for the operation of the investment program consistent with this investment policy. Such
procedures shall include explicit delegation of authority to persons responsible for investment
transactions.

i. In order to facilitate direct communication to the Board of Trustees, the Finance and Audit
Committee will be responsible for activities regarding the investment program including:

1. The periodic review of and approval of Hospital's investment activities

2. The periodic review of the Hospital's investment policy

IV. Authorized Financial Institutions, Depositories and Broker/Dealers

a. A list will be maintained of financial institutions and depositories authorized to provide investment
services.

b. No public deposit shall be made except in a qualified public depository as established by Wyoming
Statutes 9-4-817 through 9-4-828.

V. Suitable and Authorized Investments

a. Investment Types - In order to provide the broadest selection of investment opportunities, yet
maintain satisfactory control of market and interest rate risk, the investment officer may invest in all
instruments approved in W.S. 9-4-831.

b. Collateralization - Collateralization will be required on investments with financial institutions when
public monies on deposit exceed the amount insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(FDIC). Collateral will be limited to the list of securities as described in Wyoming Statute 9-4-821.

VI. Safekeeping and Custody

a. Delivery vs. Payment - All trades of marketable securities will be executed by delivery vs. payment
(DVP) to ensure that securities are deposited in an eligible financial institution prior to the release of
funds.

b. Safekeeping - Securities will generally be held by an independent third-party custodian selected by
the Chief Financial Officer as evidenced by safekeeping receipts in the name of Memorial Hospital of
Sweetwater County. There may arise some instances where the securities may be held by the
broker/dealer. The safekeeping institution shall provide information on their internal controls when
requested by the Chief Financial Officer.

c. Internal Controls – The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for establishing and maintaining an
internal control structure designed to ensure that assets of MHSC are protected from loss, theft or
misuse. Accordingly, the Chief Financial Officer will ensure that an annual independent review of
compliance is performed as part of the MHSC annual financial audit.

VII. Investment Parameters

a. Diversification – The Hospital will attempt to diversify its investments by security type and
institution. To provide assurance that the Hospital will be able to continue financial operations without
interruption and dependent upon interest rates, satisfaction with services and practicality, the
Hospital will generally attempt to utilize at least two financial institutions as depositories.

b. Maximum Maturities - To the extent possible, the Chief Financial Officer shall attempt to match its
investments with anticipated cash flow requirements. Unless matched to a specific cash flow, the
Chief Financial Officer will not directly invest in securities maturing more that (5) years from the date

Investment Policy. Retrieved 09/18/2018. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/5411947/.
Copyright © 2018 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 3 of 4

Page 240 of 305



DRAFT

of purchase or in accordance with state statutes.

c. Competitive Bids - To ensure that securities are purchased at competitive prices, the Chief
Financial Officer must maintain open communication with multiple broker/dealers at all times.

VIII. Policy Considerations

a. Exemption - Any investment currently held that does not meet the guidelines of this policy shall be
temporarily exempted from the requirements of this policy. At maturity or liquidation, such monies
shall be reinvested only as provided by this policy.

b. Amendments - This policy shall be reviewed on an annual basis. Any changes must be approved by
the Finance and Audit Committee and any other appropriate authority, as well as the individuals
charged with maintaining internal controls.

IX. Approval of Investment Policy

a. The investment policy shall be adopted by resolution of the Board of Trustees. The policy shall be
reviewed on an annual basis by the Finance and Audit Committee and any modifications made
thereto must be approved by the Board of Trustees.

References

Attachments: No Attachments

Applicability

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Wyoming State Statute 9-4-817 through 9-4-828, 9-4-831

Investment Policy. Retrieved 09/18/2018. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/5411947/.
Copyright © 2018 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 4 of 4

Page 241 of 305



Investment Plan – Bank of West funds 

 

Liquidity – We are recommending we keep a balance relatively liquid that will cover a normal payroll 

and an average week of accounts payable disbursements.  We recommend we move $2,000,000 to a 

money market account with a higher interest rate.  

Money Market funds – We are recommending we bid out remaining estimate of $4,000,000 to qualified 

institutions under a CD ladder structure with terms ranging from 6 months to 5 years, see attached rate 

proposals. 

Long term investments – We recommend moving estimated balance of $2,500,000 of portable 

investments to MBS Securities current accounts.  These funds are completely portable and can be 

moved from one broker to another without selling them.  There would be no realized loss with the 

transfer.  We can move this money without fees or penalties.   

 

 

Investment Plan – Going forward 

Long term investments – We recommend bidding out funds as they come due.  We will bring bid 

proposals, with our recommendation, to the Finance and Audit Committee for approval. 

 

Page 242 of 305



INVESTMENT SUMMARY REPORT

Investment Date

11/8/2018

LIQUID 6 MONTH 1 YEAR 18 MONTHS 2 YEAR 3 YEAR 4 YEAR 5 YEAR

APPROVED || Money Market 180 365 545 730 1,095 1,460 1,825

DEPOSITORY || or DAYS TO DAYS TO DAYS TO DAYS TO DAYS TO DAYS TO DAYS TO

APPLICANTS FOR || Deposit Account MATURITY MATURITY MATURITY MATURITY MATURITY MATURITY MATURITY

THE F.Y.E. 6/30/19 || DATE DATE DATE DATE DATE DATE DATE|| 35,327.00

MATURITY DATE || 5/7/2019 11/8/2019 5/6/2020 11/7/2020 11/7/2021 11/7/2022 11/7/2023

TOTAL AMOUNT AVAILABLE ||         

|| 2,000,000 500,000 500,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

RECOMMENDATIONS ARE SHADED

MBS SECURITIES || 500,000 500,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000  

 || 2.30% 2.65% 2.80% 3.05% 3.20% 3.30% 3.50%

US BANK ||       

|| 1.05% 2.06% 2.22% 2.43% 2.51% 2.51% 2.51% 2.61%

        

WELLS FARGO ||        

|| 2.20% 2.55% 2.60% 2.85% 3.05% 3.25%

UINTA BANK || 1,000,000      

|| 1.81% 2.02% 2.12% 2.32% 2.52%

COMMERCE BANK ||      

additional .25% with active checking account|| 1.00% 1.26% 1.76% 1.86% 2.01% 2.26% 2.51% 2.76%

       

ROCKY MOUNTAIN BANK ||       

|| 0.50% 0.30% 0.85% 1.29% 1.45% 2.00% 2.20% 2.34%

WYO-STAR || 1,000,000       

|| 1.71%

F97INVST

Page 243 of 305



Vouchers Submitted by MHSC at agreed discounted rate

July 2018 $25,263.47
August 2018 $19,080.15
September 2018 $16,565.76

County Requested Total Vouchers Submitted as of July 31, 2018 $60,909.38

Total Vouchers Submitted FY 2019 $60,909.38

Less:  Total Approved by County and Received by MHSC FY 2019 $60,909.38

Total Vouchers Pending Approval by County $0.00

FY19 Title 25 Fund Budget from Sweetwater County $338,580.00

Funds Received From Sweetwater County $60,909.38

 FY19 Title 25 Fund Budget Remaining $277,670.62

Total Budgeted Vouchers Pending Submittal to County $0.00

FY18 Maintenance Fund Budget from Sweetwater County $1,063,752.00

County Maintenance FY19 - July $13,120.28
County Maintenance FY19 - August $48,851.71
County Maintenance FY19 - September $21,866.14

$83,838.13

 FY18 Maintenance Fund Budget Remaining $979,913.87

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
County Voucher Summary

as of month ending September 30, 2018

Page 244 of 305



Page 245 of 305



Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Board
of Trustees

Building and Grounds Committee Meeting

Tuesday - October 16, 2018

3:30 PM

Classrooms 1 & 2

Page 246 of 305



Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

Building & Grounds Committee 

Classrooms 1 & 2 

3:30 PM 

 

Tuesday – October 16, 2018 

 

 

 

Board Committee Members  Staff Committee Members 

Ed Tardoni    Irene Richardson 

Barbara Sowada   Jim Horan 

     Tami Love 

      

 

Guests 

Gerry Johnson – Facilities 

Stevie Nosich – Facilities 

Leslie Taylor - Clinic 

Britt Morgan – Plan One Architects 

John Kolb – Board of Sweetwater County Commissioners 

  

 

Agenda 

 

1. Approve September 18, 2018 Minutes     

2. Metrics Report 

3. Project(s) Review       

4. Old Business  

5. New Business       

6. Meeting Schedule         

 

Page 2 of 11Page 247 of 305



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

Building & Grounds Committee Meeting 

September 18, 2018 

3:30 PM 

 

 

Trustee Committee Members Present: Mr. Ed Tardoni 

 

Trustee Committee Member Excused: Dr. Barbara Sowada 

 

Staff Committee Members Present:  Mr. Jim Horan 

      Ms. Tami Love 

      Ms. Irene Richardson 

       

Guests:  Mr. Gerry Johnston 

  Ms. Leslie Taylor 

Mr. John Kolb, County Commissioner Liaison 

   

  

Call Meeting to Order 
 

Mr. Tardoni called the meeting to order. He said he wanted to talk about maintenance metrics 

and asked for the current number of open work orders in the system. Mr. Horan said he would 

like to better-understand the wishes of the Board. Mr. Tardoni said he reminded Ms. Love there 

were three members of the Board interested in seeing the numbers. He said the numbers aren’t 

important; what’s important is the trend. Ms. Richardson said we want to give Mr. Tardoni 

everything he wants and needs. She said we want to make sure we are providing information in a 

meaningful way. She added we want to make sure the Board knows management is looking at 

these things on a regular basis. She asked if the Board wants to see the trends with additional 

information. Mr. Tardoni said they do not, he just wants the numbers. Mr. Tardoni said the four 

items he wants to see reported and in the minutes each month are: 

1) Current number of open work orders in the system 

2) Number over 30 days. (No need to break out PM orders.) 

3) Current overtime load higher or lower than typical 

4) Will we be near budget for the month 

 

Following a lengthy discussion, Ms. Love said Mr. Horan will present the numbers as requested 

at the next meeting. Mr. Horan said we have an updated system and do not have the means to 

provide the numbers currently but we will by the next meeting. Mr. Horan said his answers to 

numbers 3 and 4 at this time are: 

3) His opinion is overtime will be higher. 

4) His opinion is he feels we will be near budget in Facilities. 

 

Mr. Tardoni said staff have a very valuable resource with the knowledge of Trustees. He 

provided his cell number and invited anyone to call him directly if there are concerns. 
 

Projects Review 
 

Mr. Horan distributed a revised projects list.  

 

Page 3 of 11Page 248 of 305



 

 

Minutes of the September 18, 2018 Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 2 

 

Old Business 

 

None. 

 

New Business 

 

Mr. Kolb asked about the possibility of the County obtaining a discount on hospital charges for 

county employees. 

 

Mr. Tardoni referenced the Bank of the West issue. Mr. Kolb shared his views. Mr. Tardoni 

asked Mr. Kolb for copies of recent banking investment options obtained by the County. Mr. 

Kolb asked Mr. Tardoni to contact Mr. Robb Slaughter, County Treasurer.  

 

The meeting adjourned at 6:16 PM. 

 

Next Meeting 

 

The next meeting is scheduled October 16 at 3:30 PM.  
 

 

 

 

 

Submitted by Cindy Nelson. 

Page 4 of 11Page 249 of 305



FY19 PRIORITIZED CAPITAL LIST 

800- FACILITIES SUPPORT SERVICES

1
Build lean-to storage shed onto our 

Carpenter shop building

We have several attachments for maintenance vehicles (i.e.. Sweepers, snow plows, salt 

spreader, forklift attachments, etc.) that are stored outside in the "elements". This request is for 

the materials to build a lean-to attachment to our carpenter shop building, in order to store 

these expensive attachments under cover.

•Code compliance/ hazard

♦Protect equipment.

•Increase equipment life-span.

•Increased storage area for other uses.

•Eliminate the eye-sore and clutter of all the attachments

♦Rating:

1… 5X2 = 10

2… 5

3… 2X2 = 4

4… 5

5… 0

Total = 28

 $                          50,000 

2 Central Plant Upgrade

Originally, this upgrade was to be done in conjunction with the ASC expansion. The Central 

Plant had an initial upgrade along with the MOB expansion that enabled us to use the hospital 

plant for essential heating and cooling. At that time, a new chiller was installed and a "flat-

plate" heat exchanger, too, to capture cooler outside temperatures for "free" cooling. However, 

the two (2) existing chillers and the two (2) cooling towers are very old and are in need of 

replacement. The entire Central plant system (except for the portion installed with the MOB 

expansion) will need to be upgraded with new pumps, piping, etc. The existing system is 

becoming quite precarious and this upgrade needs to be done very, very soon. Both this project 

and the next, rate very high in priority. Failure of this request (1A) is systemic and would affect 

the entire facility. The failure of the next prioritized request (1B) would affect sections of the 

facility. It's hard to know which will fail first.

•Reduce utility costs (huge energy savings)

•Prevent cooling failure for essential systems and areas.

•Cooling efficiency

•Accurate comfort control

•Greatly reduce maintenance costs 

♦Rating:

1… 2X2 = 4

2… 4

3… 5x2 = 10

4… 4

5… 1X3 = 3

Total = 25

1,900,000$                     

MHSC Facilities Risk Assessment Tool 
 
 

FACTOR RANGE OF VALUES (weighted) VALUE 

1. Compliance (Life Safety) 0= low need; 5= highest need (X2)  

2. Probability of Failure 0= low risk; 5= failure is imminent  

3. Human Property or Business impact of failure 0= low risk; 5= catastrophic (X2)  

4. Timeliness 0= low need; 5= immediate need  

5. Political need 0= none; 5= urgent need (X3)  

TOTAL 

 

EXPLANATION OF TERMS: 

 Factor #1--Compliance (Life Safety)—Need based on accreditation or on threats to the life safety elements 

as defined by code. 0= low need; 5 = highest need, failure results in severe threat to life and/or loss of 

accreditation. Multiply assessment value by 2 

 Factor #2--Probability of failure—Need based on likelihood of failure. 0 = no risk; 5 = failure is imminent. 

 Factor #3--Impact of failure—Need based on the result of failure to business and people. 0 = no risk, 

inconvenience; 5 = catastrophic, failure results in substantial loss to people or business function. Multiply 

assessment value by 2. 

 Factor #4--Timeliness—Need based on the expediency of performing this project/work. 0= lowest need; 

5= immediate need, postponing results in substantial loss or difficulty on one or more levels.  

 Factor #5—Political Need—Need communicated by Senior Leadership. 0= no political imperative; 5= 

vitally urgent. Multiply assessment value by 3. 

1 FY2019 PRIORITIZED CAPITAL LIST 03/01/2018 by J.H.

Page 5 of 11Page 250 of 305



FY19 PRIORITIZED CAPITAL LIST 

800- FACILITIES SUPPORT SERVICES

3
Replace S1 HVAC unit including 

Laundry Upgrade

REPLACE "S1":

 is almost 40 years old, inefficient and unable to properly regulate temp. It is sized 

inappropriately for the demand, given the evolving nature of health-care over the decades and 

the massive changes done during the 2008-10 renovation. This unit is fatigued, with improper/ 

faulty controls. Its replacement is essential. Each year that goes by makes its failure more 

imminent.

Laundry Upgrade:

• Lint issues to be resolved with a new lint collector with all new duct-work entering and exiting 

this collector. Also, re-duct room exhaust separating it from the dryer exhaust (present 

configuration is a code violation).

• Installation of new dryer (purchased in 2012).

• Re-pipe steam distribution lines into dryers and ironer to remedy condensate issues.

• Install new controls for ironer to eliminate need for staff to manually turn steam valves (very 

dangerous).

• Provide proper conditioned air for staff.

• Create a clean linen storage room within the laundry area; with proper air pressurization 

differential.

• Re-design proper separation between dirty/clean washing machine area.

• Remove asbestos floor tiles and re-floor entire area.

• Facelift the entire area (new paint, ceilings, etc.)

REPLACE "S1":

•Reduce utility costs 

•Prevent failure of essential systems and spaces.

•Compliant air exchange rates

•Proper freeze protection for units

•Reduce filter replacement

•Accurate comfort control

•Greatly reduce maintenance costs 

LAUNDRY UPGRADE:

•Provide code compliant lint collection and separation

•Resolve the very dangerous practice of manipulating steam valves by staff

•Enable installation of our new dryer

•Resolve code issues regarding separation of clean linen

•Provide adequate conditioned air for staff

•Remove asbestos floor tiles

•More efficient work space and work flow

♦Rating:

1... 4X2 = 8

2... 3

3... 4X2 = 8

4... 2

5... 1X3 = 3

Total = 24

1,850,000$                     

4
Basement level fire sprinkler 

replacement
Heads are nearing their end-of-lefe. Replacement will allow us to replace the ceiling.

♦ Code compliant.

♦ Allow us to replace ceiling system which is in terrible shape.

♦ Improved appearance and access.

♦Rating:

1… 4X2 = 8

2… 0

3… 4X2 = 8

4… 1

5… 1X3 = 3

Total = 20

 $                             9,000 

5 Basement level ceiling replacement Ceilings in the facility are our smoke barrier. They need to be tight and in good shape. 

♦ Complinace with codes and TJC.

♦ Appearance.

♦Rating:

1… 4X2 = 8

2… 0

3… 4X2 = 8

4… 1

5… 1X3 = 3

Total = 20

 $                          22,000 

6
Replace De-areator Tank in 

Powerhouse

A "de-aerator" tank is used in our steam generating system to scrub all the oxygen possible 

from make-up water supplied to our boilers. An important function to keep excess oxygen from 

the boiler water that could cause rusting and pitting of our boilers and steam piping system. 

Our existing de-aerator is the original from 1978. It is rusted and rotted inside and is failing to 

perform its function. 

♦ Keeps excess oxygen from our boilers that can cause rust and pitting.

♦ Maximizes boiler efficiency… saves energy.

♦ Extends the life of the boilers.

♦Rating:

1… 2X2 = 4

2… 4

3… 4X2 = 8

4… 3

5… 0

Total = 19

350,000$                         

2 FY2019 PRIORITIZED CAPITAL LIST 03/01/2018 by J.H.

Page 6 of 11Page 251 of 305



FY19 PRIORITIZED CAPITAL LIST 

800- FACILITIES SUPPORT SERVICES

7 Replacement of S3

"S" class units are 35 plus years old, inefficient and unable to properly regulate temps. They are 

sized inappropriately for the demand, given the evolving nature of health-care over the decades 

and the massive changes from the 2008 renovation. These units are fatigued, with 

improper/faulty controls. They supply conditioned air to the core of the original hospital and 

their replacement is essential. Each year that goes by makes their failure more imminent.

S3 is running at 100% capacity and is barely providing sufficient room air exchanges as defined 

by code. Then ever these air exchange amounts fall-out of range, the OR suites cannot be used. 

The replacement of this unit is critical.

•Reduce utility costs 

•Prevent failure of essential systems and spaces.

•Compliant air exchange rates

•Proper freeze protection for units

•Reduce filter replacement

•Accurate comfort control

•Greatly reduce maintenance costs 

♦Rating:

1… 3X2 = 6

2… 2

3... 3X2 = 6

4... 1

5... 1X3 = 3

Total = 18

1,000,000$                     

8
Resolve air-balancing issues in Lab/ 

Fiscal Services

Since the 2008 renovation, air pressurization issues have persisted in the Lab/Fiscal areas of the 

hospital. Sometimes the pressurization issues are so severe that papers are sucked into the 

Fiscal area at the pay window and staff at the window need to wear gloves because of the wind-

chill. In the lab, the pressurization can be so severe that corridor doors that are required by 

code to close and latch, do not. "ST&B Engineering" was enlisted to identify the issues and 

found several. Some were because of incomplete work from the renovation. Some were 

because of incomplete engineering. Some were from shoddy work. This request is to remedy 

the issues that cause this. 

•Code compliant air exchanges

•Resolve code issues surrounding non-latching doors.

•Resolve staff/customer discomfort.

•Increase energy efficiency.

•Decrease unoccupied load on HVAC systems.

♦Rating:

1… 3X2 = 6

2… 5

3…1X2 = 2

4… 2

5… 1X3 = 3

Total = 18

198,000$                         

9 Replacement of "S6" 

"S" class units are 35 plus years old, inefficient and unable to properly regulate temps. They are 

sized inappropriately for the demand, given the evolving nature of health-care over the decades 

and the massive changes from the 2008 renovation. These units are fatigued, with 

improper/faulty controls. They supply conditioned air to the core of the original hospital and 

their replacement is essential. Each year that goes by makes their failure more imminent.

S6 is old and grossly inefficient, barely able to provide conditioned air to Medical Imaging, 

especially in the hottest months. Patients, staff and equipment suffer when this antique unit is 

taxed.

•Reduce utility costs 

•Prevent failure of essential systems and spaces.

•Compliant air exchange rates

•Proper freeze protection for units

•Reduce filter replacement

•Accurate comfort control

•Greatly reduce maintenance costs 

♦Rating:

1… 1X2 = 2

2… 3

3... 4X2 = 8

4... 2X2 = 4

5.. 0

Total = 17

1,100,000$                     

10 Upgrade of "S2" HVAC unit

Request to upgrade S2 air-handler that supplies air to our Kitchen/ Cafeteria area. This request 

takes the place of a complete replacement of that air-handler, originally proposed for $540K in 

a prior capital request, and postpones that replacement farther into the future. The upgrades 

here proposed will allow us to modulate the entire system which currently runs constantly 

24/7, to run at a very slow rate during unoccupied times.

•Great energy savings

•Extended life of a unit currently slated for replacement.

•Integration with our Building Automation System (BAS) giving excellent control over all 

aspects of the system.

•This expense will be utilized on any future replacement unit and not be forfeited.

♦Rating:

1...1X2 = 2

2...2

3... 4X2 = 8

4... 5

5... 0

Total = 17

 $                          21,000 

3 FY2019 PRIORITIZED CAPITAL LIST 03/01/2018 by J.H.

Page 7 of 11Page 252 of 305



FY19 PRIORITIZED CAPITAL LIST 

800- FACILITIES SUPPORT SERVICES

11 Resolve domestic hot water issues

It was discovered that during one of the renovations the hot water (HW) recirculation line for 

the B-Level and possible affecting areas on the first floor, was abandoned due to an error on 

the part of the architect/engineers.

•This has a negative effect on the ability for the hand sinks to supply warm water in a 

timely manner. 

•This may also run the risk of legionella due to stagnant water.

♦Rating:

1… 3X2 = 6

2… 2

3… 4X2 = 8

4… 1

5… 0

Total = 17

24,500$                           

12 Replacement roof for ICU

This is an original roof that has had several leak issues of late. This will be the last of the 

original roofs to replace. The original ballast will be removed, new insulation installed and new 

EPDM direct-glued roof membrane installed. This proposal also includes a safety railing around 

a scary, 2-story deep window well on that roof that is most hazardous to those who must 

access roof-mounted equipment.

• Eliminate leaks/ replace aged roof 

• Safety railing around dangerous window-well.

♦Rating:

1… 1X2 = 2

2… 2

3… 5X2 = 10

4… 1X2 = 2

5… 0

Total = 16

110,000$                         

13 Roof Fall Protection System

The current roof has several code issues regarding fall protection for staff. OSHA is quite 

specific about these fall issues and MHSC needs to provide adequate protection for them. This 

request will enable us to purchase the necessary protection devices and equipment to provide 

for proper fall protection for staff, as defined by OSHA regulations.

•Safety for workers 

•This system meets OSHA requirements.

•Cost avoidance - recovery from OSHA fines, Workman Comp claims and possible civil 

suit.

♦Rating:

1… 5X2 = 10

2… 1

3… 2X2 = 4

4… 1

5… 0

Total = 16

71,000$                           

14

New Underground Storage Tank 

(UST) for additional emergency 

supplies of diesel fuel

Existing UST has the capacity to supply either the Emergency Diesel Generator (EDG) OR the 

boilers for 96 hours, but not both.

•TJC standards stipulate the ability to run 96 hours independently.  If we lost both RMP 

and Questar we would not have enough diesel fuel to meet this obligation.  

•The current system has a single point of failure, having only one single transfer point to 

pump fuel from the UST to EDGs or boilers.

•Will also support the long range plan of having the whole hospital electrical load on the 

Emergency Branch, supplied by EDGs during RMP failure.

♦Rating:

1... 2X2 = 4

2... 1

3... 5X2 = 10

4... 1

5... 0

Total = 16

400,000$                         

15
Engineering for Generator Building 

fire suppression

Fire suppression for this building has been part of "FM Global's" recommendations since 2011 

("FM Global" is our insurance provider).

•This engineering will assure full compliance with all codes and may even mitigate the 

final cost of any needed suppression.

♦Rating:

1… 3X2 = 6

2… 1

3… 3X2 = 6

4… 2

5… 0

Total = 15

12,000$                           

4 FY2019 PRIORITIZED CAPITAL LIST 03/01/2018 by J.H.

Page 8 of 11Page 253 of 305



FY19 PRIORITIZED CAPITAL LIST 

800- FACILITIES SUPPORT SERVICES

16 Ambulance Bay Drains

Our ambulance bays do not have proper floor-drains to capture sand, oil and grease. Since 

2012 when this issue came to light, we have mitigated it with signage informing ambulance 

personnel that our bays are not for cleaning purposes… not for hosing-off their vehicles. This 

caution eliminates contamination from this source but not from accidental leakage. This is a 

substantial code issue that was neglected with our 2008-10 renovation. The city requires waste 

water testing quarterly in order to assure that there are no improper levels of toxins and 

chemicals discharged. This Ambulance bay issue could be a potentially large problem, resulting 

in DEQ or EPA sanctions and fines. This issue would best be resolved with the proposed ASC 

expansion, due to the lack of plumbing slope in existing waste-lines. The solution would require 

trenching through the ambulance bay floor and installing a pit outside of the ED. Then trenching 

around the building and installation of new piping to tie into the waste line outside of the ED at 

a convenient manhole. The cost to do this is substantial and the estimated cost in this Capital 

Request is contingent on the ASC. This estimate is NOT for a complete stand-alone project. Even 

though this is a potential issue, we may still want to wait for the ASC project unless we become 

sure it is abandoned. I can then get a complete proposal. With the trenching around a finished 

building with concrete walkways and paved areas, the stand-alone cost could be monumental.

•Eliminates the risk of EPA fines

•Eliminates the risk with the local sewer district

♦Rating:

1…4X2 = 8

2… 3

3… 1

4… 1

5… 0

Total = 13

187,000$                         

17 Resolve steam condensate issues

With our the boiler lead/lag project completed, we now need to resolve the steam condensate 

collection issues that have plagued us. The 2008 renovation was such an improvement for this 

facility. But some chronic issues were not addressed. One of these is the proper collection and 

return of steam condensate to the boilers. Condensate is almost like liquid gold. It is pure water 

with no hardness, no chemicals… nothing to contaminate or scale boilers. It's collection and 

return to the system saves so much money. Less city make-up water is needed; less chemical 

treatment of raw water is needed; less threat of corrosion and scaling within the boiler and 

throughout the entire steam distribution system. We now have the expertise in-house to 

perform this work. This request is for the parts and pieces.

•Save water dollars.

•Save chemical treatment dollars.

•Boiler longevity.

•Energy savings.

♦Rating:

1… 1X2 = 2

2… 2

3… 2X2 = 4

4… 3

5… 0

Total = 11

23,000$                           

18 "Ventrac 3400Y" lawn Tractor

Our current lawn mower is in sad shape. This request would allow us to purchase a substantial 

lawn tractor that could also be fitted with snow removal equipment to make it a true 4-season 

tool.

•Efficiency

•Replace faulty equipment

•Improve usefulness of tool

•Improve productivity

♦Rating:

1… 1X2 = 2

2… 2

3… 1X2 = 2

4… 2

5… 1X3 = 3

Total = 11

 $                          48,000 

19
Remove asbestos (ACM) flooring on 

the B-Level

Tile in this area is roughly 35+ years old.  Due to the freight and materials handling performed 

on the B Level, this tile is occasionally damaged creating a risk generating friable ACM.

•Portions of the basement have been replaced on an as needed basis.  This would 

eliminate all ACM on the B - Level. 

•With the additional foot traffic and materials transport through this hallway due to the 

MOB, this area is in sore need of upgrade.

♦Rating:

1... 1X2 = 2

2... 1

3... 2X2 = 4

4... 1

5... 1X3 = 3

Total = 11

70,000$                           

20 Dust collection system for shop
All carpenter shops are notorious for dust issues. This vacuum system will collect dust from 

each of the wood-working tools to a central bagging unit.

♦ Safety

♦ Ease of working.

♦ Convenience.

♦Rating:

1… 4X2 = 8

2… 2

3… 1

4… 0

5… 0

Total = 11

4,200$                             

5 FY2019 PRIORITIZED CAPITAL LIST 03/01/2018 by J.H.

Page 9 of 11Page 254 of 305



FY19 PRIORITIZED CAPITAL LIST 

800- FACILITIES SUPPORT SERVICES

21 Engineering for "Window-wells" The "window-wells" in the original hospital leak and are a catch-all for clutter.

•This engineering is for roofing over the window-wells with either a hard roof 

(converting the area into usable spaces) or skylights (converting the areas into atriums). 

Either way, the space becomes usable instead of a leaky catch-all.

♦Rating:

1… 1X2 = 2

2... 1

3... 1X2 = 2

4... 1

5... 1X3 = 3

Total = 9

10,000$                           

22
Engineering for Emergency Diesel 

Generators

We know we have excess generator capacity.   We need to have an engineering study to 

determine what additional non-emergency loads can be added to ensure "normal" operation of 

the hospital during a loss of power.

•To meet code, the generator can be connected to "normal" power loads so long as there 

is load stripping capability in the event that one of the generators is lost. 

•Need engineering review of existing loads and design work to connect "normal" loads.

♦Rating:

1... 1X2 = 2

2... 1

3... 1X2 = 2

4... 1

5... 1X3 = 3

Total = 9

135,000$                         

23
Shredder System for autoclaved 

hazardous waste

The days of having our hazardous waste stored and then transported to an approved disposal 

site (at tremendous cost) are behind us. But the ability to properly treat this waste is still ahead 

of us. We now autoclave (sterilize) this waste, compact it, and then dispose of it at our sanitary 

landfill. However, the ability to shred this waste after sterilization would maximize our efforts 

and provide a waste product that is better suited for our landfill. This request is for the 

engineering and equipment as well as expanding our processing building to accommodate this 

improved operation.

•Improved work flow.

•Suitable waste product for our landfill.

•Sharps to be properly processed for disposal.

♦Rating:

1… 1X2 = 2

2… 1

3… 2X2 = 4

4… 1

5… 0

Total = 8

 $                        340,318 

24 Parking lot revision

This revision will provide 20 ne wparking spaces near our front entrancel It will also redesign 

our entrance roadways to resolve confusion. Plans are available and projext proposals have 

been received.

•New parking spaces.

•Redesigned front entrance roadway to resolve confusion.

♦Rating:

1… 1X2 = 2

2… 1

3… 2X2 = 4

4… 1

5… 0

Total = 8

 $                        344,000 

Fire Notification System at College 

Hill MOB
Code requirement Protect patients and staff (On-hold till required) 30,000$                           

Priority Description Justification Benefit Cost

Replace front steps and porch at 

College Court  townhouse

Currently, the front porch and steps at our College Court townhouse are in grave disrepair, if 

not downright dangerous. This request will be to replace the steps and porch parts.

•Safety

•Appearance and functionality
8,000$                             

OR architectural and engineering 

assessment and redesign of patient 

and support spaces

OR areas are in sore need of renovation. Tile walls and coved flooring is damaged, HVAC system 

is barely adequate with inadequate controls, sterile processing falls under constant scrutiny 

from surveyors due to poor layout. This request will provide design for improved surfaces and 

new layout to match today's standards.

♦ Improved environmental control

♦ Code compliant design for sterile processing and work flow.

♦ Improved, more trouble free surfaces.

♦ New, up-to-date appearance.

90,000$                           

Private room in Medical Oncology
On occasion, patients receiving infusion can be agitated which can cause comotion and distress 

in the other patients. WDH will be involved and will require architectural design.
New design specifications require such rooms. 40,000$                           

804-OFFSITE PROPERTIES

CAPITAL REQUESTS FOR OTHER DEPARTMENTS

COLLEGE HILL MOB 

6 FY2019 PRIORITIZED CAPITAL LIST 03/01/2018 by J.H.

Page 10 of 11Page 255 of 305



FY19 PRIORITIZED CAPITAL LIST 

800- FACILITIES SUPPORT SERVICES

Remodel Rad-Room 3 (with room 2)

With the purchase of a new x-ray machine for Rad-Room 3, there will be necessary work in the 

room itself to be done:

•With any new upgrade, room 3 and room 2 will become combined to make one large room

•Major overhaul of the the electrical system including branch circuits and lighting.

•Wall removal and reconfiguration, lead shielding retrofit involved. 

•An entirely new ceiling installed.

•New flooring.

•New sprinkler layout.

•New HVAC duct layout and controls. Ductboard is likely to be removed and remediated.

•Removal/ reconfiguration of piped gas.

•Reconfiguration of nurse call system.

•All new paint and upgrade bathroom.

•Upgrades to systems, including energy efficient controls for unoccupied modes. 

•Along with the latest equipment, the room will be refreshed with appealing décor and 

will operate like a well-tuned machine.

410,000$                         

Remodel Rad-Room 4

With the purchase of a new x-ray machine for Rad-room 4, there will be necessary work in the 

room itself to be done:

•The new machine will liekly require new raceways installed for the new cabling requirements.

•There will need to be a new ceiling installed to accommodate the new equipment layout.

•New lighting and upgrades to the original branch circuit wiring will be necessary.

•New flooring will be in order as well as a realignment of  cabinetry.

•New HVAC ductwork layout and controls. Likely some ductboard to be removed and 

remediated.

•New sprinkler configuration is likely necessary.

•All new paint and upgrade to the bathroom.

•Upgrade to systems, including energy efficient controls for unoccupied modes.

•Along with the latest equipment, the room will be refreshed with appealing décor and 

will operate like a well-tuned machine

375,000$                         

Kitchen dish room 
With the purchase of any new dishwasher, the dish room itself would need to be retrofitted to 

the new machine. This is an opportunity to correct some long-standing issues with that room:

•Accommodate new dish machine.

•Improved work flow.
30,000$                           

Kitchen walk-in refrigerator and 

freezer renovation

To accommodate new walk-in units… retrofit spaces including sprinkler coverage, lighting and 

wiring for new units.

♦Replacement of aged units that require constant repair.

♦ Vastly improved work flow
30,000$                           

Kitchen refrigerated prep-line
With the purchase of new under counter style coolers, there will be some necessary retrofit of 

the old tray-line, including a sink addition.

•Improved work flow.

•Removal of old outdated equipment.

•increased efficiency.

10,000$                           

7 FY2019 PRIORITIZED CAPITAL LIST 03/01/2018 by J.H.

Page 11 of 11Page 256 of 305



 

Board Compliance Committee 

Minutes 

October 24, 2018 

Present: Barbara Sowada, Ed Tardoni, Irene Richardson, Suzan Campbell, and Clayton Radakovich 

Barbara Sowada called the meeting to order at 2:00 pm. 

There were no minutes to approve. 

The following items were discussed: 

1. The distinction between the internal compliance committee and the board compliance 

committee was reviewed. The Internal Compliance Committee, which is composed of an eleven-

personal hospital team, including all of senior leadership and the CMO, is responsible for the 

identification, investigation, and resolution of compliance issues; it is a management committee. 

The Board Compliance Committee, which is composed of two board members, the CEO, the Chief 

Legal Executive, and the Director of Compliance and Safety, is responsible for oversight; its 

purpose is to assure that the internal committee’s work is vigorous, continuous, and appropriate. 

2. The information brought from the Internal Compliance Committee to the Board Compliance 

Committee was discussed. It was agreed that only the following information will be brought to 

the Board Committee. 

a.  Cases will be identified by number and broad category. For example, 1, Financial; 2, 

Nursing; 7, Nursing; 1, Lab, etc. 

b. Cases will be classified as open or pending; under investigation; and resolved. 

c. Details of the investigation will not be brought to the Board committee. 

d. General description of resolution; and, where appropriate, a follow-up noting whether 

remedy has prevented the reoccurrence.  

3. Cases will not be brought to the Board Compliance Committee that have not been reviewed and 

acted upon by the Internal Compliance Committee. This should not be a problem with the 

Internal Committee meeting the first of the month and the Board Committee meeting the last of 

the month.  

4. The Compliance and Safety Department is requesting to replace its contract tracking software 

with more robust software that also allows for tracking compliance issues. Cost of the proposed 

software is within the approved authority of the CEO; therefore, no board action required. 

5. The Compliance Plan was included in the October Board packet and should be approved at the 

November Board meeting. 

6. No training to report. 

Meeting was adjourned at 3:30 pm. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Barbara J. Sowada, Ph.D 

Chair, Board Compliance Committee 

Page 257 of 305



 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

Governance Committee Meeting 

October 18, 2018 

 

Voting Members Present: Richard Mathey and Barbara Sowada 

Non-Voting Members Present: Irene Richardson 

 

Call Meeting to Order 

Richard Mathey called meeting to order at 2:15 pm. 

 

Approve Meeting Minutes 

No minutes to approve. 

Discussion 

 

The recent issue regarding the Bank of the West indicated that the Board needs better procedures for conducting 

its business. Therefore, the Governance Committee met in order to draft procedures for the following items: 1) 

amending the agenda, and 2) the timely placement of items, by individuals, on the monthly board agenda.  

 

1. Amending the agenda.  It is recommended that the only permissible action be changing the order of the 

agenda items. However, in the case of a true emergency, agenda items may be added or deleted. 

2. Agenda items added by individual board members. 

a. If an individual board member has an item that s/he wishes to add, either for discussion or action, 

it is recommended that the person send the item to the CEO and the Board chair for inclusion in 

that month’s agenda. The item will be placed on the agenda and discussed at that month’s 

meeting, but no action will be taken. Any action to be taken will occur at the following month, as 

part of Old Business. 

b. The alternative method is for the individual to bring the agenda item to the appropriate board 

committee. The committee, then, as part of its routine business recommends that the item come 

before the board for consideration. Once placed on the board agenda, the item will be discussed 

at that month’s meeting, and any action to be taken will occur on at the following month, as part 

of Old Business.  

3. Procedure for communicating with each other by email regarding the Board’s business. Individual 

comments regarding any agenda item, including those placed by individual board members, are to be 

emailed to the CEO’s administrative assistant. So that everyone, including the public can see them, the 

comments will be included in that month’s board meeting packet.  

4. Agenda order. A suggestion was made at the Board Quality Committee that the executive session of the 

board meeting be moved to the end of the agenda, as this would make it easier for the staff to attend the 

board meeting. No action was taken. 

5. Board Committee Minutes. There was discussion regarding the decision-making value of having the most 

current board committee minutes. In other words, having the minutes of the meetings that occurred in 

September be included in the October board packet. No action was taken. 

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 3:30 pm. 

Submitted by Barbara J. Sowada, Ph.D. 

Page 258 of 305



Page 259 of 305



Page 260 of 305



Page 261 of 305



Page 262 of 305



Page 263 of 305



Page 264 of 305



Page 265 of 305



Page 266 of 305



Page 267 of 305



Page 268 of 305



Page 269 of 305



Page 270 of 305



Page 271 of 305



Page 272 of 305



Page 273 of 305



Page 274 of 305



Page 275 of 305



Page 276 of 305



Page 277 of 305



Page 278 of 305



Page 279 of 305



Page 280 of 305



Page 281 of 305



Page 282 of 305



Page 283 of 305



Page 284 of 305



Page 285 of 305



Page 286 of 305



Page 287 of 305



Page 288 of 305



Page 289 of 305



Page 290 of 305



Page 291 of 305



Page 292 of 305



Page 293 of 305



Page 294 of 305



Page 295 of 305



Page 296 of 305



Page 297 of 305



Page 298 of 305



Page 299 of 305



Page 300 of 305



Page 301 of 305



Page 302 of 305



Page 303 of 305



Page 304 of 305



Page 305 of 305


	Meeting Book
	meeting book - wednesday - november 7, 2018 board of trustees regular meeting.pdf


